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Introduction to the Financial Statements

Police and Crime Commissioner Marc Jones

| was elected to serve by the people of Lincolnshire as Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC)
in May 2016 and for a second term in May 2021. The PCC’s primary functions are to secure
the maintenance of Lincolnshire Police and secure its efficiency and effectiveness. | must
also hold the Chief Constable to account for a number of duties. The primary legislative

provisions setting out the PCC’s obligations are the Police Reform and Social Responsibility
Act 2011, the Policing and Crime Act 2017 and the Police Act 1996.

All the financial transactions incurred during 2020/21 for policing Lincolnshire have been
recognised and recorded in this Statement of Accounts. The statement sets out the financial
performance and financial position of the PCC and the Group (PCC and Chief Constable) as
at 31 March 2021 and how the financial position has changed over time.

The PCC has the legal power and duty to set the strategic direction and objectives of
Lincolnshire Police through the Police and Crime Plan and must also scrutinise, support and
challenge the overall performance of the Force against the priorities agreed within the Plan.

| issued my Community Safety, Policing and Criminal Justice Plan for the period 2017 — 2021
in March 2017; this was updated in June 2019. It is built around four key principles:

e community safety and prevention in partnership;

¢ listening and responding and being accountable;

e protecting and supporting victims and the vulnerable; and
¢ policing that works.

The Chief Constable Chris Haward, whom | appointed in 2020, has already made a positive
impact both locally and nationally. He has a track record of fighting crime and managing
community policing and his appointment is another positive step forward in the drive to create
an effective force Lincolnshire can be proud of. | very much look forward to working with Chris
in the coming years to keep our communities safe.

Lincolnshire Police’s overall performance continues to be good when compared to other police
forces. The issue of the future funding for Lincolnshire Police continues to be a crucial one
for my office and for me personally. My priority remains to address this issue with Government
and | continue to communicate with local MPs and the Police and Fire Minister Kit Malthouse
to highlight the issue of sustainable funding for Lincolnshire Police.
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| published my budget decision in February 2020 for the 2020/21 financial year. This included
an increase in Police Grant of £4.4m for the national officer uplift programme, and a precept
increase of £9.99 per band D property.

The medium-term financial plan is balanced; there is uncertainty however in future years due
to the impact on public sector spending of the Covid-19 pandemic. The funding gap could re-
emerge if future funding levels do not change.

In July 2019 the Government announced a funded national uplift in police officer numbers,
20,000 over the next three years. Lincolnshire’s allocation in the first tranche of the uplift was
50 officers by March 2021, this has been achieved. The tranche 2 allocation is 49 officers by
March 2022, and | am providing one off funding to bring forward recruitment from future years
into 2021/22 in anticipation of tranche three.

| have been successful in securing £3.5m of special grant in the three years to 2019/20, with
a further application made in 2020/21. Whilst this is welcome, it is one off funding and does
not provide sustainability for the medium to long term position in Lincolnshire.

I made the decision not to extend the contract between G4S and Lincolnshire Police for a
further five years. The decision is part of my strategy of providing the most efficient modern
policing service in the UK with the flexibility for the Chief to be able to deploy staff and develop
services quickly and effectively. It will offer new opportunities to improve the services provided
for the people of Lincolnshire, ensure as much as possible is invested in the front-line and
continue the work to keep communities safe.

Despite Lincolnshire Police’s position as one of the lowest funded Forces in the country, we
continue to innovate and look to secure best value for money from the available funds. | would
like to highlight the following:

e The investment made in agile working over the last two years meant that as soon as
the pandemic required people to work from home, Lincolnshire Police was able to
respond to this immediately and hundreds of personnel were equipped to do so -
ensuring that the best possible service for communities continued.

e The dog unit has now completed the process of “dual handling” dogs, which means
that alongside their general-purpose dog, each handler will also have a specialist dog
trained for drug searching, firearms support, and other forensic searches. In addition,
two more dogs with handlers have been trained as digital media detection dogs - an
area of innovation. These dogs are able to locate and indicate to the handler items as
small as micro-sim cards in multi-storey dwellings. With the way in which crime is
changing and becoming digitalized, having this capability is vital to the Force
response.

¢ | continue to provide funding for equipment that ensures officers and staff have the
right tools for the job. This includes investment in:

o A new command and control system, the most up to date in the UK will go live
during 2021. In conjunction with new handheld computers, it will represent a huge
step forward in the effectiveness and efficiency of Lincolnshire Police enabling
frontline officers to be deployed quickly, with the right equipment;

o The replacement of the invaluable hand-held computers (MDTSs) for officers on the
front line and, in addition, the provision of devices to the officers and staff within
CID (Criminal Investigation Department) and PVP (Protecting Vulnerable People),
so that they have access to the Force systems away from the station — making
them even more efficient;
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o Additional high performance unmarked and badged vehicles for Roads and
Firearms Policing. Funding has been made available to replace dog unit vehicles
and these will be equipped with Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR),
which they have not had previously. This will enable them to police the roads more
effectively and offers a more covert option to tackle criminal use of the roads and
road safety.

o However successful these developments are in tackling crime there will always be
victims and that is why | have made it a priority to provide the best services possible to
support people in coping with, and recovering from, the emotional or physical
consequences. My office continues to make progress in reviewing and improving the
victims’ service provided including the launch of a new website and Facebook page.

All of these investments are designed to ensure that our force has the capability to help prevent
harm in our communities as well as find, intercept and arrest criminals wherever and whenever
they try to strike, and where there are victims to provide the support they deserve.

More detail on performance in 2020/21 can be found in my annual report which is available
at: https://lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk/transparency/what-our-priorities-are-and-how-we-are-
doing/annual-reports/

Roles and responsibilities

The Commissioner and the Chief Constable have specific roles and responsibilities as
determined under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. The Commissioner
provides a link between the police and the community, he sets out the strategic policing and
crime priorities and objectives through the publication of a Police and Crime Plan and also
sets the policing and crime precept. The Chief Constable is operationally independent of the
Commissioner but must have regard to the Commissioner’s Police and Crime Plan.

The Statement of Accounts

The preparation of the 2020/21 financial statements has been challenging due to the impact
of the Covid-19 global pandemic, with all of the finance staff working from home since March
2020. My thanks go to those staff for their efforts in these continued extraordinary
circumstances to produce the financial statements in a timely manner.

The 2020/21 Statement of Accounts is prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
2020/21. The accounts reflect the current legislative framework as well as the local
arrangements operating in practice. Key elements of this framework include:

e The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (the Act);

e The Home Office Financial Management Code of Practice for the Police Service of
England and Wales 2013; and

e The Commissioner's Governance Arrangements including Financial and Contract
Regulations.
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Further information about the Financial Statements is available from:

PCC’s Chief Finance Officer
Police Headquarters
Deepdale Lane

Nettleham

Lincoln

LN2 2LT

In additieraddition, interested members of the public have a statutory right to inspect the
accounts before the audit is completed. The availability of the accounts for inspection has
been advertised in the local press.

Marc Jones
Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — YraAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

Page 11



Annual Governance Statement 2020/21

Font:

Not Italic

Jhe following Annual Governance Statement was prepared during May 2021 and published~><% Formatted:

alongside the unaudited Financial Statements for 2020/21 on 31 May 2021, As a result of Formatted:

Indent: Left: 0cm

resourcing pressures experienced by our external auditors, EY LLP, the completion of the

Formatted:

Font:

Not Italic, Not Highlight

external audit of the draft Financial Statements 2020/21 was delayed until September 2023,

: Font:

Not Italic

Font:

Not Italic, Not Highlight

and/or where any events now, no changes were made beyond this forward to the Annual Formatted:

Formatted
The Annual Governance Statement has since been reviewed to consider any updates required XE Formatted:

Font:

Not Italic

Governance Statement and there have been no subsequent events that impacted on that

year. Subsequent accounts and medium-term, financial planning documents confirm that a —{ Formatted:

Font:

Not Italic

J U JU U

going concern basis is appropriate and a Note to the Accounts has been included to explain
that going concern review.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Good governance is about how organisations ensure that they are doing the right things,
in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open and accountable manner.
It comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which organisations are
directed and controlled, and through which they account to, engage with and, where
appropriate, lead their communities.

1.2. All Police and Crime Commissioners and Chief Constables are required by regulation to
produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). This is a document which
accompanies the statement of accounts and describes how good our governance
arrangements have been over the last 12 months and sets out areas for development.

2. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1. The Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire (“the Commissioner”) is
responsible for ensuring his business is conducted in accordance with the law and
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and
used economically, efficiently and effectively.

2.2. The Commissioner has a duty under the Policing Protocol Order 2011 to secure value
for money on behalf of the public that he serves.

2.3. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Commissioner is required to put in place
proper arrangements for the governance of his affairs and which facilitate the exercise
of his functions. This includes ensuring a sound system of internal control is maintained
through the year and that arrangements are in place for the management of risk. In
exercising this responsibility, the Commissioner places reliance on the Chief Constable
of Lincolnshire Police to support the governance and risk management processes.

2.4. The Lincolnshire Police Annual Governance Statement is signed by the Chief Constable
in his own set of accounts and supports the group governance arrangements.

2.5. The Commissioner has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which
is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework: Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government. A copy is available on the Commissioner’s website
at http://www.lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk/Transparency/Corporate-Governance.aspx or can
be obtained from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire,
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2.6.

Police Headquarters, Deepdale Lane, Nettleham, Lincoln, LN2 2LT. Telephone 01522
947192 or email lincolnshire-pcc@lincs.pnn.police.uk.

This statement explains how the Commissioner has complied with the Code and also
meets the requirements of regulation 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
in relation to the publication of an annual governance statement.

3. THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

3.1.

3.2

3.3.

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and
values utilised in the discharge of the Commissioner’s statutory functions. It enables the
Commissioner to monitor the achievement of his policies and strategic plans (as outlined
in the Community Safety, Policing and Criminal Justice Plan for Lincolnshire and
associated strategies) and to consider whether those plans have led to the delivery of
appropriate services and value for money.

. The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to

manage risk to a reasonable and foreseeable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure
to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the
Commissioner’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, to manage them effectively,
efficiently and economically.

The governance framework has been in place for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.

4. THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

4.1.

4.2.

The governance regime introduced by the Commissioner gives effect to the provisions
of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility (PR&SR) Act 2011. This framework was
designed so that:

e where statutory powers provide for non-operational decision making that rests with
the Commissioner, the Commissioner may give consent for certain decisions to be
reached by the Chief Constable;

o there is clarity on which statutory powers of the Commissioner have been delegated
to the Commissioner’s staff;

¢ the decision-making structure provides for effective management of resources;

e proportionate control mechanisms are in place in order to secure probity in the use
of public resources and value for money;

e the Commissioner can be assured of the highest standards of openness,
transparency, integrity, respect for others and corporate governance in the exercise
of functions;

e the Commissioner is seen to be accountable to the people of the area for the delivery
of the service.

By law the Chief Constable is responsible for operational policing matters, the direction
and control of police personnel, and for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of Lincolnshire Police. It is however the Commissioner who is required to
hold him to account for the exercise of those functions and those of the persons under
his direction and control. This is done in a manner that recognises the commitment of
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the Commissioner and Chief Constable to abide by the working principles of the Policing
Protocol as set out in the Schedule to the Policing Protocol Order 2011.

4.3. The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the governance
arrangements put in place for the Commissioner and the Chief Constable are measures:

e for identifying and communicating the Commissioner’s vision, purpose and intended
outcomes;

e for reviewing the Commissioner's vision and its implications for governance
arrangements;

e for measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in
accordance with the Commissioner’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent
the best use of resources;

o for defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the Commissioner and
Force and the senior officers of each, setting out clear delegation arrangements and
protocols for effective communication, and arrangements for challenging and
scrutinizing Force activity;

o for developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the
standards of behaviour for officers and staff;

o for reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme
of delegation, contract/procurement regulations, and supporting procedure notes/
manuals, which clearly define how decisions are taken and the processes and
controls required to manage risks;

o for undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s
Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police;

e for ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful;

o for whistle blowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from the public and
handling redress;

o for identifying the development needs of senior officers in relation to their strategic
roles, supported by appropriate training;

o for establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community
and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation;

« forincorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other
group working and reflecting these in the Commissioner’s overall governance
arrangements.

4.4. The governance framework has been adopted by the Commissioner and the Chief
Constable. The Commissioner's Code of Corporate Governance together with the
Governance Framework is available at: http://www.lincolnshire-
pcc.gov.uk/Transparency/Corporate-Governance.aspx.

5. REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

5.1. The Commissioner has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of the governance framework including the system of internal control.

5.2. This review has been informed by the work of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the
Chief Executive (CE), who also undertakes the roles of Monitoring Officer and Head of
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Paid Service. In addition, the work of the internal auditors, plus members of the
Commissioner’s staff, who have the responsibility for the development, maintenance
and operation of the governance environment also inform the review. Comments made
by the internal and external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates are
also considered as part of this review.

5.3. The Commissioner and Chief Constable have a Joint Independent Audit Committee
(JIAC) that meet at least 4 times a year. The JIAC provides advice on matters relating
to the adequacy and effectiveness of the financial and other controls, corporate
governance, financial and contract regulations and risk management arrangements
operated by both the Commissioner and the Chief Constable. The JIAC is subject to an
annual self-assessment.

5.4. The JIAC has received and considered independent reports from both Internal and
External Audit and monitored the implementation of action plans drawn up to address
identified internal control weaknesses. The Head of Internal Audit provides an opinion
for each of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable corporations sole,
based on the work undertaken in the year, on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
assurance framework, risk management, internal control and governance, in compliance
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

5.5. For the Police & Crime Commissioner corporation sole, the following opinion was
provided for :2020/21:

55 Our _overall_opinion_is_that _generally adequate and _effective control _and<———{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.63 cm, No bulets or numbering |
governance processes were in place to manage the achievement of the organisation’s
objectives. We have, however, identified weaknesses that require addressing reqarding
Partnership Monitoring and Resources, both of which have been addressed by December
2021, /[ Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto, (Asian) Japanese ]

5.6. For the Chief Constable corporation sole, the following opinion was provided for:2020/21

5:6- Our overall opinion is that generally adequate and effective control_and<«——{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.63 cm, No bullets or numbering
governance processes were in place to manage the achievement of the organisation’s
objectives. It gave a satisfactory or significant assurance for 11 of the 13 reports issued
for Recruitment follow up, Archive Management and Workforce Planning. Actions have
been undertaken to address these issues., /[ Formatted: Font: Italic, Font color: Auto ]

5.7. The External Auditor provides an opinion on the financial statements and value for
money.

5.8. There are a number of internal groups that meet on a regular basis to enable the
Commissioner to carry out effective monitoring and review of the Force’s performance
and assess progress made against the objectives stated in the Police and Crime Plan.
The Public Assurance Meetings (PAM) consider police performance (Crime) and the
Police and Crime Strategic Board considers financial, people, estates and ICT
resources, as well as long term strategy development, significant and emerging risk
areas and the Chief Constable’s report. The Professional Standards Governance
meeting reviews matters relating to the conduct of police officers and staff.

5.9. During the 2020/21 financial year, governance arrangements have been flexed in
response to the Covid-19 pandemic and the change in working arrangements required
by government. Most meetings have been undertaken virtually, using web conferencing
technology and, where appropriate, being live streamed to the internet. Internal controls
have been modified to ensure they remain effective during periods of remote working.
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5.10. The effectiveness of the governance framework has been reviewed by the
Commissioner’s Executive Team' in the year 2020/21. The review has included:

¢ the internal audit reports, including: governance (decision making) and delivery of the
police and crime plan;

¢ review of the Commissioner’s risk strategy, risk appetite, associated processes and
overall approach to risk management;

e the code of corporate governance and the annotated code providing sources of
evidence;

e the Commissioner's Decision-Making Framework and practical application of the
significant public interest policy statement;

e the Commissioner’s Publication Scheme and approach to ensuring that information
is publicly available and transparent;

¢ the Integrated Scheme of Governance (ISG) that includes the Scheme of Consent,
Commissioner’s and Chief Constable’s Scheme of Delegation and the Financial and
Contract regulations;

e consideration of the Commissioner and Chief Constable’s joint assurance map;

e ongoing development and review of the Commissioner's Operational Delivery
Monitoring Plan;

e review and monitoring of Lincolnshire Police performance (both organisational and
operational) through the governance meeting structure and written and oral briefings;

o external auditors and their formal reporting;

o feedback received from the JIAC.

5.11. Assurance on the effectiveness of the Commissioner’s regulatory framework has been
provided by the CE who, as Monitoring Officer, has a legal duty to ensure the lawfulness
and fairness of decision-making. Specialist legal advice is available to the Monitoring
Officer as required.

5.12. Assurance on the effectiveness of the Commissioner’s financial controls has been
provided by the CFO who is designated as the responsible officer for the administration
of financial affairs under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. Systems are in
place to ensure the lawfulness and financial prudence of decision-making and to fully
discharge the responsibilities of the role. The financial arrangements in place conform
to the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the CFO of the
Police and Crime Commissioner and the CFO of the Chief Constable (2014).

5.13. The ISG was first published in 2014 to reflect the new governance arrangements
arising from the PRSR Act 2011. The JIAC has been consulted on the scheme and its
content is reviewed annually. Prompted by internal audit, a mandatory ISG training
package has been developed for all relevant staff. The training package is designed to
allow staff positively to attest that they are cognisant of the policies relating to the
scheme and the financial and contract regulations. This ‘e-learning’ package is delivered
through the National Centre for Applied Learning Technologies (NCALT).

1 Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer
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5.14. The Commissioner’s risk management arrangements are well developed and
embedded. The JIAC reviews the Commissioner’s risk management strategy on an
annual basis and monitors the Commissioner’s strategic risk register and the joint
assurance map quarterly. The Executive team consider and review risks on a monthly
basis through management meetings. The risk registers and assurance framework are
aligned and drive improvement activity where assurance on the effectiveness of controls
needs to be strengthened.

5.15. The Commissioner is committed to promoting fairness and equality and ensuring that
people are treated with respect and dignity at all times. The monitoring and review of
equality and diversity issues is carried out through a member of the Commissioner’s
staff attending the bi-monthly Equality and Diversity Board meetings for which minutes
and actions are recorded. The Commissioner also has oversight of the Chief Constable’s
approach to stop and search activity. The Police and Crime Panel in Lincolnshire exist
to scrutinise the Commissioner (not the Chief Constable), to promote openness in the
transaction of PCC business and to support the Commissioner in the effective exercise
of his functions. In Lincolnshire, the Commissioner and his senior staff have attended
every meeting of the Police and Crime Panel.

5.16. The Commissioner published his Annual Report in March 2021 and presented it to the
Police and Crime Panel. The Annual Report demonstrates how the Commissioner has
carried out his legal duties, sets out what has been achieved over the year and reports
on the progress that has been made in meeting the objectives set out in the Police and
Crime Plan. The audited Financial Statements are published on the PCC’s website to
complement the Annual Report which is available at: https:/lincolnshire-
pcc.gov.uk/transparency/what-our-priorities-are-and-how-we-are-doing/annual-reports/

5.17. The Commissioner has had a bespoke media and communications contract in place
with a specialist provider since November 2016. This arrangement allows the
Commissioner to have a service tailored and responsive to his specific requirements. In
addition, the OPCC supplements this arrangement with social media content based on
awareness of local and national communication campaigns.

5.18. The Commissioner engages in widespread consultation on a range of subjects, key
examples include, the annual budget, and the development of his Police and Crime Plan.
A major consultation was again undertaken by the Commissioner in December 2020
following the success of the previous year’s county-wide ‘Crime & Policing Survey’. This
seeks the views of Lincolnshire residents on a range of subjects including their priorities
for policing and their own personal experience and perception of crime. The bespoke
survey has been designed to provide insights from across a broad range of respondents
representative of Lincolnshire residents. The survey will help to guide the
Commissioner’s funding priorities and inform key decisions faced by the Commissioner.

5.19. The Commissioner is committed to being accessible to the public through a wide range
of channels. Over the course of the year, the Commissioner received over 1,176 pieces
of correspondence (excluding routine correspondence from Policing Bodies), and 19
Freedom of Information (FOI) Requests?. In addition, The Commissioner uses social
media particularly his Twitter profile, which he uses to enhance his public visibility and
reach. For example, he has attracted over 7,039 Twitter ‘followers’ since taking office in
May 2016. This demonstrates an effective link between the public and the elected
individual charged with governance. The Commissioner is also committed to openness

2 Total number of requests in the period April 2020 to March 2021
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and transparency and maintains a dedicated section on his website to meet his statutory
obligations in this area, including the publication of expenses, salaries of senior staff and
expenditure over £500 and a list of assets held. In addition, the Commissioner also
publishes a quarterly integrated performance report provided by the force, as part of the
supporting information for the Public Assurance Meetings. This report consists of
statistical indicators and a narrative report from the Chief Constable providing contextual
explanation of the data, and a guidance document explaining the performance measures
used. This provides incremental information on the forces’ performance against key
areas of the Commissioners Community Safety, Policing and Criminal Justice Plan. As
a consequence of this comprehensive approach to transparency the OPCC has been
awarded the Transparency Quality Mark certificate 2020 by CoPaCC the body
responsible for evaluating police transparency.

5.20. Lincolnshire Police and the Commissioner have a joint Anti-fraud and Corruption
strategy and Policy in place which have been reviewed during the year. Quarterly
meetings ensure that current and emerging risks and issues in relation to anti-fraud and
corruption are regularly discussed and reviewed and the JIAC are kept abreast of any
issues arising. In addition, a joint fraud risk register has been developed to help in
proactively identifying and assessing current and emerging fraud risks and potential
actions to mitigate the risks identified.

5.21. The Commissioner and Chief Constable adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on
Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption published in 2014. The OPCC and Force
are members of the Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership (LCFP) which involves
working with key partners to share information and expertise to help both organisations
maintain their vigilance in tackling fraud and corruption.

5.22. The Commissioner has ensured he has arrangements in place for receiving and
handling complaints from the public that are aligned with the changes in complaints
legislation that came into force from the 1st February 2020.

5.23. CIPFA's Financial Management Code (FM Code) was published in October 2019 and
provides guidance for good and sustainable financial management in local authorities.
The FM Code offers assurance that authorities are managing resources effectively,
regardless of their current level of financial risk. A self-assessment of the PCC’s
compliance with the code has been undertaken, considered by the JIAC, and an action
plan developed to ensure full compliance during 2021/22.

5.24. The Chief Constable has undertaken his own review of governance and his own
Annual Governance Statement has informed and supports this statement.

5.25. The Commissioner has been advised on the implications of the result of the review of
the effectiveness of the governance framework by the executive team and that the
arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the
governance framework. The areas already addressed and those to be specifically
addressed with new actions planned are outlined below.

6. SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES
6.1. The Risk Register is a tool that identifies the risks that would prevent or distract the
Commissioner from achieving his objectives. During the year a number of governance

issues emerged that were not identified within the risk register

6.2. Alongside the Risk Register, the joint assurance map is recognised by the
Commissioner and the Chief Constable as a vital tool for effective corporate governance.
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6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

It provides timely and reliable information on the effectiveness of the management of
major strategic risks and significant control issues; it also provides a cohesive and
comprehensive view of assurance across the risk environment. The assurance map and
the Joint Assurance Review (JAR) meetings, held quarterly, provide much of the
evidence base for this annual governance statement. Independent assurance is also
provided by the JIAC.

The Commissioner’s significant governance issues are detailed below, sourced from the
joint assurance map and Commissioner’s risk register. They include an outline of the
actions taken or further work that is required to address the issues and whom has
responsibility for these.

The risk of failure of government to address Lincolnshire’s case for a fairer share
of national funding

During the latter part of 2016/17, the Home Office initiated a process for fundamental
review of the national police funding formula; the Commissioner's CFO participated in
this work as a member of the Technical Working Group. Consultation on the conclusion
of this work is currently on hold; the Home Office has previously indicated the
government’s intention to progress consultation on the proposed new funding formula
alongside the next government spending review, which is now unlikely until 2021. Both
the PCC and Chief Constable are supportive of revision of the national police funding
formula; previous attempts at reform suggested that Lincolnshire might benefit by
around £8 million annually.

Whilst the PCC’s medium term financial plan is in balance across the period, as a result
of both additional government grant in support of the national police officer uplift
programme and increased council tax receipts, a fairer share of government grant is
considered essential to ensure that the Force can continue to deliver an appropriate
level of service into the medium term.

The risk of a lack of resilience and stability within the chief officer team following
significant changes in the Team

A new Chief Constable was recruited and started work in December 2020. This has led
to changes in the Chief Officer Team and a renewed energy in the Force. The
Commissioner needed to run a second recruitment for Chief Constable when the first
could not be concluded. This was unfortunate but unavoidable and the second
recruitment was successful in attracting additional candidates.

The risk of failure to achieve and demonstrate efficiencies and value for money

The Commissioner and Chief Constable both have a statutory duty to make the best use
of resources available to them. The Police and Crime Plan commits to obtaining value
for money from all funding and avoiding waste. The capital programme continues to
support this by investing in technology which improves operational efficiency such
as improved Mobile Data, a new Command & Control system and Fleet telematics.
Investment decisions and benefits realisation are undertaken by the Force Change
Board and monitored by the Police and Crime Strategic Board; independent
assurance is gained through HMICFRS via the Efficiency pillar of their PEEL
inspection programme. The Financial Strategy includes performance measures
relating to both financial health and financial performance, supported by a number
of plans and policies.

The risk of failing to plan for the effective transition from the current commercial
contract arrangements
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6.8.

6.9.

Following a comprehensive assessment, the Commissioner decided that it was not good
value for money to pursue an extension to the G4S partnership. He was clear that this
did not reflect on the partnership to date, indeed it has been highly successful and will
continue in place until March 2022. The process of shaping the Force and transitioning
away from G4s is underway. It is a challenging timeframe but relationships with G4S
remain strong and the Chief Constable is personally leading the project which will deliver
the smooth return of the majority of services to the Force with two services (Cleaning
and Custody) being subject to further competition. Risks are being actively managed via
the Programme Board to ensure that service delivery remains strong throughout the
period of the transition.

The risk of failing to ensure that G4S objectives are delivered - With the resources
available

The Commissioner’s strategic partnership continues to deliver appropriate services and
savings. It will not be extended (see 6.7 above) The current governance structures led
by the OPCC continue to operate robustly over the full breadth of the contract.

6.10. G4S have, on behalf of the PCC and Force, overseen the procurement of a new

Command and Control system that will be at the heart of the Force’s continued
transformation of efficiency and effectiveness updating operational capability,
information and data management and the capacity to provide a better service to the
people of Lincolnshire from within the available resources. The project though behind
schedule is due to go live in 2021 bringing a significant whole team effort to a conclusion
and underpinning improved services.

The risk of failing to deliver the objectives of the Tri-service "Blue Light
Programme”

6.11. The shared Fire/Police Headquarters and the three-service deployment base in South

Park in Lincoln have been delivered— a significant achievement. The wider cooperation
among ‘Bluelight’ partners will now continue with the programme’s purpose changing
from implementing enabling projects to one focused on broader integration &
interoperability. It is vital that an effective governance framework is established to fully
support this aim - The Collaboration Delivery Group (CDG) replaces the outgoing
Programme and Project Board, to provide effective delivery of the outcomes and
benefits, timely challenge and oversight of any projects put forward by partner
organisations. The CDG will be presented with key information such as, anticipated
benefits, risks, issues and potential organisational impacts to help inform decisions on
the future direction and implementation of collaborative efforts.

6.12. The Force continues to explore areas of closer operational integration with the Fire

Service to support increased productivity and better outcomes for the people of
Lincolnshire. The Commissioner is continuing to explore options for the use of the West
Parade site that was vacated in 2019.

The risk of failing to maintain or develop beneficial regional collaborations

6.13. Collaboration with four other forces in the East Midlands has been a key plank in

Lincolnshire’s approach to providing effective and efficient policing. Collaborative
services have expanded and deepened in recent years with positive expansion in, for
example, Forensics. However, in the last year some areas of collaborative growth have
been subject to re-evaluation and amendment. The last year has seen continued
tensions and difference of approach from the five East Midlands Chief Constables.
Working together the PCCs, supported by the new Regional Collaboration team based
in Lincolnshire, have provided clear strategic oversight of the collaborations through a
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difficult period. National changes to ROCUs and specialist capabilities make this a
difficult area to optimise as local, regional and national demands come together to create
a complex and challenging environment. The coming year will be a challenging one of
careful re-evaluation and assessment to ensure the collaborative approach delivers for
all partners and, importantly, the people of Lincolnshire. All options will remain under
consideration including collaboration with partners outside the East Midlands.

The risk of the force not delivering operational effectiveness

6.14. The impact of the Covid -19 Pandemic over the last year has been a key focus for the
Force. It has maintained operational effectiveness despite the challenges of quickly
changing regulations and expectations. Abstractions caused by the pandemic have
been carefully managed and have had no significant effect. The impact of the pandemic
and repeated ‘lockdowns’ have significantly reduced criminal activity helping to ensure
the Force has maintained operational effectiveness.

The risk of failure to adequately prepare for the end of the Transition period
following the UK’s: exit from the European union.

6.15. The UK left the EU on the 31st of January 2020 and work was conducted by the OPCC
and Force in preparing for the consequences and potential risks this act presented. The
potential cessation of access to EU collaborative policing agreements and operational
systems that the force and the national policing service rely on was a key issue of
concern as it represented a risk to public safety. At a national level, contingency planning
arrangements were made by the International Crime Coordination Centre (ICCC).
Forces were asked to complete a readiness assessment to ensure the required
preparatory work was being conducted in a timely manner in order to adequately
address the anticipated loss of key policing systems and information. The PCC sought
and received assurance from the force that the necessary preparations had been
undertaken.

6.16. The EU transition period ended on 31 December 2020 and a final position was reached
on which of the 32 agreements and systems the UK would lose access to. There is now
a suite of alternative arrangements in place to mitigate against the risks arising from this
final position. With the transition period having ended the risk has been removed from
its force- level risk register to be managed at an operational level, where it will continue
to be monitored. The issue is now seen as “business as usual”. In the medium term the
OPCC will continue to seek assurance on how effectively these new alternative systems
are operating.

The risk of failure to adequately prepare for the changes to police complaints
legislation and associated regulations (From 15t Feb 2020)

6.17. On the 1st of February 2020 the Home Office introduced legislation that made
significant changes to how complaints made against the police are handled and the
associated discipline system for officers. The overarching purpose of the changes is to
simplify the complaints system, making it easier to navigate and putting a greater
emphasis on handling complaints in a reasonable and proportionate manner, with an
emphasis on organisational learning. The new regulations incorporate an enhanced role
for Police and Crime Commissioners, to add greater independence to the way appeals
are considered. The force’s Professional Standards Department (PSD) and the OPCC
worked in close collaboration to assess the changes required to existing processes and
responsibilities.
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6.18. The OPCC has commissioned the services of an external provider to support the PCC

in the enhanced appeals process which has the PCC responsible for complaint review
cases (appeals) to ensure the recording and handling of complaints is appropriate and
proportionate. Unfortunately, at the time of establishing this new service the pandemic
and the requirement for a shift to remote working had a negative impact on the timely
review of complaint cases managed by the OPCC. At the same time our external
provider was faced with having to recruit a replacement case officer as the recently
appointed officer resigned. These issues combined to hamper the timeliness of the
newly established review process. The OPCC continues to monitor the demand for
complaint reviews to determine the optimum resource levels required to address the
backlog of cases and maintain both a cost effective, efficient and sustainable service.

The risk of Failure to adequately prepare for PCC elections in May 2021

6.19. The original date set nationally for the election of PCCs was the 7th May 2020. In

preparation, the force and OPCC collaborated closely on arrangements to help ensure
a fair and transparent process in the lead up to the election. However, in light of the
Covid-19 pandemic and its likely impact on the election process the Government took
the decision in March 2020 to postpone these elections until May 6th 2021. To facilitate
this postponement the Government brought forward the Coronavirus Act which received
royal assent on 25th March 2020. The Act allowed for PCCs to remain for an additional
year until the revised election date in May 2021. Those candidates successfully elected
in May 2021 will only serve a three-year term. This change will maintain the election
cycle with elections being held every 4 years from 2024. The OPCC and the Force
continued to work collaboratively to plan for the PCC elections. The main considerations
remained the maintenance of public confidence, continuity of service and ensuring legal
compliance.

Internal control Issues relating to Force procedures and practices for recruitment
and retention.

6.20. The work of both external and internal auditors highlighted issues of concern

surrounding recruitment practices and the payment of relocation expenses and an ex-
gratia payment commencing in the FY 2017/18. These payments were previously
unknown to the Force and PCC’s Chief Financial Officers. The PCC and CC have
corresponded over the rationale for these decisions and follow-up internal audits have
been undertaken on an annual basis. A Governance Working Group (GWG) was
established during 2019/20 to consider, inter alia, these issues (further information on
the GWG is available in the Chief Constable’s Annual Governance Statement
paragraphs 6.8-6.10). The most recent internal audit was completed during 2020/21; the
recommendations were accepted by the Chief Constable and the remaining review and
authorisation of the ex-gratia payment has now been completed by the Chief Executive.

7. INSPECTORATE FINDINGS

7.1.

7.2.

The PEEL Inspection programme conducted by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of
Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) scrutinises all 43 police forces
in England and Wales and examines their Efficiency, Effectiveness and Legitimacy
providing comparable grades for each of the 43 forces in England and Wales.

The most recent PEEL inspection grades were received by the force in February 2020
these grades relate to the forces’ performance in 2018/19. Lincolnshire Police received
an overall grading of “Good”. The forces’ Effectiveness was also graded as “Good” with
its Efficiency being graded as “Requires improvement” and its Legitimacy also graded
as “Good”.

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — UnaAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

Page 22



7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

7.9.

Her Majesty’s Inspector for Lincolnshire commented on the findings of the report:

‘I am encouraged by the progress Lincolnshire Police has made since our last
inspection. It is an improving picture. The force provides a good policing service to its
communities bearing in mind it is one of the lowest cost forces in England and Wales.
The low funding base for the force means that it consistently struggles to provide as
effective a service as better funded forces. Although the force still has work to do, it is
to be commended for what it achieves with the money available to it”.

The commissioner is required by law to publish his response to all force specific
HMICFRS inspection reports following their publication, these responses are available
on the PCC’s website at https://lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk/transparency/what-our-priorities-
are-and-how-we-are-doing/hmic-inspections/

The force’s progress against ‘areas for improvement’ and recommendations made in
inspections continues to be tracked and progress monitored by the force through its
HMICFRS tracker. This document is regularly reviewed as part of the commissioners
“holding to account” governance processes. Work has now been completed to reconcile
the content of the forces own tracker with that of HMICFRS ‘register of
recommendations’, to ensure that all recommendations both thematic and force specific
have been addressed and remedial work has been fully completed to the satisfaction of
HMICFRS.

HMICFRS has changed the way in which they inspect forces, moving towards a more
risk-based approach. This revised approach consists of a single annual PEEL inspection
where HMICFRS inspect in each force the aspects of policing which they consider
present the greatest risk of failure. Their assessment is underpinned by data analysis
and the ongoing monitoring of forces which has been the focus of HMICFRS activities
as a result of the impact of the Corona Virus on their planned inspection activity in
2020/2021.

A significant part of the risk assessment for each force will depend on the information
gleaned from the Force Management Statement (FMS). Each Force is usually required
to produce an FMS and submit it to HMICFRS in May each year, however in 2020 due
to the impact of the pandemic forces were not required to submit an FMS.

The force believes the FMS to be an important tool in the corporate planning process as
it contains a self- assessment evaluating the following 4 years across 4 key areas:
a) The demand likely to be faced by the force;

b) The condition, capacity, capability, serviceability, performance and security of
supply of the workforce and other assets such as ICT;

c) The force’s plan to improve efficiency;

d) The force’s financial income.
and so, the force completed production of its third FMS in March 2021.
Outside of the PEEL regime the force received a National Child Protection follow-up
inspection which took place in October 2020. The purpose of the follow-up being to
assess the implementation of the recommendations made in the previous inspections
conducted in 2019 and early 2020. HMICRS latest report was published on 15t January

2021 and Her Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary for Lincolnshire Zoe Billingham
commented on the findings:
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“Lincolnshire Police has a critical duty to keep children across the region safe from
harm.”

“This is the third time we have inspected the force’s child protection services since
2018, and | am pleased to see that many of our previous concerns have been
addressed.”

“But there is still more work to do in order to provide better outcomes for vulnerable
children in Lincolnshire — from ensuring body-worn video is used where it could help
children, to actually gathering and recording the views of the children themselves.”

“The pace of progress has been impeded partly, but not exclusively, by the impact of
the pandemic.”

“l am reassured that senior leaders in the force understand where improvements need
to be made, have plans in place and are monitoring this critical area of policing closely.
We will continue to work with the force to monitor progress.”

7.10. We propose over the coming year to continue our plans to address all of the above

matters to further enhance our governance arrangements. We will address the need for
improvements that are identified during our review of effectiveness and we will monitor
their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

SIGNED

Marc Jones Malcolm Burch

Police and Crime Commissioner for Chief Executive to the Police and
Lincolnshire Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire
Date Date
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Chief Finance Officer’s Narrative Report

The Narrative Report to the financial statements provides a guide to the most significant
matters reported in the accounts and includes key performance information, a comparison of
outturn figures to the budget and highlights significant areas of expenditure and major
changes.

Introduction

| am pleased to present the Statement of Accounts for the Police & Crime Commissioner for
Lincolnshire for the financial year 2020/21. This Statement of Accounts sets out the overall
financial position of the Police & Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire (PCC Group) for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

The PCC Group is responsible for providing policing services to a population in excess of
710,000 dispersed across a large geographical area of 590,000 hectares.

The PCC Group:

o Sets its own budget;

Holds its own Reserves;
e Receives a share of Police Grant paid by the Home Office;
o Also receives Legacy Council Tax Grants from the Home Office;

e Determines and receives precepts for the proportion of the budget to be met by the
residents of Lincolnshire as part of the overall council tax collected by District Councils.

Central Government funding provides the PCC Group with the majority of its income required
to police Lincolnshire. The remainder is mostly met from local council tax payers.

The police grant for 2020/21 in Lincolnshire increased by £4.4m (7.5%) compared with
2019/20. Pension top-up grant of £1.2m was provided by government to meet the increased
costs of employer pension contributions in respect of the police officer pension scheme. In
addition, there was potential for Lincolnshire to claim up to a further £1.4m of specific grant
funding dependent upon delivering the recruitment target for 2020/21 and spending being in
accordance with grant conditions. At the time of setting the budget the grant conditions were
yet to be specified by the Home Office therefore funding and potential costs were not included
in the original budget.

The PCC increased the council tax precept by the maximum amount allowed by government
without triggering a local referendum. The precept referendum limit allowed an increase of up
to an additional £10 per annum for a Band D property (or appropriate proportion for other
property bands). This increase in the precept provided an additional £3.3m in council tax
receipts when compared with 2019/20.

The police grant settlement covered just one year. A review of the way in which Government
grant is distributed between force areas (funding formula review) has been delayed and will
not now be implemented before the next spending review in 2022/23 at the earliest.

The COVID-19 pandemic has dominated the year and presented major challenges.
Continuing funding distribution uncertainty, together with reducing government spending
plans, underline the need for robust plans with adequate levels of reserves.
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Governance

The PCC is responsible for the totality of policing within Lincolnshire, with the Chief Constable
being responsible for operational policing.

The PCC is also responsible for ensuring that public money is safeguarded, properly
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. To discharge this
accountability the PCC and Senior Officers must put in place proper procedures for the
governance and stewardship of the resources at their disposal.

The annual review of Governance and Internal Control is included within the arrangements
for producing the Annual Governance Statement, which forms part of these Financial
Statements, and includes the governance arrangements of the Chief Constable.

Organisation

The PCC receives all funding and income and makes all payments for the PCC Group. Under
a detailed Scheme of Delegation an annual budget is provided, following consultation with the
Chief Constable, for fulfilling requirements for policing Lincolnshire in accordance with the
Police and Crime Plan.

All Police Officers and the majority of police staff (other than a small number relating to the
PCC’s Office, Victim Lincs staff, and regional support arrangements) are in the Chief
Constable’s employment. The Financial Statements reflect the cost of providing operational
policing in the Chief Constable’s accounts with the PCC’s accounts showing a commensurate
transfer of resources to the Chief Constable.

The Strategic Partnership contract (with G4S Policing Services) is formally held by the PCC
for the provision of a wide range of operational and support functions to the Chief Constable.
This has been accounted for in full in the PCC’s accounts as that is where the contractual,
budgetary and management control resides. The PCC has made the decision not to extend
the contract for a further five years. The current contract expires on 31st March 2022.

Lincolnshire Police is one of five regional forces in the East Midlands and works closely with
the other four across various collaborations to provide an efficient service. More detail and
how the regional accounts are accounted for in these Financial Statements is provided in Note
378.

The Commissioner’s Priorities
The Community Safety, Policing and Criminal Justice Plan for Lincolnshire April 2017 to March

2021 sets out the actions that the PCC will be taking to help ensure communities stay safe.
This is available on the PCC’s website www.lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk

Among the actions set out in the plan are:

o Create a single joined up approach to reducing offending and re-offending and establish
integrated offender management to tackle our most challenging and prolific offenders;

e Create a coherent approach to managing offenders released from prison to maximise
the chance of rehabilitation and reduce reoffending;

e Support for citizen involvement through volunteers and ‘watch’ schemes;
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e Raise awareness of elder abuse and of those with learning difficulties or other
vulnerabilities and work with partners to identify and disrupt threats to the vulnerable, for
example from targeted ‘scamming’;

e Establish a Youth Advisory Group to seek the views of the young from a range of
backgrounds;

e Create a Community Commission to ensure the public voice is heard from across the
county;

o Commission, with partners, specialist adult and children services to support victims of
sexual crimes and domestic abuse with compassionate services that support them
through the criminal justice process and beyond;

e Ensure services are commissioned to keep those with mental health needs out of the
criminal justice system;

¢ Invest in ensuring the police have access to mental health advice and support in the
Force control room, in the community and through improved training and awareness for
officers and staff;

e Support neighbourhood policing, backed by specialist support, that work with their
communities to identify, prevent and tackle crime;

e Invest in appropriate information and communication technology (ICT) to support
modern frontline policing enabling officers to spend less time desk-bound and more time
out in the community;

e Investin appropriate equipment to meet the varied needs of policing a large and diverse
county;

o Provide fit for purpose property suitable for modern and flexible policing, including the
creation of a combined police, fire and ambulance station in Lincoln to share resources
and to support and enhance their emergency response to the public.

Performance

The achievements for the year are summarized below under the headings of the Key
Principles of the Community Safety, Policing and Criminal Justice Plan for Lincolnshire.

Community safety and prevention in partnership:

o Safer Streets Fund — New intelligent CCTV was installed in Gainsborough after a
successful bid for Government funding. The bid, in collaboration with West Lindsey
District Council, secured £250,000 to spend on upgrading and installing CCTV in the
town.

¢ Road Safety — The Lincolnshire Young Driver Project — The OPCC partnered with IAM
RoadSmart (formerly the Institute of Advanced Motorists) to provide for 100 drivers in
Lincolnshire under 25 to take an advanced driving course free of charge. The project,
which was launched in November 2019, has seen 21 test passes to date.

¢ Lincolnshire Substance Misuse Strategy — In Spring of 2020, the OPCC played a leading
role in the refresh of the Lincolnshire Drug Strategy. Following discussion at the Public
Protection Board in December, the Deputy Chief Constable (who is the National Police
Chiefs Council Lead for Drugs) hosted an event in March bringing together key strategic
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partners to discuss the strategy. Agencies represented included Lincolnshire Fire and
Rescue, Lincolnshire County Council and various NHS organisations and Safeguarding
Boards alongside charities Double Impact and We Are With You. A multi-agency group
has been formed and analysts are working to identify the level of demand. The intention
is to have an agreed strategy in place by early 2021 and move to delivery planning and
commissioning phases.

o Community Empowerment — The OPCC has commissioned Mutual Gain to develop a
place-based programme of listening and empowerment for the communities of Sleaford,
Gainsborough, Sutton Bridge and Skegness. The aim of the programme is to engage
the communities, building trust and networks with a view to developing active citizenship
(also known as Social Capital). The programme will be delivered to 25-30 people in
each area by police, voluntary sectors and communities. They will learn, plan, develop
and deliver programmes together. Due to the COVID-19 restrictions, the training has
been delivered online.

o Safer Together Team - A new Safer Together team has been established to work in local
areas, working with partners to identify local issues and seek solutions to aim reducing
the demand on the Force. The team comprises of a team leader and four co-ordinators
and will act as a local point of contact for the public and partners requiring support and
advice from the OPCC. Each of the co-ordinators is allocated a specific area across the
county, they are responsible for building intelligence and understanding of the local
need, building an informed picture of the relevant networks operating in their specific
area and developing effective partnerships within the community to support effective
neighbourhood policing.

Listening, responding and being accountable:

e Public opinion survey — The PCC continues to undertake extensive public consultation
in relation to public views on policing, community safety and to inform the setting of the
precept; the 2020/21 annual survey received 3,243 responses.

o Personal engagement — The PCC continues to make accessibility a priority and attended
more than 300 events across Lincolnshire alone, both in person and virtually.

e Representing Lincolnshire on the national stage — The PCC continues to represent
Lincolnshire on the national stage, where awareness of Lincolnshire specific issues can
be raised and national policies can be influenced to the benefit of the people of
Lincolnshire.

e Partnership working — The PCC and the OPCC team are engaged with, and sit on
boards for a wide range of organisations such as Safer Lincolnshire Partnership,
National Rural Crime Network, child protection agencies, various health and wellbeing
boards — each designed to help deliver joined up services for the residents of the county.

e Public Assurance Meetings — These meetings (held with the Chief Constable of
Lincolnshire Police) provide the opportunity for residents to be well informed and ask
questions about the performance of their police force. To comply with the lockdown rules
the meeting moved online. The meetings are recorded and all papers and the audio
recording are made available on the PCC website http://bit.ly/PCCPAM

e Youth Commission on Police, Crime and Community Safety — This ground-breaking
project has been launched to ensure that young people in Lincolnshire have a say in
how Lincolnshire is policed. The county’s first ever Youth Commission was established
to enable young people, aged between 14 to 25 to be consulted on a range of policing,

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — UnraAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

Page 28



crime and community safety issues. The project, run by Leaders Unlocked, on behalf
of the PCC recruited 26 young people from a range of different ethnic, religious and
gender backgrounds from across the county. The Commission has already created a
priority agenda including mental health, abusive relationships, hate crime, night-time
safety and the relationship between young people and the police.

Lincolnshire Independent Custody Visiting (ICV) Scheme — The OPCC has a statutory
duty to put in place an effective ICV scheme for the county. The primary aim of the
scheme is to increase public confidence in the treatment of persons detained in police
custody. The visits were suspended in March 2020 due to the COVID19 pandemic to
ensure the safety of volunteers and minimise the risk of spreading the virus. A new
procedure was developed in conjunction with the Force to enable ICVs to conduct visits
remotely, interviewing detainees via mobile phones to enable the continued oversight of
this important area. A total of 85 visits were completed by January 2021. Just over
80% of the persons detained in police custody who were available at the time a remote
visit was conducted gave their consent to speak to an ICV.

Protecting and supporting victims and the vulnerable:

New victims’ website and Facebook page — The first ever Lincolnshire website dedicated
to helping victims find the support they need was launched in 2020. Anyone who has
been a victim of crime in Lincolnshire — regardless of whether the crime was reported or
not can now access support, information and advice from the site. The website can be
viewed at www.victimslincs.co.uk.

COVID-19 funding to help victims — The OPCC was able to secure an additional
£216,000 of funding for services helping victims of domestic abuse and sexual violence
during the pandemic. The money helped a raft of local charities providing services and
support for victims through the lockdown. These included Victim Support and Rape
Crisis.

Liaison and Diversion services — The OPCC supported the commissioning of Liaison
and Diversion services in Lincolnshire by NHS England through participation in the
tender evaluation process. This resulted in a contract award for Lincolnshire Partnership
Foundation Trust (LPFT) and the service went live in April 2020. The service is for
vulnerable adults and children at the earliest stage in the criminal justice process. The
seven-day a week service aims to reduce reoffending by offering a co-ordinated service
to divert people, where appropriate out of the criminal justice service and into health,
social care, education and training.

Needs assessment for survivors of sexual abuse — The OPCC and NHS England/NHS
Improvement (Midlands) jointly commissioned LimeCulture Community Interest
Company to undertake a needs assessment for victims and survivors of sexual abuse
or assault. The findings are now being used to improve support and outcomes for
victims and survivors in Lincolnshire.

Spreading excellence — Staff from the OPCC have been invited to become a member of
the National Working Group of the Spreading Excellence project, funded by the Home
Office. The project aims to improve support services working with children and young
people who have experienced abuse.

Fighting modern slavery and human trafficking — The OPCC has signed-up to the Safer
Lincolnshire Partnership's Charter against Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking,
which commits organisations to proactively take steps internally to tackle the issue;
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whilst at the same time ensuring that they are contributing to the wider collective effort
to protect communities across Lincolnshire.

Combatting scams and fraud — The Deputy PCC continues to raise the profile of scams
and fraud and has become a key influencer at a national level in this field. A special
programme created and designed by the Deputy PCC in conjunction with Trading
Standards and police colleagues (designed to help school children understand and spot
scams) has now been rolled out across the UK. Work on creating a similar programme
aimed at university and college students is now being developed and is supported by
UK Finance - the trade association for the UK banking and financial services sector. In
addition, the Deputy PCC has obtained 100 call blockers, paid for with Proceeds of
Crime money, and will be working with the Safer Together Team, victim support groups
and Lincolnshire Police to install in the homes of those who have been the target of
frauds and scams.

Domestic abuse early intervention — The domestic abuse early intervention and
response project in Lincolnshire aimed at perpetrators, Make A Change, was funded
through Police Transformation Funding, which ended on 31st March 2020. A bid was
made to the National Lottery Community Fund (NLCF) for continuation and expansion
of the project, which proposed that 40% of the funding be locally sourced across the
partnership (Lincolnshire Police and LCC) with 60% of the funding provided by NLCF,
for three years. The bid was successful and as a result all elements of the model are
funded and will be delivered up to 31st March 2023.

Support for employees suffering domestic abuse — In July Lincolnshire Police and the
OPCC received the Everyone’s Business Award, presented by charity Hestia, which
recognises the support provided to their employees experiencing domestic abuse. To
achieve the award, both organisations had to meet a range of criteria to demonstrate
what they were doing to support their employees.

Policing that works:

Blue Light collaboration — The new award-winning tri-service station building situated in
Lincoln at South Park, is now completed and fully operational. It houses around 500
staff from Lincolnshire Police, Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue and East Midlands Ambulance
Service and is the first operational hub between all three emergency services in the
country. The collaboration is making savings on running costs and a reduction in
building maintenance costs, whilst improving services to the public.

Making our roads hostile to criminals — Lincolnshire Police now have additional high
performance unmarked and unbadged vehicles for Roads and Firearms policing.
Funding has been made available to replace dog unit vehicles and these will be fitted
with Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) equipment. This will enable them to
police the roads more effectively and offers more options to tackle criminals’ use of the
roads and road safety in general.

Recruitment of additional officers — During the year, as a result of prudent financial
planning and officer uplift funding from the Government, the PCC provided the funding
to recruit a record 120 officers by the end of the financial year.

Command and control — The new command and control system, the most up to date in
the UK, will go live during 2021. This will represent a huge step forwards in the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Lincolnshire Police. It will enable officers to report
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incidents and will give the control room staff the capability to deploy officers to scenes
as quickly as possible.

Enhanced dog unit — The dog unit has now started the process of ‘dual handling’ dogs,
which means that alongside their general-purpose dog each handler will also have a
specialist dog. Recently the unit has successfully licensed two new specialist dogs to
increase the capability in searching for drugs, cash and firearms. In addition, two more
dogs with handlers have been trained as digital media detection dogs. These will support
the fight against child sexual exploitation, child sex offences, fraud, economic crime
investigations and county lines drug offences.

Firearms licensing — Huge improvements in dealing with firearms licenses in
Lincolnshire have been recognised nationally. The implementation of an online portal
for applications and increased use of workflow technology has made processes more
efficient. This has been recognised by the British Association of Shooting and
Conservation (BASC) which has rated the department in the top three nationally for
dealing with certificate grants and renewals.

Special constables — Despite the impact of lockdown and continuing restrictions, the
OPCC has continued to support the Force’s efforts to recruit and train special
constables. The PCC has proposed a 25% council tax discount scheme for special
constables in Lincolnshire which will be introduced during the next financial year.

Mobile technology — The Force has completed the replacement of the invaluable hand-
held computers (MDTs) for officers on the front line. The devices have also been
provided to officers and staff within CID (Criminal Investigation Department) and PVP
(Protecting Vulnerable People) so they have access to Force system while away from
the station. The investment made in agile working over the past two years also meant
that as soon as the pandemic required people to work from home, Lincolnshire Police
was able to respond immediately and hundreds of personnel were equipped to do so.

Tasers — The PCC has been successful in a Home Office bid for just over £140,000 to
purchase an additional 170 tasers. The additional funding will result in 65% of frontline
officers having been trained and equipped to carry tasers. This will aid public and officer
safety and provide an effective response to issues of serious violence and other crime.

G4S strategic partnership contract — The PCC made the decision in October 2020 not
to extend the contract between G4S and Lincolnshire Police for a further 5 years. The
contract, which began in 2012 was to operate the Force’s back office and operational
support services and was worth more than £22m per annum. The decision is part of the
PCC'’s strategy of providing the most effective modern police service in the UK with the
flexibility for the Chief Constable to be able to deploy staff and develop services quickly
and effectively. It will offer new opportunities to improve the services provided to the
people of Lincolnshire, ensuring as much as possible is invested into the front-line and
continue to keep communities safe.

Key Crime Statistics

The crime statistics used in this section refer the calendar year 2020 rather than the financial
year (12 months from April 1, 2020) as the financial year data was not available at the time of
collation.
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Crime figures should be considered in the context of the effect of the pandemic and lockdown
on the statistics. In most cases the national lockdowns and restrictions have had a positive
effect on crime, driving down the totals in many of the recorded categories. In certain other
cases the pandemic has had the opposite effect. In the case of anti-social behaviour (ASB),
for instance, what appears to be a huge spike is actually the result of a decision taken
nationally in March 2020 to record breaches of lockdown rules as ASB incidents. Other
statistics, such as criminal justice outcomes, have not been recorded because courts have
been closed.

The overall crime fell to an annual total of 51,936 a 13.3% reduction on the previous year and
the crime harm index (a measurement of crime rates in which crimes are weighted based on
how much "harm" they cause) fell by 8.4%.

As might be expected during the lockdown all burglaries have reduced during the year.
Incidents of residential burglaries dropped by 13.4% to 2,436 and other burglaries dropped by
16.7% to 3,532.

Theft (excluding vehicles) has plummeted by 24.1% to 8,984 and robbery has fallen even
more, dropping 27.3% to just 280 cases.

Sexual and violence offences have dropped, violence against the person without injury is down
9% (20,245 cases), violence with injury down by 13.7% (5,475 cases) and sexual offences
have dropped by 14.45% to 1,989 cases.

The total number of drug offences for the year was down 8.9% to 1,761 and arson and criminal
damage down 9.5% to 6,172. Vehicle crimes dropped by 24% to 2384.

Anti-social behaviour is one of very few crime types which has experienced an increase in the
last year, rising by 62.7% to a total number of 21,096. It is important to reiterate, however, that
these numbers have been affected by the pandemic and the various lockdowns. Every call to
the Force complaining about a breach of COVID related rules from mask wearing to
neighbours’ BBQs are recorded as an ASB crime regardless of whether they are subsequently
investigated or not. In addition, it is believed the lockdown itself (forcing more people to work
and stay at home) has led to increases in reporting of ASB-type crimes such as those relating
to neighbour disputes.

In terms of demand the Force has seen a 2.35% per cent drop in calls for service with an
average of 11,720 calls a month. Of the overall calls of 140,642, 82,729 were classified as
urgent or a priority.

In response to urgent rural calls received in the preceding 12 months 70.35% were responded
to by officers within 20 minutes, and 72.5% of urgent urban calls within 15 minutes. This
represents a very slight improvement in performance for rural response (0.4%) and a slight
decline in urban response times (down 2%).

The Force has also seen an increase in the number of people reporting crimes online rather
than phoning the control room. In total 3,830 crimes were recorded online, an increase of
14.9%.

Further information about Force performance can be found on the PCC website - Public
Assurance Meetings (lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk) . The meetings focus on the performance of
Lincolnshire Police and provide assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of the
policing services.
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Gender Pay Gap

The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) Regulations 2017 came into
effect on 31 March 2017, which requires public sector authorities with 250 or more employees
to publish statutory calculations every year showing how large the pay gap is between their
male and female employees. Lincolnshire Police employs around 1,500 people and is
therefore subject to this duty.

What is Gender Pay Reporting?
It is important to understand that pay for both police officers and staff is determined nationally
and to recognise that gender pay reporting is not the same as equal pay. Equal pay is ensuring

equal pay for equal work; however, gender pay reporting compares hourly rates of pay and
any bonuses staff may receive by gender, seeking to expose any imbalance.

Based on the results, steps will be taken, where possible, to minimise or readdress any
identified inequities going forward.

Our Pay Gap Information

These figures are calculated using the standard methodologies laid out in current legislation:

Published mean and median information

Male Female Gap Percentage
Mean hourly rate £18.83 £16.98 £1.85 9.84%
Median hourly rate £19.22 £16.34 £2.88 15.03%

Total employees - salary quartile bands
Lower- Upper-

Lower middle middle Upper
Male proportion 48.93% 55.88% 70.86% 71.39%
Female proportion 51.07% 44 .12% 29.14% 28.61%

Published bonus information”

Male Female Gap Percentage
Mean bonus £158.04 £145.83 £12.21 7.72%
Median bonus £100.00 £100.00 £0 0%
Eroportlon receiving a 3.03% 1.05% 1.98%

onus

*Bonuses are usually paid for ‘unpleasant tasks’, or for additional work or responsibilities. Chief Officers do not receive bonuses.
Summary

Lincolnshire Police remains committed to ensuring fairness, inclusivity and the equal treatment
of all employees regardless of protected characteristics, and therefore we are pleased to have
a gender pay gap which is 5.66% lower than the national average of 15.5% (Office of National
Statistics). The gender pay gap has also reduced from the previous year from 10.5% (gap
£1.96) to 9.84% (gap £1.85) respectively.

The Chief Officer team remains determined to tackle the under-representation of women
through all grades and ranks and provide every opportunity for women to progress. The Force
remains committed to ensuring fairness and inclusivity within Lincolnshire Police, and
acknowledge the many benefits this brings to our organisation.
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Financial Performance
Analysis of Revenue and Capital Expenditure

Total net operational expenditure for the 2020-21 financial year was £131.9m compared with
£1256.2m for the previous financial year. Total operational expenditure is less than
expenditure shown in the financial statements because it excludes regional costs, pension
costs and other adjustments for statutory reporting purposes. The table below shows those
items which are excluded from total operational expenditure.

2019/20 Total Net Operational Expenditure Note No. 2020/21
£000 £000
189,965 Gross Expenditure as per Financial Statements 6 185,873
(50,251) | Pensions Accounting 45.3 (42,813)
(5,028) | Capital Accounting 29 217
(306) | Accumulated Absence 31 (662)
- Collection Fund 32 (454)
91/ Regional Reserves Transfer 8 (17)
100 |Transfer betw een reserves 8 -
134,567 Gross Operational Expenditure 142,144
(8,302 Feea—Charg &-Other-Serviee (10,269)
126,265 Total Net Operational Expenditure 131,875
2019/20 Total Net Operational Expenditure Note No. 2020/21
£000 £000
189,965|Gross Expenditure as per Financial Statements 5 185,605
(50,251) | Pensions Accounting 44.3 (42,813)
(5,028)| Capital Accounting 28 486
(306)| Accumulated Absence 30 (662)
- |Collection Fund 31 (454)
T 9TRegional Reseres rranster 7 (17)
100 | Transfer between reserves 7 -
134,567 Gross Operational Expenditure 142,145
(8,302) Fees, Charges and Other Senice Income (10,270)
126,265 Total Net Operational Expenditure 131,875
2019/20 Total Net Operational Expenditure Note No. 2020/21
£000 £000
189,965 Gross Expenditure as per Financial Statements 5 185,605
(50,251) | Pensions Accounting 443 (42,813)
(5,028) | Capital Accounting 28 486
(306) | Accumulated Absence 30 (662)
- Collection Fund 31 (454)
91| Regional Reserves Transfer 7 17)
100 | Transfer betw een reserves 7 -
134,567 Gross Operational Expenditure 142,145
(9,416) | Fees, Charges and Other Service Income (10,270)
125,151 Total Net Operational Expenditure 131,875
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The table and pie chart over page provide further analysis of the main components of total
operational expenditure.

Employee Spend: Spend on police officers, police staff and police community support
officers amounted to 642% of total spending;

Third party payments and contracted services: This represents 20% of the total spending
and includes the G4S strategic partnership that provides back office and operational
support service provision;

Supplies and Services: Spend represents 8% of total spending and includes supplier
payments for a wide variety of supplies and services used by the PCC/Force on a daily
basis;

Capital Financing: The cost of financing the capital programme undertaken by the
PCC/Force represent 3% of the total spend,;

Premises: 2% of the total spend is made on the Force estate which includes 37 stations
and the Force HQ which is now shared with the Fire Service;

Transport: Spend on vehicle and travel costs undertaken by the PCC/Force represents
1% of total spend;

Collaboration and Contributions: Spend which represents 54% of the total spend on
Regional and National collaboration and initiatives.
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2019/20
£m

Operational Expenditure

2020/21| Ratio
£m | for year

85.6Employees 86.8 62%
28.3|Third party payments and contracted services 28.6 20%
9.5|Supplies and Services 11.7 8%
3.0|Capital Financing 4.6 3%
2.9/Premises 3.1 2%
1.4\ Transport 1.4 1%
3.9/|Collaboration & Contributions 6.0 4%
134.6 | Total Gross Operating Expenditure 142.2 100%
-8.3|Less Sales, Fees and Charges -10.3
126.3 | Total Net Operating Expenditure 1319
*
2019/20 Operational Expenditure 2020/21 Ratio
£m £m | for year
85.6 |[Employees 86.8 62%
28.3 | Third party payments and contracted services 28.6 20%
9.5 |Supplies and Services 11.7 8%
3.0 Capital Financing 4.6 3%
2.9 Premises 3.1 2%
1.4|Transport 14 1%
3.9 Collaboration & Contributions 6.0 4%
| 134 6 Total Gross Operating Fxpenditure 142.2 100%
-8.3 | Less Sales, Fees and Charges -10.3
126.3 Total Net Operating Expenditure 131.9
2019/20 Operational Expenditure 2020/21 Ratio
£m £m | for year
85.6 Employees 86.8 62%
28.3|Third party payments and contracted services 28.6 20%
9.5|Supplies and Services 11.7 8%
3.0|Capital Financing 4.6 3%
2.9|Premises 3.1 2%
1.4|Transport 14 1%
3.9|Collaboration & Contributions 6.0 4%
134.6|Total Gross Operating Expenditure 142.2 100%
-9.4|Less Sales, Fees and Charges -10.3
125.2|Total Net Operating Expenditure 1319
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B Transport B Premises

£1.4m,1% £3.1m,2% 8%

® Supplies and Services £11.7m,
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Income

Total Income for 2020/21 was £131.9m compared with £1256.2m for 2019/20. Total income
is less than the income shown in the financial statements because it excludes Police Pension
Payments grant, recharged income, capital receipts and regional contributions. The table
below shows those income items that are excluded from total income.

2019/20 Income 2020/21
£000 £000
(161,901)|Income as per Financial Statements (173,342)
23,826 Pension Top-Up Grant 25,264
500| Recognised Capital Grant and Contributions 1,135

109| Council Tax Collection Fund -
62| Gains on the disposal of assets 318
8302 | Fees, Charges and Other Service Income 10,269
(129,102) Total Income (136,356)
2,837 Transfer to/(from) Reserves 4,481

(126,265) Total Income including transfer to reserves (131,875)

2019/20 Income 2020/21
£000 £000
(161,901) Income as per Financial Statements (173,343)
23,826 Pension Top-Up Grant 25,264
500 Recognised Capital Grant and Contributions 1,135
109 Council Tax Collection Fund -
62 Gains on the disposal of assets 318
8302 FeesChargesand-Otirer Serviceimcome 10,270
(129,102) Total Income (136,356)
2,837 Transfer to/(from) Reserves 4,480
(126,265) Total Income including transfer to reserves (131,875)
2019/20 Income 2020/21
£000 £000
(161,901) Income as per Financial Statements (173,343)
23,826 Pension Top-Up Grant 25,264
500 Recognised Capital Grantand Contributions 1,135
109|Council Tax Collection Fund -
62| Gains on the disposal of assets 318
9416 Fees, Charges and Other Service Income 10,270
(127,988) Total Income (136,356)
2,837|Transfer to/(from) Reserves 4,480
(125,151)|Total Income including transfer to reserves (131,875)

Total Income comprises of Central and Local Funding, together with other income, mainly in
respect of the regional custody contract managed by Lincolnshire.
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The table and pie chart over page provide further analysis of the main components of total
funding (which forms the main part of the income):

e Central Funding— The majority of funding is from central government grants, including
Police Grant and Legacy Council Tax grants;

e Local Funding — 44% of funding is provided by local council tax payers.

Government grants for 2020/21 increased by £6.4m and there was a greater burden on local
taxpayers with the precept raising an additional £3.3m in year.
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201920 Total Funding 2020421 Ratio
£m £m| foryear
Central Funding:
59.4|Police Grant 63.5 A6%
6.8|Legacy Council Tax Grants 6.8 5%
3.6/ Other Government Grants 5.4 5%
Local Funding:
55.9|Council Tax income 59.2 44%
125.7 134.9 100%
2019/20 Total Funding 2020/21 Ratio
£m £m| for year
Central Funding:
59.4 Police Grant 63.5 46%
6.8/ Legacy Council Tax Grants 6.8 5%
3.1/ Other Government Grants 5.4 5%
Local Funding:
55.9  Council Tax income 59.2 44%
125.2 134.9 100%

Total Funding £134.9m

B Council Tax income,
£59.2m, 44%

B Police Grant, £63.5m,
46%

® Other Grants, £5.4m,
5% Grants, £6.8m, 5%

B |egacy Council Tax

The table below shows how the Funding has been utilised throughout the year to meet the
expenditure incurred.
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2019720 Reconciliation between Funding / Income 2020121
£m £m
125.7|Total Funding 134.9
3.4|Add Other Income 14

-2 8|Transfer to reserves 45
126.3|Expenditure in Year 131.8

2019/20 L . 2020/21
Reconciliation between Funding / Income

£000 £000

125.2|Total Funding 134.9

2.8|Add Other Income 1.4

-2.8|Transfer to reserves -4.5

125.2|Expenditure in Year 131.8
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Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure represents money spent on acquiring, upgrading and improving assets
and major operational equipment. It relates to the provision of assets which will bring long-
term benefit to the PCC Group. The table below sets out the capital investment made in

2020/21:
2019/20 Capital Expenditure 2020/21 Ratio
£m £m | for year
1.0|Buildings Schemes 29 41%
0.8 Vehicles 2.0 29%
2.3|ICT Schemes 13 19%
0.4|Equipment 04 6%
4.7 |Blue Light Project 0.1 1%
0.1|Speed Cameras 0.1 1%
0.1|Regional 0.2 3%
9.4 7.0 100%
2019/20 Capital Expenditure 2020/21 Ratio
£m £m for year
1.0|Buildings Schemes 2.9 44%
0.8 Vehicles 2.0 31%
2.3|ICT Schemes 0.8 12%
0.4 Equipment 0.4 6%
4.7 Blue Light Project 0.1 2%
0.1/Speed Cameras 0.1 2%
0.1/ Regional 0.2 3%
9.4 6.5 100%
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Capital Expenditure £7m

B Vehicles, £ 2.0m, 29%

Building Schemes, £2.9

M Regional, £0.3m, 3% M ICT Schemes, £1.3m, 19%

M Speed Cameras, £0.1m, 1%

M Blue Light, £0.1m, 1%
B Equipment, £0.8m, 6%

Capital Expenditure £6.5m

B Vehicles, £2.0m, 31%
Building Schemes, £2.9m,
44%

@ Regional, £0.2m, 3%
B ICT Schemes, £0.8m, 12%

B Speed Cameras, £0.1m, 2%
® Blue Light, £0.1m, 2%

B Equipment, £0.8m, 6%

The PCC has approved a capital programme of £5.654m for 2021/22, and includes:

e £1.7m investment in new Command & Control system;
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e £1.5m investment in the Force estate improvements and maintenance;

e £1.2m replacement programme for vehicles.
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Capital Financing

The PCC Group’s capital programme in 2020/21 was financed through grants, contributions
from revenue, capital receipts, internal cash balances and external borrowing.

2019/20 Capital Financing 2020/21 Ratio
£m £m | for year
5.7 |Government Grants & Other Contributions 11 16%
Borrowing - External 0.2
1.4 Borrowing - Internal 4.0
3.4|Total Borrowing 4.2 60%
0.2|Direct Revenue Financing 14 20%
0.1|Capital Receipts 0.3 4%
4 7.0 100%
2019/20 | Capital Financing 2020421 Ratio
£m £m | for year
5.7 |Government Grants & Other Contributions 11 17%
Borrowing - External 0.2
14 Borrowing - Internal 35
3.4|Total Borrowing 37 56%
0.2 | Direct Revenue Financing 14 22%
0.1|Capital Receipts 0.3 5%
9.4 6.5 100%
2019/20 Capital Financing 2020/21 Ratio
£fm £m  for year
0.8 |Government Grants & Other Contributions 1.1 17%
2 Borrowing - External 0.2
6.3 Borrowing - Internal 3.5
8.3|Total Borrowing 3.7 56%
0.2|Direct Revenue Financing 1.4 22%
0.1|Capital Receipts 0.3 5%
9.4 6.5 100%
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Capital Financing £7m

 Capital Receipts,
£0.3m, 4%

B Government Grants &
Other Contributions,
£1.1m, 16%

| | Direct Revenue
Financing, £1.4m, 20%

B Borrowing,
£4.2 m, 60%

capi tal Fina ncing £6.5m

W Capital Receipts,

£0.3m, 5%
B Government Grants &

Other Contributions,
£1.1m, 17%

u Direct Revenue
Financing, £1.4m, 22%

B Borrowing,
£3.7 m, 56%

Balance Sheet

The balance sheet shows the financial position as at the end of the financial year, with previous<—[ Formatted: Justified
figures for comparison. It shows, in particular, the value of the assets owned and any sums
owed to and by the PCC Group. The Balance Sheet can be reviewed in the main statements

to the accounts.

The figures are dominated by the inclusion of the pension liability which is explained in detail

in the pension notes.
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Performance against Budget

In February 2020, the PCC approved a net revenue budget for 2020/21 of £135.32m of which
£131.6m was funded from Police and other Government Grants together with Council Tax
receipts.

A summarised statement of the actual net expenditure for the year attributable to the taxpayer
is set out below and compared to the approved original budget for the year:

2020/21 Budget Actual Variance
£m £m £m

Services
PCC 39.565 33.685 (5.880)
Chief Constable Delegated Budget 94.576 96.883 2.307
Joint Services 1.182 1.307 0.125
Total Service Expenditure 135.322 131.875 (3.448)

Funding
General Police Grant (63.548) (63.548) 0.000
Legacy Council Tax Grants (6.834) (6.834) 0.000
Special Grant 0.000 (0.993) (0.993)
Covid Grant 0.000 (0.731) (0.731)
Police Uplift Programme 0.000 (1.398) (1.398)
Other Government Grants (2.059) (2.295) (0.236)
Council Tax Precept (59.153) (59.153) 0.000
Total Funding (131.594) (134.952) (3.358)

Other Income

Custody Contract (2.268) (1.105) 1.163
Other Income (0.224) (0.299) (0.075)
Total Income (2.492) (1.404) 1.088
Total Funding and Other Income (134.086) (136.356) (2.270)
Total (Surplus) / Deficit 1.236 (4.481) (5.717)

Financed by Reserves
Net transfer (from) / to Reserves (1.236) 4.481 5.717

The original budget showed a planned deficit of £1.2m which would be matched by a
contribution from reserves. During the year, the regional custody contract, administered by
Lincolnshire on behalf of regional forces, came to an end. Its conclusion had not been
anticipated when the budget was set, resulting in a decrease in income of £1.2m together with
a corresponding decrease in expenditure.

The final outturn showed a total underspend of £5.7m against budget, comprised of £3.4m
additional funding together with £2.3m reduced expenditure in addition to that resulting from
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the end of the regional custody contract. This led to a surplus of £4.5m which was transferred
to reserves.

Of the £3.4m additional income received, £3.3m was as a result of government grants%g[Formatted: Justified

awarded after the budget was set:

e Special Grant — £1m;
o Police Officer Uplift Programme - £1.6m;
e Covid Support Grant - £0.7m.

Total service expenditure was less than the original budget by £3.448m of which £1.163m<*4[Formatted: Justified

related to the cessation of the regional custody contract as indicated above. The remaining
Service Expenditure variance of £2.285m for the Group differed from budget for the following
key reasons.

e The original budget provided for development funding of £3.8m, the majority of which
(£2.8m) was non-recurrent. At the time of setting the budget, plans were insufficiently
developed to allocate these funds to individual budget heads; the funding was retained
by the PCC and was to be released upon the production of business cases. In the event,
whilst a range of service developments was agreed and delivered in 2020/21, delayed
implementation, including as a result of the Covid19 pandemic, meant that £1.8m of the
available funds was not spent and, as a result, was carried forward into 2021/22.

o Capital Financing underspent by £0.4m due to slippage in the Capital Programme.

e There were underspends within the Chief Constable’s delegated budget, including Fleet
(£0.4m) as a result of reduced fuel costs during the pandemic, Premises (£0.6m) as a
result of reduced service charges at the South Park Blue Light campus. These were
offset by overspends of £0.25m on major incidents, £0.3m on police officers and £0.3m
overspend on police officer overtime.

Reserves

All reserves are held by the PCC; a number of these reserves are held to manage operational
risks within the Chief Constable’s budget.

Earmarked reserves as at 31 March 2021 total £14.3m (including regional reserves) and are
held for specific expenditure or contingencies. Movements in Earmarked Reserves are
detailed in Note 8.

As at 31 March 2021 the PCC held a General Reserve of £6.0m. There are currently no plans
to utilise the reserves to support the revenue budget.

An assessment in February 2021 indicated the range of required risk-based reserves at £6.1m
-£13.3m. Since 2018/19 the Financial Strategy has required that ‘general risk-based reserves
be maintained at the minimum point of a target range’; prior to 2018/19, the requirement had
been to maintain risk-based reserves at the mid-point of a target range. The decision in
2018/19, to increase the level of financial risk being carried by the PCC, was made so as to
mitigate the level of operational risk at the time, albeit that the funding thus released provided
only non-recurrent mitigation. In 2019, the introduction of the national police uplift programme
has provided recurrent resources to mitigate operational risk. As a result, the risk-based
reserves policy has reverted to the mid-point of the target range (£9.7m).
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Following a review of all earmarked reserves, certain of them were reallocated and others
reduced to enable risk-based reserves to be increased towards the mid-point of the target
range. Whilst not yet achieving full compliance with the revised policy, progress towards it is
clear. This is set against forecast reserves as at 1st April 2021 of £8.8m: General Reserve
£5.9m, Major Incident Reserve £1.9m and Insurance Reserve £1m.

Principal Risks

The principal risks facing the PCC Group are detailed in the Annual Governance Statement
included within these Financial Statements.

Outlook for 2021/22 and beyond

There is a balanced budget for 2021/22 this includes the following funding:
¢ Increased police grant for Lincolnshire of £4.0m (6.3% increase);
¢ An allocation of pension top-up grant of £1.2m;

e A precept increase of £3.3m (5.9%) based on an increase of an additional £14.94 per
annum for a Band D property in line with the precept referendum limit imposed by
government.

The main principles on the setting of the budget are as below:

e The baseline budget for police officers was set at a strength of 1,119 FTE. This was
based on a targeted establishment of 1,020 FTE plus the first tranche of the national
uplift of a further 50 officers, and the second tranche of 49 FTE. This means that by
March 2022 Lincolnshire will have slightly surpassed the 1,100 target operating model.
The Chief Constable and PCC have agreed to use non-recurrent funding to bring
forward further recruitment in advance of tranche 3 of the national uplift. The plan
currently being finalised is an additional intake of 60 officers in 2021/22. Should the third
tranche of the uplift not equal this amount, then future recruitment will be adjusted
accordingly to bring numbers back to an affordable level. The PCC and Chief Constable
plan to recruit a total of 120 new police officers in 2021/22;

e The current establishment of PCSOs is 85 FTE. With minor fluctuations, the budget is
based on maintaining this establishment;

e The Police Staff budget has been based on 2020/21 establishment fully costed with a
vacancy factor of 5% included to allow for staff turnover. Further changes include the
non-recurrent investment provided by the special grant funding and cost pressures
including incremental drift;

e The provision for pay awards arising in 2021/22 has been removed following the
government’s announcement to freeze pay next year. Provision has been made for the
lowest paid staff who will still receive an uplift.

The Medium-Term Financial Plan includes provisional service budgets proposed for 2022/23
to 2024/25. Forecasting remains challenging particularly as future grant allocations remain
uncertain. Indications are that the much anticipated Core Grant Distribution Review (funding
formula review) is unlikely before 2022/23 although no specific timing has been announced.

The government’s future intention in relation to grant funding allocations and limitations of
council tax increases remains unclear. Therefore, estimates have been made on prudent
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assumptions; there remains the risk that the anticipated income will be lower than assumed in
the forecast.

There is a risk relating to the expiry, in March 2022, of the initial contract term for the provision
of operational and back-office support services by Lincolnshire’s strategic partner. A project is
ongoing to transition from the contract and the outcomes may lead to cost pressures in the
provision of these services.

Nevertheless, financial balance is indicated across the medium term as a result of increased
contributions from Lincolnshire council taxpayers.

Alongside increased government funding for the national police officer uplift programme,
improved service delivery to the people of Lincolnshire will be achieved by significant
investment in ICT infrastructure and the implementation of a class-leading Command &
Control system which should provide the platform to unlock significant operational benefits
through the better use of resources and data. In addition, the budget allows for investment in
a Business Intelligence tool which is intended to provide a better understanding of demand
further increasing productivity.

Improving productivity and achieving a fairer share of government funding for Lincolnshire
remain key to maintaining safe levels of policing in the medium term.

Continuing sound financial control and planning will also be important to delivering financial
balance into the medium term as there is still no certainty around future funding settlements
especially if finances become tighter in a bid to balance public spending.

Going Concern

The concept of a going concern assumes that the functions of the Police and Crime
Commissioner and the Force will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The provisions in the Code (code of practice on local authority accounting in the United
Kingdom 2020/21) in respect of going concern reporting requirements reflect the economic
and statutory environment in which police forces operate. These provisions confirm that, as
police forces cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription, they must prepare
their financial statements on a going concern basis of accounting.

Police and Crime Commissioners and Chief Constables carry out functions essential to the
local community and are themselves revenue-raising bodies (with limits on their revenue-
raising powers arising only at the discretion of central government). If a police force were in
financial difficulty, the prospects are thus that alternative arrangements might be made by
central government either for the continuation of the functions it provides or for assistance with
the recovery of a deficit over more than one financial year. As a result of this, it would not
therefore be appropriate for the financial statements to be provided on anything other than a
going concern basis. Accounts drawn up under the Code therefore assume that a police force
will continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

COVID-19 lockdown restrictions employed within the United Kingdom created additional
demand for police forces in terms of policing the government lockdown policy in addition to
continuing normal policing functions. This gave rise to additional costs in terms of overtime
and providing personal protective equipment (PPE) to operational police officers and staff.
However, the PCC maintains a Major Incident Reserve of £1.8m to manage the financial risks
of major incidents and received additional financial support from Government to cover the
additional costs. The Government also created a scheme where Police Forces could nationally
order PPE with costs picked up centrally.
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The pandemic has not yet had the negative impact on council tax receipts which was expected
at the start of 2020/21. There was a very slight increase of 0.34% in the tax base for 2021/22.
The Government has also been proactive in supporting authorities with regard to council tax
funding by setting the following funding initiatives:

e Local Government Finance Settlement — Announced in the 2020 Spending Review, this
funding for Local Council Tax Support Schemes enables councils to continue to reduce
council tax bills for those least able to pay. This funding is paid directly by MHCLG to
PCCs and is designed to compensate for decreased precept revenue as a result of tax
base reductions resulting from the pandemic;

o Collection Fund Deficits — The MHCLG also announced that any repayment of collection
fund deficits arising from 2020/21 must be spread over the next three years; rather than
the usual one. The Government will compensate authorities for 75% of irrecoverable
losses in council tax income for 2020/21. Funding will be paid directly to PCCs in
2021/22, with the obligation that PCCs will meet the total costs from the 2020/21 deficit
over the next three years. Two Lincolnshire District Councils declared a deficit, totalling
£0.132m. The cost pressure therefore for the PCC for the next three years to 2023/24
is £0.033m pa.

Although there is a clear roadmap for releasing lockdown arrangements further outbreaks of
COVID-19 variants cannot be ruled out. This creates potential uncertainty in the operational
conditions for the future. The Force continues to learn from the experiences over the past
twelve months and is confident that the impact can be managed in 2021/22 by use of the Major
Incident Reserve and that there will be minimal impact on the general reserve balance

It has been assumed that the tax base will increase by 0.5% per annum across the Medium-
Term Financial Plan (MTFP). This is considered to be prudent level of increase given the
anticipated lengertermlonger-term impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Explanation of Financial Statements

These Financial Statements have been compiled in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2020/21.

The format and content of the financial statements is prescribed by the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accountancy in the United Kingdom 2020/21; which in turn is
underpinned by International Financial Reporting Standards.

These Financial Statements set out the PCC Group income and expenditure for the year and
its financial position at 31 March 2021. It comprises core and supplementary statements,
together with disclosure notes.

A glossary of terms can be found at the end of this publication.

The PCC Group position reflects the consolidated accounts of the PCC and the Chief
Constable. Where the PCC Group position differs from the PCC position this is made clear in
the accounting statements and notes. A separate set of accounts is produced for the Chief
Constable for Lincolnshire.

All assets, liabilities and reserves continue to be held in the main by the PCC. However, those
specifically relating to accounting entries within the Chief Constable entity are included in the
Chief Constable’s accounts. Pension liabilities have been split between the PCC and Chief
Constable accounts.
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Core Statements

Expenditure and Funding Analysis — this shows how annual expenditure is used and
funded from resources. It shows how the expenditure is allocated for decision making
purposes between the PCC, Chief Constable and Joint Services. Income and
expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting principles is presented
more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement — this shows the accounting cost in
the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation;

Movement in Reserves Statement — this shows the movement on the various reserves
held by the Force, from the start of the financial year to the end of the year. This is
analysed into usable reserves (those that can be applied to fund expenditure) and other
unusable reserves;

Balance Sheet — this represents the financial position as at the balance sheet date of
the assets and liabilities recognised. The net assets are matched by the two categories
of the reserves held;

Cash Flow Statement — this shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents during the
period. It shows how they are generated and used by classifying cash flows as
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from
operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations are funded by
the way of taxation and grant income. Investing activities represent the extent to which
cash outflows contribute to the resources for future service delivery.

Supplementary Statements

Annual Governance Statement — the PCC publishes an Annual Governance Statement
in accordance with the Delivering Good Governance guidance in order to meet the
statutory requirements set out in the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015;

Statement of Responsibilities — this explains the responsibilities for the financial affairs
and how these responsibilities are carried out;

Notes to the Accounts — the notes show details supporting each of the main accounting
statements, together with additional information to explain the financial transactions.
Note 1 contains the Accounting Policies. The purpose of these policies is to explain the
basis for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of transactions and other events
in the accounts;

Police Officer Pensions, Home Office Memorandum Account — this summarises the
transactions relating to retirement benefits paid to police officers and how these costs
are financed.
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Relationship between Accounting Statements

The different accounting statements are linked in several important ways. The relationship
between the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the movement in the
PCC Group’s total reserves is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Cash Flow statement reconciles to the balance on the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for the year and the movement in the Balance Sheet cash and cash
equivalents.

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how the expenditure is allocated for decision
making purposes between the directorates within the Force.

Signed by Julie Flint

Julie Flint CPFA MSc
Chief Finance Officer to the
Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statements of Accounts

This section explains the Police and Crime Commissioner's responsibilities for the

stewardship of the PCC’s financial affairs.
Responsibilities of The Police and Crime
Commissioner
The PCC is required to:

* make arrangements for the proper administration of
the financial affairs of the PCC and to secure that
one of its officers (the Chief Financial Officer) has the
responsibility for the administration of those affairs;

e manage affairs of the PCC to secure economic,
efficient and effective use of resources and to
safeguard its assets; and

* approve the Statement of Accounts.

| approve these audited Statement of Accounts.

Marc Jones

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire

Date:

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the
preparation of the PCC’s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
(the Code).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief
Finance Officer has:

selected suitable accounting policies and then
applied them consistently;

made judgements and estimates that were
reasonable and prudent;

complied with the Code;

kept proper accounting records which were up to
date;

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities;

assessed the PCC’s and the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern;

used the going concern basis of accounting on the
assumption that the functions of the PCC and the
Group will continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future; and

maintained such internal control as they determine
necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

| certify that the Financial Statements present a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Lincolnshire as at 31 March 2021 and
its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

Julie Flint CPFA MSc

Signed by Julie Flint
Chief Finance Officer
Date: 43/07/2021

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — YraAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

Page 54



EY

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Police and Crime Commissioner
for Lincolnshire
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Group Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2020/21

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis, which is a note to the accounts, shows how annual
expenditure is used and funded from resources. It shows how the expenditure is allocated

for decision making purposes between the PCC, CC and Joint Services.

Income and

expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting principles is presented
more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Expenditure

2019/20

Adjustments,
between Funding

Net Expenditure in
the Comprehensive

Group

Expenditure

2020/21

Adjustments
between Funding

Net Expenditure in
the Comprehensive

Chargeable tothe| ' 0 Income and| Note Chargeable tothe| =1 " Income and
General Fund ba;s Expenditure General Fund ba;; Expenditure
Statement Statement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
22,187 4122 26,309 Police and Crime Commissioner 24,068 (24) 24,044
116,725 (11,301) 105,424 Chief Constable 121,653 (15,189) 106,464
1,165 - 1,165 Joint Senvices 1,365 - 1,365
140,077 (7,179). 132,898 Cost of Services 147,086 (15,213) 131,873
799 2,172 2,971 9 Other Operating Expenditure 1,417 608 2,025
1,726 36,990 38,716 10 |Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 1,833 32,279 34,112
(145,913) (608) (146,521) 11 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (154,800) (679) (155,479)
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
(3,311) 31,375 28,064 5 Services (4,464) 16,995 12,531
3,233 Opening General Fund Balance as at 31 March 3,331
Increase/(Decrease) in Year before Transfers to
3311 Earmarked Resenves 4,464
(3.212) 8 |Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Resenves (1,817)
3331 Closing General Fund as at 31 March 5,978
2019/20 Group 2020/21
Net Expenditure Net Expenditure
Expenditure Adjustments in the Expenditure Adjustments in the
bet Funding| Compi Funding| Compr
Chargeable to ! Note Chargeable to !
and Accounting Income and and Accounting Income and
the General Fund . " the General Fund . "
basis Expenditure basis Expenditure
Statement Statement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
22,187 4,122 26,309 Police and Crime Commissioner 24,633 (293) 24,340
116,725 (11,301) 105,424 Chief Constable 121,653 (15,189) 106,464
1,165 - 1,165 Joint Services 1,365 - 1,365
140,077 (7,179) 132,898 Cost of Services 147,651 (15,482) 132,169
799 2,172 2,971 8 | Other Operating Expenditure 879 608 1,487
Financing and Investment Income and
1,726 36,990 38,716 9 |Expenditure 1,806 32,279 34,085
(145,913) (608) (146,521)| 10 |Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (154,800) (679) (155,479)
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
(3,311) 31,375 28,064 | 4 |Services (4,464) 16,726 12,262
3,233 Opening General Fund Balance as at 31 March 3,332
Increase/(Decrease) in Year before Transfers
3,311 to Earmarked Reserves 4,464
(3,212) 7 | Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (1,817)
3,332 Closing General Fund as at 31 March 5,979
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PCC Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2020/21

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded
from resources. It shows how the expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes
between the PCC, CC and Joint Services. Income and expenditure accounted for under
generally accepted accounting principles is presented more fully in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

2019/20 PCC 2020/21
Net Expenditure Net Expenditure
Adjusti t: i Adjust t: i
Expenditure Justments in the Expenditure justments in the
between Funding. Comprehensive between Funding| Comprehensive
Chargeable to the N Note Chargeable to the N
General Fund, 2"d Accounting Income and General Funa| 2nd Accounting Income and
basis Expenditure basis Expenditure
Statement Statement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
22,187 4,122 26,309 Police and Crime Commissioner 24,068 (24) 24,044
834 - 834 Joint Services 482 - 482
23,021 4122 27,143 Cost of Services 24,550 (24) 24,526
1) 2172 2171 9 |Other Operating Expenditure 540 608 1,148
Financing and Investment Income and
1,726 515 2,241 | 10 | Expenditure 1,833 299 2,132
(145,913) (608) (146,521) 11 |Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (154,800) (679) (155,479)
117,857 - 117,857 | 13 |Expenditure - Intra Group financing 123,413 - 123,413
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
(3,310) 6,201 2,891 5 |Services (4,464) 204 (4,260)
3,233 Opening General Fund Balance as at 31 March 3,331
Increase/(Decrease) in Year before Transfers
3,310 to Earmarked Reserves 4,464
(3.212) 8 | Net transfers (to) / from Earmarked Reserves (1,817)
33T TS TG GETETaT FUNG 38 a7 ST WareH 5978
2019/20 PCC 2020/21
Net Expenditure Net Expenditure
Adjusti t: i Adjust t: i
Expenditure ustments in the Expenditure justments in the
between Funding| Comprehensive between Funding| Comprehensive
Chargeable to the N Note Chargeable to the N
General Fund and Accounting Income and General Fund and Accounting Income and
basis Expenditure basis Expenditure
Statement Statement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
22,187 4,122 26,309 Police and Crime Commissioner 24,633 (293) 24,340
834 - 834 Joint Services 482 - 482
23,021 4,122 27,143 Cost of Services 25,115 (293) 24,822
) 2,172 2,171 8 |Other Operating Expenditure 2 608 610
Financing and Investment Income and
1,726 515 2,241 9 | Expenditure 1,806 299 2,105
(145,913) (608) (146,521)] 10 | Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (154,800) (679) (155,479)
117,857 - 117,857 | 12 |Expenditure - Intra Group financing 123,413 - 123,413
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
(3,310) 6,201 2891 4 |[Services (4,464) (65) (4,529)
3,233 Opening General Fund Balance as at 31 March 3,331
Increase/(Decrease) in Year before Transfers
3,310 to Earmarked Reserves 4,464
(3,212) 7 | Net transfers (to) / from Earmarked Reserves (1,817)
3,331 Closing General Fund as at 31 March 5,978
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Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2020/21

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the
year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather
than the amount to be funded from taxation. The PCC Group raises taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
and the Movement in Reserves Statement.

2019/20 2020/21
Gross Gross| Net Note Gross| Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income| Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
34,666 (8,357). 26,309 Police and Crime Commissioner 32,192 (8,148) 24,044
111,500 (6,076) 105,424 Chief Constable 115,208 (8,744) 106,464
1,155 10 1,165 Joint Senices 1,365 - 1,365
147,321 (14,423) 132,898 Cost of Services 148,765 (16,892) 131,873
3,764 (793) 2,971 9 | Other Operating Expenditure 2,958 (933). 2,025
38,880 (164) 38,716 10 Emanc\r.\g and Investment Income and 34,150 @8) 34112
xpenditure
(146,521) (146,521), 11 | Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income - (155,479) (155,479)
189,965 (161,901) 28,064 (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of 185,873 (173,342) 12,531
Services
(7,841) (7.841) 28 E\Surp\us)/ Deficit on Revaluation of Non-Current R 02 ©02)
ssets
(156,099) (156,099)| 30 Actua.nal (Qams) or Losses on Pension Assets 307.711 ~ 307.711
and Liabilities
Other Comprehensive Income and
- (163,940) (163,940) Expenditure 307,711 (902) 306,809
189,965 (325,841) (135,876) Total Comprehensive Income and 493,584 (174,244) 319,340
Expenditure
2019/20 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Not Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income| Expenditure e Expenditure Income| Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
34,666 (8,357) 26,309 Police and Crime Commissioner 32,488 (8,148) 24,340
111,500 (6,076) 105,424 Chief Constable 115,209 (8,744) 106,464
1,155 10 1,165 Joint Services 1,365 - 1,365
147,321 (14,423) 132,898 Cost of Services 149,062 (16,892) 132,169
3,764 (793) 2,971 8 |Other Operating Expenditure 2,420 (933) 1,487
Fi i d | tment | d
38,880 (164) 38716 | 9 | ancingandinvestmentincome an 34,123 (38) 34,085
Expenditure
- (146,521) (146,521)| 10 |Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (155,479) (155,479)
Surpl Deficit on the Provisi f
189,965 |  (161,901) 28,064 (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision o 185,605 |  (173,342) 12,262
Services
(Surplus) / Deficit on Revaluation of Non-
- (7,841) 78] 27 |G eets (1,023) (1,023)
Actuarial (Gai Ls Pensi
(156,099) - (156,009) 29 |Actuarial (Gains) or Losses on Pension 310,779 - 310,779
Assets and Liabilities
Other Comprehensive Income and
(156,099) (7,841) (163,940) Expenditure 310,779 (1,023) 309,756
Total Ci h ive | d
33,866 | (169,742) (135,876) otal tomprehensive Income an 496,384 | (174,365) 322,018

Expenditure
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There were no acquisitions or discontinued operations in the current year or preceding year.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 requires
that the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) reflects the internal

management reporting and decision—makingdecision-making arrangements of the
organisation.

The strategic partnership contract is managed by the PCC and has been included within the
annual statements for the PCC in line with the above arrangements. The cost relating to the
G4S strategic partnership of £23.2m for 2020/21 (2019/20: £22.4m) is included in the Group
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shown above. See note 2 for more
information.

The year-to-yearyear-to-year variance on actuarial (gains) or losses on the pensions assets
and liabilities relates largely to losses arising on changes in financial assumptions due to
market conditions.
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PCC Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 2020/21

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the
year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather
than the amount to be funded from taxation. The PCC Group raises taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the
accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

and th
2019/20 2020/21
Gross Gross Income Net Gross Gross Income Net
Expenditure Expenditure| Note Expenditure Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
34,666 (8,357) 26,309 Police and Crime Commissioner 32,488 (8,148) 24,340
818 16 834 Joint Services 482 - 482
35,484 (8,341) 27,143 Cost of Services 32,970 (8,148) 24,822
2233 (62) 2171 8 |Other Operating Expenditure 931 (321) 610
2405 (164) 2241 9 |Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 2,143 (38); 2,105
(146,521) (146,521), 10 |Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income - (155,479) (155,479)
117,857 - 117,857 Expenditure - Intra Group financing 123,413 - 123,413
157,979 (155,088) 2,891 (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 159,457 (163,986) (4,529)
(7.841) (7.841) 27 (Surplus) / Deficit on Revaluation of Non-Current _ (1,023) (1.023)
Assets
Actuarial (Gains) or Losses on Pension Assets and
(8,814) - (8,814)| 29 Liabilities 8,259 - 8,259
(8,814) (7,841), (16,655) Other C ive Income and i 8,259 (1,023) 7,236
149,165 (162,929) (13,764) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 167,716 (165,009) 2,707
e Movement in Reserves Statement.
2019/20 2020/21
Gross Gross Income Net Gross Gross Income Net
Expenditure Expenditure| Note Expenditure Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
34,666 (8,357) 26,309 Police and Crime Commissioner 32,192 (8,148) 24,044
818 16 834 Joint Senices 482 - 482
35,484 (8,341) 27,143 Cost of Services 32,674 (8,148) 24,526
2,233 (62) 2,171 9 | Other Operating Expenditure 1,469 (321) 1,148
2,405 (164); 2,241 | 10 |Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 2,170 (38) 2,132
(146,521), (146,521)| 11 |Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income - (155,479), (155,479)
117,857 - 117,857 Expenditure - Intra Group financing 123,413 - 123,413
157,979 (155,088) 2,891 (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 159,726 (163,986) (4,260)
(7,841). (7.841) 28 (Surplus) / Deficit on Revaluation of Non-Current ~ (©02) (©02)
Assets
8:814) ©814) 30 Actua.r!a\ (Gains) or Losses on Pension Assets and 7323 _ 7323
Liabilities
(16,655) (16,655) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 7,323 (902). 6,421
157,979 (171,743). (13,764) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 167,049 (164,888) 2,161

There were no acquisitions or discontinued operations in the current year or preceding year.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 requires
that the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) reflects the internal
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management reporting and decision—makingdecision-making arrangements of the
organisation.

The strategic partnership contract is managed by the PCC and has been included within the
annual statements for the PCC. The cost relating to the G4S strategic partnership of £23.2m
for 2020/21 (2019/20: £22.3m) is shown in the PCC Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement shown above. See note 2 for more information.
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement 2020/21

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the reserves held
by the PCC Group, analysed into usable reserves and unusable reserves. The Surplus or
(Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the PCC
Group's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged
to the General Fund Balance. The Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers
to or from Earmarked Reserves undertaken by the PCC Group.
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Group

Balance at 31 March 2019
Movement in Reserves during 2019/20
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of senices

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure

Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations (Note 7)

Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves

Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note
8)

Increase/(Decrease) in 2019/20

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward
Movement in Reserves during 2020/21
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of senices

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations (Note 7)

Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves

Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note
8)

Increase/(Decrease) in 2020/21

Balance at 31 March 2021 carried forward

Capital
Receipts

Capital
Grants

Reserve| Unapplied

£000

£000
292

(280)

(280)

(280)

12

(12)

(12)

(12)

Earmarked
Reserves

£000
9,227

3,212

3,212

12,439

1,817

1,817

14,256

General
Fund
Balance

£000
3,233

(28,064)

(28,064)

31,375
3,311
(3,212)

99

3,331

(12,531)

(12,531)

16,995
4,464
(1,817)
2,647

5,978

Total
Usable
Reserves

£000
12,751

(28,064)

(28,064)

31,095

3,031

3,031

15,782

(12,531)

(12,531)

16,983

4,452

4,452

20,234

Unusable| Total Group

Reserves
£000
(1,544,725)

163,940

163,940

(31,095)

132,845

132,845

(1,411,881)

(306,809)

(306,809)

(16,983)

(323,792)

(323,792)

(1,735,673)

Reserves
£000
(1,531,974)

(28,064)

163,940

135,876

135,876

135,876

(1,396,099)

(12,531)

(306,809)

(319,340)

(319,340)

(319,340)

(1,715,439)
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Capital Capital General
Group Receipts Grants | Earmarked Fund
Reserve | Unapplied| Reserves Balance
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2019 - 292 9,227 3,233
Movement in Reserves during 2019/20
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of } } R (28,064)
services ’
Other Comprehensive Income and R R _ R
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and _ _ R (28,064)
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and R (280) ~ 31375
funding basis under regulations (Note 7) !
Net Increase /(Decrease) before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves (280) 3311
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves R R 3212 (3.212)
(Note 8) " i
Increasel/(Decrease) in 2019/20 - (280) 3,212 99
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried _ 12 12,439 3332
forward ’ i
Movement in Reserves during 2020/21
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of R R ~ (12,531)
services ’
Other Comprehensive Income and R R ~ R
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and _ ~ R (12,531)
Expenditure ’
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and
- 12 - 16,995
funding basis under regulations (Note 7) (12)
Net Increase /(Decrease) before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 12 44464
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves R R 1817 (1,817)
(Note 8) ! ’
Increase/(Decrease) in 2020/21 - (12) 1,817 2,647
Balance at 31 March 2021 carried R R 14.256 5979

forward

Total
Usable
Reserves

£000
12,751

(28,064)

(28,064)

31,095

3,031

3,031

15,782

(12,531)

(12,531)

16,983

4,452

4,452

20,234

Unusable
Reserves

£000
(1,544,725)

163,940

163,940

(31,095)

132,845

132,845

(1,411,881)

(306,809)

(306,809)

(16,983)

(323,792)

(323,792)

(1,735,674)

Total
Group
Reserves

£000
(1,531,974)

(28,064)

163,940

135,876

135,876

135,876

(1,396,099)

(12,531)

(306,809)

(319,340)

(319,340)

(319,340)

(1,715,440)
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Capital Capital General
Group Receipts Grants | Earmarked Fund
Reserve | Unapplied| Reserves Balance
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2019 - 292 9,227 3,233
Movement in Reserves during 2019/20
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of R R R (28,064)
services ’
Other Comprehensive Income and R R ~ _
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and _ _ R (28,064)
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and
- 280 - 31,375
funding basis under regulations (Note 6) (280)
Net Increase /(Decrease) before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves (280) 3311
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves } } 3212 (3.212)
(Note 7) i ’
Increase/(Decrease) in 2019/20 - (280) 3,212 99
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried _ 12 12,439 3332
forward i !
Movement in Reserves during 2020/21
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of R R R (12,531)
services ’
Other Comprehensive Income and R R ~ _
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and _ _ R (12,531)
Expenditure ’
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and
- 12 - 16,995
funding basis under regulations (Note 6) (12)
Net Increase /(Decrease) before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 12 4464
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves } } 1817 (1,817)
(Note 7) ! ’
Increase/(Decrease) in 2020/21 - (12) 1,817 2,647
Balance at 31 March 2021 carried _ _ 14,256 5.979

forward

Total
Usable
Reserves

£000
12,751

(28,064)

(28,064)

31,095

3,031

3,031

15,782

(12,531)

(12,531)

16,983

4,452

4,452

20,234

Unusable
Reserves

£000
(1,544,725)

163,940

163,940

(31,095)

132,845

132,845

(1,411,881)

(306,809)

(306,809)

(16,983)

(323,792)

(323,792)

(1,735,674)

Total
Group
Reserves

£000
(1,531,974)

(28,064)

163,940

135,876

135,876

135,876

(1,396,099)

(12,531)

(306,809)

(319,340)

(319,340)

(319,340)

(1,715,440)
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Capital Capital General
Group Receipts Grants | Earmarked Fund
Reserve | Unapplied| Reserves Balance
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2019 - 292 9,227 3,233
Movement in Reserves during 2019/20
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of R R R (28,064)
services :
Other Comprehensive Income and R R R _
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and R _ R (28,064)
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and
- 280 - 31,375
funding basis under regulations (Note 6) (280)
Net Increase /(Decrease) before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves (280) 3311
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves } } 3212 (3.212)
(Note 7) i i
Increase/(Decrease) in 2019/20 - (280) 3,212 99
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried R 12 12,439 3332
forward i !
Movement in Reserves during 2020/21
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of R R R (12,262)
services !
Other Comprehensive Income and R R R _
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and R _ R (12,262)
Expenditure ”
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and
- 12 - 16,726
funding basis under regulations (Note 6) (12)
Net Increase /(Decrease) before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 12 4,454
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves } } 1817 (1,817)
(Note 7) ! !
Increase/(Decrease) in 2020/21 - (12) 1,817 2,647
Balance at 31 March 2021 carried R _ 14,256 5.979

forward

Total
Usable
Reserves

£000
12,751

(28,064)

(28,064)

31,095

3,031

3,031

15,782

(12,262)

(12,262)

16,714

4,452

4,452

20,234

Unusable
Reserves

£000
(1,544,725)

163,940

163,940

(31,095)

132,845

132,845

(1,411,881)

(309,756)

(309,756)

(16,714)

(326,470)

(326,470)

(1,738,352)

Total
Group
Reserves

£000
(1,531,974)

(28,064)

163,940

135,876

135,876

135,876

(1,396,099)

(12,262)

(309,756)

(322,018)

(322,018)

(322,018)

(1,718,118)
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PCC Movement in Reserves Statement 2020/21

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the PCC, analysed into usable and unusable reserves. The Surplus or
(Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the PCC's
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the
General Fund Balance. The Net Increase / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked
Reserves line shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers
to or from Earmarked Reserves undertaken by the PCC.
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Capital Capital General
Eal ked
PCC Receipts Grants Rre"s‘:'v:s Fund
Reserve| Unapplied Balance
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forward - 292 9,227 3,233
Movement in Reserves during 2019/20
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services - - - (2,891)
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - (2,891)
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and funding
- 280 - 6,201
basis under regulations (Note 6) (280) i
Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to
- 2 - 1
Earmarked Reserves (280) 3310
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 7) - - 3,212 (3,212)
Increase/(Decrease) in 2019/20 - (280) 3,212 98
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward - 12 12,439 3,331
Movement in Reserves during 2020/21
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services - - - 4,260
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - 4,260
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and funding ~ (12) ~ 204
basis under regulations (Note 6)
Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to
- 12 - 4,464
Earmarked Reserves 12
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 7) - - 1,817 (1,817)
Increase/(Decrease) in 2020/21 - (12) 1,817 2,647
Balance at 31 March 2021 carried forward - - 14,256 5,978

Total
Usable
Reserves

£000

12,751

(2,891)

(2,891)
5,921

3,030

3,030

15,782

4,260

4,260
192

4,452

4,452

20,234

Unusable
Reserves

£000

(20,140)

16,655
16,655

(5,921)

10,734

10,734

(9,406)

(6,421)
(6,421)

(192)

(6,613)

(6,613)

(16,019)

Total PCC
Reserves

£000

(7,389)

(2,891)
16,655

13,764

13,764

13,764

6,376

4,260
(6,421)

(2,161)

(2,161)

(2,161)

4,215
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PCC

Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forward

Movement in Reserves during 2019/20

Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

ofal Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Adjustments betw een accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations (Note 6)

Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves

Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 7)

Increase/(Decrease) in 2019/20
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward

Movement in Reserves during 2020/21

Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations (Note 6)

Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves

Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 7)

Increase/(Decrease) in 2020/21

Balance at 31 March 2021 carried forward

Ca;.n(al Capital Earmarked General
Receipts Grants Reserves Fund
Reserve| Unapplied Balance

£000 £000 £000 £000
- 292 9,227 3,233
- - - (2,891)
- - - Z39)
- (280) - 6,201
- (280) - 3,310
- - 3,212 (3,212)
- (280) 3,212 98
- 12 12,439 3,331
- - - 4,529
- - - 4,529
- (12) - (65)
. (12) - 4,464
- - 1,817 (1,817)
- (12) 1,817 2,647
- - 14,256 5,978

Total Unusable
Usable Reserves

Reserves
£000 £000

12,751 (20,140)

(2,891) -
- 16,655

(2,891)| 16,655
5,921 (5,921)

3,030 10,734

3,030 10,734

15,782 (9,406)
4,529 -
- (7,236)
4,529 (7,236)
7 77
4,452 (7,159)
4,452 (7,159)

20,234 | (16,565)

Total PCC
Reserves

£000

(7,389)

(2,891)
16,655

13,764

13,764

13,764

6,376

4,529
(7,236)

(2,707)

(2,707)

(2,707)

3,669
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Capital Capital General
PCC Receipts Grants Earmarked Fund Total Usable Unusable| Total PCC
N Reserves| Reserves| Reserves| Reserves
Reserve  Unapplied Balance
£000! £000 £000 £000! £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forward - 292 9,227 3,233 12,751 (20,140) (7,389)
Movement in Reserves during 2019/20
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of senvices - - - (2,891). (2,891) - (2,891)
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - - - 16,655 16,655
Total Comp ive Income and - - - (2,891) (2,891) 16,655 13,764
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis _ . _
under regulations (Note 7) (280) 6.201 5.921 (5.921)
Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked (280) N 3,310 3,030 10,734 13,764
Reserves
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 8) - - 3,212 (3,212). - - -
Increase/(Decrease) in 2019/20 - (280) 3,212 98 3,030 10,734 13,764
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward - 12 12,439 3,331 15,782 (9,406) 6,376
Movement in Reserves during 2020/21
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of senices - - - 4,260 4,260 - 4,260
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - - - (6,421). (6,421)
Total Comp ive Income and - - - 4,260 4,260 (6,421) (2,161)
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis
under regulations (Note 7) - (12) - 204 192 (192) -
Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked (12) R 4,468 4,452 6,613) @2161)
Reserves
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 8) - - 1,817 (1,817). - - -
Increasel/(Decrease) in 2020/21 - (12) 1,817 2,647 4,452 (6,613) (2,161)
Balance at 31 March 2021 carried forward - - 14,256 5,978 20,234 (16,019) 4,215
Ca?ltal Capital Earmarked General Total Unusable| Total PCC
PCC Receipts Grants Fund Usable
N Reserves Reserves| Reserves
Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forward - 292 9,227 3,233 12,751 (20,140) (7,389)
Movement in Reserves during 2019/20
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services - - - (2,891) (2,891) - (2,891)
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - - - 16,655 16,655
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - (2,891) (2,891) 16,655 13,764
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and funding
- 280, - 6,201 5,921 5,921 -
basis under regulations (Note 7) (280) ( )
Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to R (280) _ 3,310 3,030 10,734 13,764
Earmarked Reserves
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 8) - - 3,212 (3,212) - - -
Increase/(Decrease) in 2019/20 - (280) 3,212 98 3,030 10,734 13,764
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward - 12 12,439 3,331 15,782 (9,406) 6,376
Movement in Reserves during 2020/21
Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services - - - 4,260 4,260 - 4,260
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - - - (6,421) (6,421)
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - - 4,260 4,260 (6,421) (2,161)
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and funding
- 12, - 204 192 192 -
basis under regulations (Note 7) 12) (192)
Net Increase /(Decrease) before Transfers to
- 12] - 4,464 4,452 6,613 2,161
Earmarked Reserves (12) ( ) ¢ )
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 8) - - 1,817 (1,817) - - -
Increase/(Decrease) in 2020/21 - (12) 1,817 2,647 4,452 (6,613) (2,161)
Balance at 31 March 2021 carried forward - - 14,256 5,978 20,234 (16,019) 4,215
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Group and PCC Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

The Balance Sheet shows the value of the assets and liabilities recognised by the PCC Group
and the PCC. For each entity the net assets are matched by the reserves held. Reserves are
reported as Usable and Unusable Reserves. Unusable reserves include reserves that hold
unrealised gains and losses, where amounts would only become available to provide services
if the assets were sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in
Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations'.
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31 March 2020

PCC
£000

47,269
2,120

49,389

250
454
11,456
6,152
20,726

(1,073)
(10,210)
(3,026)
(1,296)
(196)
(18,215)
(28,869)
(13,629)
(3,026)

(45,524)

6,376

15,782
(9,406)
6,376

Group
£000

47,269
2,120

49,389

250
454
13,870
6,152
20,726

(1,073)
(12,624)
(3,026)
(1,313)
(196)
(18,232)
(28,869)
(1,415,979)
(3,026)
(108)

(1,447,982)
(1,396,099)

15,782
(1,411,881)
(1,396,099)

Note

14
16
22

20
21
22
23

47
24
19
25
12

47
45
19
25

26
27

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

Long-Term Debtors
Long-Term Assets

Assets Held for Sale
Inventories

Short-Term Debtors

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets

Short-Term Borrowing

Short-Term Creditors

Other Short Term Liabilities

Short-Term Provisions

Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance (< 1 yr)
Current Liabilities

Long-Term Borrowing
Pension Liabilities

Other Long-Term Liabilities
Long-Term Provisions

Long-Term Liabilities

Net Assets

Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves
Total Reserves

31 March 2021

PCC
£000

49,928
1,536
25
51,489

(18,208)

(28,201)
(21,707)

(49,908)

4,215
20,234
(16,019)

4,215

Group
£000

49,928
1,536
25
51,489

(21,299)

(28,201)
(1,741,271)

(75)
(1,769,547)
(1,715,439)

20,234
(1,735,673)
(1,715,439)
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31 March 2020

P I
47,269 47,269 | 13 | Property, Plant and Equipment
2,120 2,120 | 15 |Intangible Assets
- - 21 | Long-Term Debtors
49,389 49,389 Long-Term Assets
250 250 | 19 |Assets Held for Sale
454 454 | 20 |Inventories
13,870 13,870 | 21 |Short-Term Debtors
6,152 6,152 | 22 |Cash and Cash Equivalents
20,726 20,726 Current Assets
(1,073) (1,073)| 46 |Short-Term Borrow ing
(12,624) (12,624) 23 | Short-Term Creditors
(3,026) (3,026)| 18 |Other Short Term Liabilities
(1,296) (1,313)| 24 |Short-Term Provisions
(196) (196), 11 |Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance (< 1 yr)
(18,215) (18,232) Current Liabilities
(28,869) (28,869), 46 | Long-TermBorrowing
(13,629)| (1,415,979) 44 |Pension Liabilities
(3,026) (3,026) 18 |Other Long-Term Liabilities
- (108)| 24 |Long-Term Provisions
(45,524)  (1,447,982) Long-Term Liabilities
6,376 (1,396,099) Net Assets
15,782 15,782 | 25 |Usable Reserves
(9,406) (1,411,881)| 26 | Unusable Reserves
6,376 (1,396,099) Total Reserves

These wraudited accounts were signed on 43-July-2021-

Signed by Julie Flint

Julie Flint CPFA MSc
Chief Finance Officer
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31 March 2021

PCC

£000
49,510
1,536
25
51,071

389
14,622
8,907
23,918
(1,104)
(14,482)
(3,391)
(1,298)
(201)
(20,476)
(28,201)
(22,643)

(50,844)

3,669
20,234
(16,565)

3,669

Group
£000

49,510
1,536
25
51,071

389
14,622
8,907
23,918
(1,104)
(14,482)
(3,391)
(1,313)
(201)
(20,491)

(28,201)
(1,744,339)

(76)
(1,772,616)
(1,718,118)

20,234
(1,738,352)
(1,718,118)
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Group and PCC Cash Flow Statement 2020/21

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the PCC
Group during the financial year. The statement shows the cash and cash equivalents by
operating, investing and financing activities. The net cash flows arising from operating
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the PCC Group are
funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by
the PCC Group. Investing activities represent the cash outflows relating to resources that
contribute to the Group's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities
are useful in predicting commitments to future cash flows by providers of capital to the PCC
Group.

2019/20 2020/21
PCC Group| Note PCC Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
2,891 28,064 Net (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (4,260) 12,531

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for

non-cash movements (9,601)|  (26,394)

(10,929)| (36,100)| 33

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the

62 62| 34 - ) R - X . o 321 321
provision of services that are investing and financina activities
(7,974) (7,974) Net Cash (Inflows) or Outflows from Operating Activities (13,540)| (13,542)
6,640 6,640 36 | Investing Activities 6,641 6,641
3,314 3,314 37 |Financing Activities 4,146 4,146
1,980 1,980 Net (Increase) or Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,755) (2,755)
8,131 8,131 23 |Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Reporting Period 6,151 6,151
6,151 6,151 23 |Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Reporting Period 8,906 8,906
2019/20 2020/21
PCC Group| Note PCC Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
2,891 28,064 Net (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (4,529) 12,262

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for

(10.929)]  (36,100)| 32 non-cash movements

(8,669)| (25.462)

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the

62 621 3 provision of services that are investing and financina activities 2 21
(7,974) (7,974) Net Cash (Inflows) or Outflows from Operating Activities (12,877)| (12,879)
6,640 6,640 35 | Investing Activities 6,102 6,102
3,314 3,314 36 |Financing Activities 4,022 4,022
1,980 1,980 Net (Increase) or Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,755) (2,755)
8,131 8,131 22 |Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Reporting Period 6,151 6,151
6,151 6,151 22 |Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Reporting Period 8,906 8,906
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Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire

Notes to the Accounts

The notes below provide additional explanation or support for the information contained within
the main financial statements for the PCC Group and PCC (Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves Statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow
Statement). Where the balances and transactions explained are the same between the PCC
Group and PCC the note will only provide one explanation, where there are differences
between the PCC Group and PCC balances, the notes will outline both in the required detail.

Values are rounded to nearest £1,000 unless specified otherwise. Please note some slight
rounding differences may occur.

1. Accounting Policies
1.1. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the PCC’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial
year and its position at the year end of 31 March 2021. The PCC is required to prepare an
Annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015
which require the statements to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

All accounting policies that are material to the production of the accounts are described in
this section.

1.2. Prior period adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimate and
Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively,
i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior
period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of
transactions, other events and conditions on the PCC’s financial position or financial
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated
otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as
if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

1.3. Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are

made or received.
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Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision
of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the
service recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract;

Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried
as inventories on the Balance Sheet;

Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees)
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when
payments are made;

Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the
contract;

Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

1.4. Non-Current Assets — Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are:

Held for operational use, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes; and

Expected to be used during more than one period.

Classification

Property, plant and equipment is classified under the following headings in the PCC’s
balance sheet:

Operational Assets:

= Land and Buildings;

= Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment;
Non-Operational Assets:

= Surplus Assets; and

= Assets Under Construction.

Initial Recognition

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and
equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
PCC Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that
maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — UnraAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

Page 77



or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is
incurred.

e Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
= The purchase price;

= Costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management;

= The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located.

The PCC Group does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under
construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless
the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the
cash flows of the PCC Group). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an
exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the
PCC Group.

De Minimis Level

The PCC has a de minimis level of £10k for recognising property, plant and equipment.
This means that any item or scheme which meets the above criteria which is greater than
£10k will be treated as capital. ltems below £10k may also be considered for capital
expenditure on a case by case basis. This relates to initial recognition and subsequent
expenditure on assets.

Subsequent Expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the
directly attributable cost is added to the asset’s carrying value. Where subsequent
expenditure is simply restoring the asset to the specification assumed by its economic
useful life then the expenditure is charged to operating expenses. Where considered
appropriate, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for
recognition above.

Where material the carrying value of the component replaced is de-recognised. Where the
value is not known the value of the enhancement is used as a proxy. Indexation is used to
deduce historic cost and a revaluation reserve. De-recognition costs are charged initially
against any revaluation reserve for the asset and then to the relevant service lines in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Measurement after Recognition — Valuation Approach

Property, plant and equipment assets are valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and
in accordance with the Practice Statements in the Appraisal and Valuation Standards
published by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), in particular UK Practice
Statement 1.1 — 1.3. The PCC may rely on the advice of other relevant expert managers to
value other assets.
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Property, plant and equipment assets are classified into the groupings required by the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. All operational and non-operational land and
properties were subjected to a full revaluation exercise at 1 April 2019. This valuation has
been updated as at 31 March each year since, by way of a desktop revaluation of all assets.

Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

All valuations are in accordance with the capital accounting rules.
1.5. Operational Assets
1.5.1. Land and Operational Properties:

Where the assets are considered by the Valuers to be specialist in nature (for example
custody suites in operational police stations) they are valued at current value with
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) methodology, reflecting their value to the PCC in
their current use. Due to the specialist nature of these buildings, the DRC value is
normally higher than open market value. Where the assets are not considered to be
specialist in nature, they are valued at current value, determined as the amount that
would be paid for the asset in its existing use (EUV). This requirement is met by providing
a valuation on the basis of existing use value (EUV) in accordance with UKPS 1.3 of the
RICS Valuation Standards.

It should be noted that the Blue Light Campus, Lincoln’s new joint fire, police and
ambulance station on South Park is considered as wholly specialised by the Valuers and
is therefore valued at DRC.

1.6. Non-Operational Assets
1.6.1. Surplus assets

Assets which the PCC no longer operates or are no longer used for service delivery, but
are not investment properties or meet the definition for held for sale. They are valued
at fair value and measured and depreciated in line with the operational asset class.
Current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing
use (EUV), is used.

1.6.2. Assets Under Construction

Assets Under Construction are held at historical cost. When these assets are
operationally complete, they will be reclassified into the appropriate asset class and
valued under the adopted approach.

1.7. Valuation Programme

In years when there is a full revaluation (every 5 years) the steps to account for assets
involve valuing assets at the start of the financial year, and then considering impairment
issues at the end of the year.

In all other years, the year-end valuation encompasses all changes in value, whether from
additions, disposals, changes in market value, impairment or other consumption of
economic benefits.

The next full valuation will be carried out in 2024/25.
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1.8. Component Accounting for Property, Plant and Equipment
1.8.1. The PCC’s Componentisation Policy
The Code requires that:
e Land and buildings should be accounted for separately;

e Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant
in relation to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately.

1.8.2. Identifying Components

Consideration should be given to the potential impact of different asset lives on
depreciation calculations. These will be large value items where asset lives are greatly
exaggerated by ignoring the fact that parts of the asset need regular replacement over
the life of the main asset.

Only those components with material values and significantly different useful lives are
classified as separate components in the asset register. Only assets with a value of at
least £500k are reviewed for potential components.

Component assets will have their own life applied as appropriate and the table below
should be used where a valuation has not been provided at the time of capitalisation.

The table should also be used to apply useful existing life for MRP calculations. (N.B. It
may not be prudent to charge MRP over the life of an existing building).

Component Asset Life
Structure 50 years
Roof 35 years
Windows 45 years
Mechanical and Engineering 15 years

1.8.3. Subsequent Capital Expenditure

The process of improving and renovating existing buildings means that some parts of
the structure need to be derecognised before capitalisation of the new expenditure can
take place. The steps will be:

o Treat the subsequent expenditure as an addition, with the appropriate new asset
life value;

o De-recognise the original asset, treat as a loss on disposal,
¢ Adopt method for appropriate value for de-recognition for part of a component such
as part of a roof. May take value of replacement part to be proxy value of old part

but will need to discount back to start of asset life;

e Compare the valuation of the asset with its new carrying value for impairment or
revaluation.
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1.8.4. Revaluation Reserve

Each component will be separately recognised in the revaluation reserve and hence
easy to identify for any future asset replacement.

1.9. Revaluation Gains and Losses

Movements in value arising from revaluation of assets are reflected in the value of the
assets held on the balance sheet.

1.9.1. Recognizing a Revaluation Gain or Loss

Increases as a result of revaluations are debited to the appropriate asset account, with
the opposite entry going to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains,
except to the extent where it reverses a previous revaluation loss that was charged to a
service revenue account within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
In this case the revaluation gain will first be used to offset the previous loss and any
further gain is then taken to the Revaluation Reserve. Component assets are treated as
separate assets and therefore revalued separately. Revaluation gains charged to
Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services are transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account and reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Decreases as a result of revaluation which are not specific to one asset but affect several
are revaluations losses rather than impairments. The decrease is recognised in the
Revaluation Reserve up to the balance in respect of each asset affected and then in
Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Any such charge taken to Surplus or Deficit
on Provision of Services is then transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only,
the date of its formal implementation. Any movements on revaluation arising before this
date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

1.10. Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on all assets with a finite useful life which is determined at the time
of acquisition. (The life may be revalued by valuers, in accordance with the revaluation
program). Depreciation is charged against assets from after the month they are capitalised,
to the month that they are disposed, decommissioned or reach the end of their useful life.
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The policy on useful asset life at acquisition is as follows:

Asset category Asset life* Comments

Operational buildings | 50 yrs May vary from 25 to 75 years, due to revaluation or other
justification to change the life at acquisition. Justification to use
a life other than 50 years will be provided for audit purposes.

See section 1.8 for component policy and asset useful lives.

Vehicles 3-5yrs This reflects the longer UEL of the assets in the force.

ICT equipment 5-8yrs This covers the operational day to day ICT equipment. Special
projects and new Implementations will be covered by specialist
and other projects.

Specialist equipment | 10 - 15 yrs This covers all other projects e.g. IT projects and office
refurbishment and other assets over £10,000 not covered by the
above.

Justification of life used to be provided to ensure consistency.

*at acquisition

Depreciation is calculated as the current value of the asset divided by the useful existing
life of the asset. Revaluation gains are depreciated along with the historic cost of the asset.
The difference between current value depreciation and the depreciation that would have
been chargeable based on the historic cost is transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

For surplus assets awaiting disposal, depreciation is not charged to services. No
depreciation is charged on Land, Assets Under Construction and Assets Held for Sale.
Depreciation of an asset begins when the asset becomes available for use and ceases
when the asset has been de-recognised.

New assets that enhance or improve an existing asset will take the remaining life of that
asset for depreciation purposes. Where an asset is componentised the component assets
will have their own life applied as appropriate. See section 1.8 for componentisation policy.

1.11. Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an
asset held for sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised
losses in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on
assets held for sale. An item of property, plant and equipment shall be de-recognised on
disposal; or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount
before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale,
and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.
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When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also
as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset
at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

The balance of receipts remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be
used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the PCC’s underlying need to borrow
(the capital financing requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.

Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Where specialised equipment assets have reached the end of their useful economic life
and have a net book value of zero, these will be retired in the following year and
subsequently removed from the fixed asset register.

1.12. Impairment of Non-Current Assets

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:

o Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount
of the accumulated gains);

¢ Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
not been recognised.

1.13. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the PCC as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible
asset to the PCC.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being
available) and the PCC will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service
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potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be
measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the
development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or
primarily intended to promote or advertise the PCC’s goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the PCC can be determined by reference to an active market.
In practice, no intangible asset held by the PCC meets this criterion, and they are therefore
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over
its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset
might be impaired, any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted
to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000)
the Capital Receipts Reserve.

1.13.1. De Minimis Level

The PCC has no de minimis level for recognising intangible assets. This relates to initial
recognition and subsequent expenditure on assets.

1.14. Charges to Revenue for the use of Non-Current Assets

Police services and central support services are charged with a capital charge for all non-
current assets used in the provision of services to record the real cost of holding fixed
assets during the year. The total charge covers:

e The annual provision for depreciation;

e Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written
off;

o Amortisation of intangible assets.

The PCC is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make a prudent annual
provision from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing
requirement. This is known as the Minimum Revenue Provision.

1.15. Minimum Revenue Provision

The PCC makes provision for the repayment of debt in accordance with the Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting, England, Amendment) Regulations 2008.
This requires the PCC to set a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) which it considers to be
prudent.
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The accounts are charged with a capital charge for all non-current assets used in the
provision of services. The total charge covers:

e The annual provision for depreciation;

o Impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on non-
current assets used by the PCC and other losses where there are no accumulated
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which they can be written off;

o Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service;

e The annual contribution towards the reduction in overall borrowing, in accordance with
the PCC'’s approved policy;

e 4% of the Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March 2008, adjusted for
repayments made since that date;

¢ All borrowing from 2008/09 onwards, a repayment based on the asset life method.

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced
by a revenue provision in the Movement in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account for the difference between the two.

1.16. Revenue Expenditure Financed through Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset in the Balance Sheet has been
charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.

Statutory provision reverses these charges from the surplus or deficit on provision of
services by debiting the Capital Adjustment Account and crediting the General Fund
balance through the Movement in Reserves Statement.

1.17. Classification of Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from
the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiiment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. Leases are classified as a finance
lease or an operating lease depending on the extent to which risks and rewards of
ownership (substance of the transaction over its legal form) of a leased asset lie with the
lessor (landlord) or the lessee (tenant).

1.18. The PCC as Lessee
1.18.1. Finance Leases

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s
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inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset
recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs
of the PCC are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into
a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

e A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment where
applied to write down the lease liability; and

¢ Afinance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using
the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over
the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership
of the asset does not transfer to the PCC at the end of the lease period).

The PCC is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is
made from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with
statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are
therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of
an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

1.18.2. Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of
the lease; even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free
period at the commencement of the lease).

1.19. The PCC as Lessor
1.19.1. Finance Leases

Where the PCC grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the
commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the PCC’s net investment in
the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying
value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset
in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

¢ A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property which is applied to write
down the lease debtor (together with any premiums received); and
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¢ Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal
is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be
treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of
the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the
payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in Movement in Reserves Statement.
When the future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal
of the asset is used to write down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital
receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

1.19.2. Operating Leases

Where the PCC grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the
Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if
this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the
commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

1.20. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the PCC when there is reasonable
assurance that:

e The PCC will comply with the conditions attached to the payments;
e The grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the PCC are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required
to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure (non-ring-
fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
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Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it
is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted
to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital
expenditure.

1.21. Debtors

Debtors are recognised in the accounts when the ordered goods or services have been
delivered or rendered by the PCC by the 31 March but the income has not yet been
received. Debtors are recognised and measured at fair value in the accounts.

There is no de minimis for capital or revenue income accruals.

Where there are differences between the Group and PCC balance at 31 March the note
will show both balances.

1.22. Creditors

Creditors are recorded where goods or services have been supplied to the PCC by 31
March, but payment is not made until the following financial year. Creditors are recognised
and measured at fair value in the accounts.

There is no de minimis for capital or revenue accruals.

Where there are differences between the Group and PCC balance at 31 March the note
will show both balances.

1.23. Debt impairment

The PCC makes a provision for debts which may go bad or not be paid in full. Where it is
doubtful that debts will be settled, the fair value of that debt is written down accordingly and
a charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the income
that might not be collected.

The PCC’s policy is to review outstanding debts annually in order to allow for debt
impairment.

1.24. Inventories

Inventory assets include materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the
rendering of services. This includes fuel, uniforms and general stores. These are carried at
the lower of cost (calculated as an average price) or current replacement cost (at the
Balance Sheet date for an equivalent quantity).

A de minimis of £5k is set before a group of stock items would need to be accounted for
at the year end.

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — UnraAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

Page 88



1.25. Investments and Cash and Cash Equivalents
1.25.1. Investments
The PCC will classify these as follows:

¢ Short-term deposits (due to be returned within 12 months after 31 March) held for
investment purposes for the returns offered are classed as Short-term Investments;

o Deposits held for investment purposes for the returns offered which are due for
return more than a year after 31 March are classed as Long Term Investments.

1.25.2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid
investments that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand or form an integral part of the Force’s cash management.

1.26. Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the PCC a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
For instance, the PCC may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the PCC becomes aware of the
obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and
uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year where
it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or
a lower settlement than anticipated is made) the provision is reversed and credited back to
the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the PCC settles
the obligation.

1.27. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is where there is a possible obligation to transfer economic benefits
due to a past event, but the possible obligation will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more events in the future, not wholly within the control of the
PCC. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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The PCC discloses these obligations in the narrative notes to the accounts if greater than
£100k.

These amounts are not recorded in the PCC’s accounts because:

e |t is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; or

e The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability at the year
end.

1.28. Contingent Assets

A Contingent Asset is where there is a possible transfer of economic benefit to the PCC
from a past event, but the possible transfer will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more events in the future. These events may not wholly be within the
control of the PCC.

The PCC discloses these rights in the narrative notes to the accounts if greater than £100k.
1.29. Reserves

The PCC sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund
balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from
reserves is incurred it is charged to the appropriate service in that year against the surplus
or deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the
expenditure.

1.29.1. Usable Reserves

The PCC'’s general revenue balances are held in the General Fund. The PCC also
maintains a number of specific ‘earmarked’ reserves for future expenditure on either
target service areas or to cover contingencies. They are described in more detail in notes
to the accounts.

1.29.2. Unusable Reserves

Certain reserves are kept to maintain the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments and retirement benefits. These reserves do not represent usable
resources for the PCC.

1.30. Events after the Reporting Period
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable,
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of

Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

e Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
where the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events;

e Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period where the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
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events would have a material effect. Disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of
the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

1.31. Recognition of Revenue (Income and Expenditure)

Revenue shall be measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is recognised only when it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the PCC.

1.32. Costs of Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in
accordance with the PCC Group’s arrangements for the accountability and financial
performance.

1.33. Value Added Tax (VAT)

The PCC’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement excludes VAT. All VAT
must be passed on to (where output tax exceeds input tax) or repaid by (where input tax
exceeds output tax) HM Revenue and Customs.

The net amount due to, or from, HM Revenue and Customs for VAT at the year-end shall
be included as part of creditors or debtors balances.

1.34. Fair Value Measurement

The PCC measures some of its non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and some of
its financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The PCC measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the PCC takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The PCC uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the PCC’s financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the PCC can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

1.35. Employee Benefits

1.35.1. Benefits Payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled wholly within 12 months of the
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid
sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees and are
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to
the PCC. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave,
e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the
wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in
which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to surplus or deficit on the
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves
Statement so that holiday entitlements are charged to revenue in the financial year in
which the holiday absence occurs

1.35.2. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the PCC to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s
decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged
on an accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a
corporate service segment at the earlier of when the PCC can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits or when the PCC recognises costs for a restructuring. Where
termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the PCC to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations
are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits
for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at
the year-end.

1.35.3. Post-employment Benefits
Employees of the PCC Group are members of two separate pension schemes:

e The Police Officer Pension Scheme, for which the scheme manager is the Chief
Constable, administered by XPS Administration;

e The Local Government Pensions Scheme, for which the scheme manager is the
Executive Director of Resources within the Administering Authority, Lincolnshire
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County Council. The scheme itself is administered by West Yorkshire Pension Fund
on behalf of Lincolnshire County Council.

Both schemes provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and
pensions), earned as employees.

1.35.4. The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

o The liabilities of the Lincolnshire pension fund attributable to the PCC are included
in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method, i.e. an
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates,
employee turnover rates etc. and projections of projected earnings for current
employees;

o Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of
2.0% (based on the indicative rate of return on high quality AA index corporate
bonds);

e The assets of Lincolnshire pension fund attributable to the PCC are included in the
Balance Sheet at their fair value as follows:

= Quoted securities — current bid price;
= Unquoted securities — professional estimate;
= Unitised securities — current bid price;
= Property — market value.
1.35.5. Percentage Entity Split

Both the member and employer contributions for the G4S participants within the Local
Government Pension Scheme will be allocated to the PCC in line with the Strategic
Partnership arrangement. The entity split was reviewed in 2018/19 and will be reviewed
every 5 years as this will be a decreasing percentage as the number of G4S participants
lessen over time. A change in the percentage as a result of a review will require a
restatement. The current percentage entity split is 30.5% PCC and 69.5% Chief
Constable. It should be noted that this scheme is a closed scheme.

1.35.6. The Police Officer Pension Scheme

The Police Officer Pension Schemes (both the old and new schemes) are accounted for
as a defined benefit scheme:

o The liabilities of the Lincolnshire pension fund attributable to the Chief Constable
are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method, i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about
mortality rates, employee turnover rates etc. and projections of projected earnings
for current employees;
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o Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of
2.0% (based on the indicative rate of return on high quality AA index corporate
bonds).

1.35.7.

Pension Scheme Policies

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

e Service cost comprising:

Current service cost. The increase in liabilities as a result of years of service
earned this year, allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the services for which the employees worked;

Past service cost. The increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment
or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years,
debited to the surplus or deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to a corporate service
segment;

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense
for the PCC, the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. This is calculated by applying the discount rate used
to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the
net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period, taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period
as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

e Re-measurements comprising:

The return on plan assets. Excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset) charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure;

Actuarial gains and losses. Changes in the net pensions liability that arise
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial
valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions charged to
the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure;

Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire pension fund. Cash paid as employer’s
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities. Not accounted for
as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance
to be charged with the amount payable by the PCC to the pension fund or directly to
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. Inthe Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers

to and

from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for

retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund
and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The
negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve measures the beneficial impact
to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of
cash flows, rather than when the benefits are earned by employees.
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1.35.8. Discretionary Benefits

The PCC also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award
to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension
Scheme.

1.35.9. Police Officer Pensions — Home Office Memorandum Account

From 1 April 2006 the Home Office changed the methods of financing police pensions.
Effectively the PCC has continued to make payments but accounts for these outside of
the accounts in a separate memorandum account. This is included as supplementary
statement to the accounts.

1.36. Joint Operations

Joint operations are joint arrangements in which the PCC and other venturers have joint
control of the arrangement. The parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. The PCC
accounts for only its share of the joint operations assets, the liabilities and expenses that it
incurs on its own behalf or jointly with others in respect of its interest in the joint operation
and income that it earns from the venture.

1.37. Financial Instruments
1.37.1. Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the PCC becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair
value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability,
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the
instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For all of the borrowings that the PCC has, this means that:

e The amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable,
plus accrued interest and;

¢ |Interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the
amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

1.37.2. Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach
that reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow
characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:

e Amortised cost;

o Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVPL); and

e Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).
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The PCC'’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.
Financial assets are therefore measured at amortised cost.

1.37.3. Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when
the PCC becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on
the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the PCC, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued
interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

2. Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the PCC Group has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The significant judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

There is uncertainty about service provision following government decisions to reduce
future levels of funding for the PCC Group. However, the Group has determined that
this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Group
might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of service
provision;

As part of the strategic partnership with G4S, the transfer of some specialised equipment
and intangible assets, have been treated as a disposal of assets. The subsequent use
of the assets creates a finance lease under IFRIC 4. Hence, the transfer valuation
appears in the asset register of the PCC and is depreciated and re-valued in line with
accounting policies. There is a matching finance lease liability that is written down over
the individual asset lives;

For retirement benefits, the interpretation of CIPFA guidance differs from that of the
Code itself. CIPFA guidance expects plan assets to be included in the financial
statements, but the Code says not to include them. This means that by following the
CIPFA guidance, the PCC has treated Police Pensions Payments grant as an
employers’ contribution, reducing the overall pension liability. The impact of this on the
General Reserve is reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement, with a
corresponding entry in the Pensions Reserve. The PCC and the Chief Finance Officer
have concluded that this approach presents a true and fair view of the PCC'’s financial
position, financial performance and cash flow;

The Scheme of Arrangements within the PCC Group and the governance arrangements
indicate that the Chief Constable controls police officers and police staff, with the
exception of PCC staff. The PCC controls income, assets and usable reserves;

G4S joined Lincolnshire Pension Fund as a new Transferee Admission Body on 1 April
2012 on a “pass through” arrangement for a contract term of 10 years. Lincolnshire
Police are considered to be the principal rather than merely an agent in these
transactions as they retain responsibility for the liabilities. Hence, the IAS19 results as
at 31 March 2021 reflect the combined G4S and Lincolnshire Police pension fund assets
and liabilities;
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o The split of the G4S pension liability within the Local Government Pensions Scheme is
allocated between the PCC and the Chief Constable in line with the Strategic
Partnership arrangement. The current percentage entity split is 30.5% PCC and 69.5%
Chief Constable;

e In November 2019, the PCC Group moved into the Blue Light Campus, Lincoln’s new
joint fire, police and ambulance station on South Park. The property is a Right of Use
lease that the PCC have with Lincolnshire County Council. As the PCC Group had
already paid contributions prior to the lease inception they do not have a lease liability.
Any revaluation increase will be treated as an addition to the finance lease to reflect the
fair value of the asset and credited to the revaluation reserve.

3. Assumptions and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made
by the PCC about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from
the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the PCC’s Group Balance Sheet at 31 March 2021 for which there is a significant
risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are described below. The main
area of fluctuation is the assessment of pension’s assets and liabilities. Hence, these are
considered separately.

Item

Pension liability (Group)

£1,7414,271339% of
which £212,707643k
relates to the PCC

Actuarial Assumptions
(Group)

£1,7414,271339% of
which £21,7072,643k
relates to the PCC

Uncertainties

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of
complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on pension
fund assets.

A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged
to provide the PCC with expert advice
about the assumptions to be applied.

The actuaries have assumed that CPI will
be approximately 1% p.a. below RPI on
average.

Effect if actual results differ from
assumptions

The effects on the net pension liability of
changes in individual assumptions have
been measured and described in the
tables below.

The tables give an indication of the
impact of changes in the main
assumptions but are not an exhaustive
list of the variables involved.

As a market in CPI linked bonds does
not exist the actuaries need to make an
estimate of the long term gap between
RPI and CPI in order to arrive at a CPI
assumption for the accounts.

The items in the PCC’s Group Balance Sheet at 31 March 2021 for which there is a significant
risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are described below. The main
area of fluctuation is the assessment of pension’s assets and liabilities. Hence, these are
considered separately.

3.1. Pension assumptions

The sensitivity analyses for the Police and Local Government Pension Schemes are set
out in the tables below. Sensitivity analysis is based on changes to the assumptions
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occurring at the end of the reporting period and with only one assumption changing at a
time rather than assumptions changing in combination with each other. The sensitivity on
the longevity assumption, for example, is based upon life expectancy increasing or
decreasing for both men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in
some of the assumptions may be interrelated.

The sensitivities regarding the Police Pension Scheme liabilities are set out below.
Change in financial and Approximate percentage Approximate monetary

demographic assumptions | increase to Employer Liability amount (Em)
0.5% decrease in the Real

0

Discount Rate 10% 162.70
1 year increase in member life 3% 50.03
expectancy

o
OR.:t;o in the Salary Increase 1% 1064

o/ 1 i .
0.5% increase in the Pensions 8% 13271

Increase Rate (CPI)

The sensitivities regarding the Police Pension Scheme current service costs are set out
below:

Change in financial and Approximate percentage Approximate monetary
demographic assumptions | increase to Projected Current amount (Em)
Service Cost
0.5% decrease in the Real

0,
Discount Rate 20% 095
1 year increase in member life 3% 1.05
expectancy
0.5% in the SalaryIncrease <1% _
Rate
0.5% increase in the Pensions 9% 321

Increase Rate (CPI)
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The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the liabilities in the
Local Government Pension Scheme are set out below.

£000 £000 £000
Adjustment to discount rate +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 224,295 229,408 234,642
Projected Service Cost 7,774 7,998 8,227
Adjustment to long term salary increase +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 230,104 229,408 228,719
Projected Service Cost 8,002 7,998 7,993
Adjustment to pension increase and deferred
revaluation +0.1% 0.0% -0.1%
Present value of total obligation 233,897 229,408 225,020
Projected Service Cost 8,225 7,998 7,777
Adjustment to life expectancy assumptions +1year None - 1year
Present value of total obligation 239,543 229,408 219,706
Projected Service Cost 8,374 7,998 7,637
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3.2. Other Areas of Estimation Uncertainty

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ
from assumptions

Property, Plant Valuations are provided at a specific date. The last year has seen a 23%

and Equipment Market conditions can change at short notice. increase in the PPE figures. Much

£49,510928k of this is due to the spend on the
Blue Light collaboration project.

Classification of There is some subjective interpretation of We have treated some

leases contract information when classifying some arrangements as operating leases

£3,391k660k arrangements as finance or operating leases. in the absence of the necessary

information to account for them as

For some equipment, the nature of the finance leases

agreement points to a finance lease, but the

details in the contract do not allow accurate Assets and liabilities may be

calculations to be performed. understated in the Balance Sheet
Collection fund Estimates have been used to show the There is no impact on the General
balances £128k proportion of income due to the PCC for Fund Balance.

council tax-buttax but held by the district
councils in their collection fund account.

The surplus in the
Comprehensive Income and
Some councils have estimated their year-end Expenditure Statement and the

surplus and the associated Balance Sheet associated Balance Sheet figures
figures;-butfigures but have had to do so could vary by up to £200k.

several months before the collection fund
accounts are prepared.

‘*4( Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5 cm, No bullets or numbering ]
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4. Going Concern

4.1 Going Concern — Underlying Principle /{Formatted: Font: Bold

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis that the authority Will<—[ Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.5 cm

continue in_operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Police and Crime
Commissioner for Lincolnshire and the Chief Constable of Lincolnshire have assessed
going concern and that cash flow requirements can be met for the assessment period to

September 2023.

The provisions in the Code of Audit Practice in respect of going concern reporting
requirements reflect the economic and statutory environment in which local authorities
operate. These provisions confirm that, as policing bodies cannot be created or dissolved
without statutory prescription, they must prepare their financial statements on a going
concern basis of accounting. Local authorities and policing bodies carry out functions
essential to the local community and are themselves tax revenue-raising bodies (with limits
on their revenue raising powers arising only at the discretion of central government). If a
policing body were in_financial difficulty, the prospects are thus that alternative
arrangements might be made by central government either for the continuation of the
services it provides or for assistance with the recovery of a deficit over more than one
financial year. As a result of this, it would not therefore be appropriate for the financial
statements of a policing body to be provided on anything other than a going concern basis.
Accounts drawn up under the Code therefore assume that policing services will continue
to operate for the foreseeable future. The Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire
and the Chief Constable of Lincolnshire accounts therefore assume they will continue to
operate for the foreseeable future.

Police funding is under the remit of the Home Office who approved a 3-year settlement for
Police Bodies up to 2024/25. This indicated that an additional £650m in 2023/24 and
£800m in 2024/25 would be provided for Policing. In addition, PCC’s were told at that time
they had the flexibility to increase Council Tax by up to £10 without incurring a referendum
for 2022/23, 2023/24 and 2024/25 so they could plan ahead. This was later increased to
£15 for 2023/24. This was a good sign that the government is aware of the need for greater
certainty over funding for financial planning purposes.

4.2 Going Concern — Impact of Covid-19

The emergence of Covid-19 fundamentally changed the financial regime from March 2020«—{ Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.5 cm

for_police forces with additional service requirements to enforce emergency health
legislation. The Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire and the Chief Constable
of Lincolnshire responded to the challenges of Covid-19 as they were publicly announced,
maintaining a robust control environment to capture issues, assess capacity and capability,
manage stakeholder engagement, make decisions and coordinate the Police response to
Covid-19. Extensive internal and external communications issued the latest information and
guidance to staff and officers daily to include; briefings, operational guidance, intelligence
updates, personal guidance, line manager advice, staff impact and wellbeing resources.
The pandemic related elements were brought to a close during March 2022 as managing
Covid-19 impacts were incorporated within business-as-usual activities.

4.3 Going Concern — Current & Forecast Financial Position

The 2022/23 revenue budget was set in February 2022 as a balanced budget of £151.49m.
A capital and investment programme budget was also set in February 2022, providing a
further £5.2m in 2022/23 to be financed by a combination of government grant, capital
receipts, borrowing and revenue contributions. The capital programme supports investment
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in the estate, fleet replacement and equipment, Information Technology, business led IT
Projects and operational equipment. This is essential to ensure fit-for-purpose services, to
deliver savings and generate income to balance the budgets over the medium-term
financial plan period to 2025/26.

4.4 Going Concern — Cash Position

The PCC for Lincolnshire had a cash equivalent balance of £38.075m at the end of August
2023, compared to £8.87m at 31 March 2021 year-end. This includes £11.475m in Money
Market Funds (MMF) available within 24 hours (£8.87m MMF’s at 31 March 2021). The
PCC deems the uncertainty on income cash flows low as the maijority of its income is
receivable from the Home Office and local billing authorities. The PCC and Chief Constable
continue to take action to maximise and maintain sufficient cash for its activities throughout
the medium term and has a borrowing strategy in place to borrow against capital investment
as plans are approved. The PCC is also able to mitigate any short-term deposit timing cash
flow requirements with its ability to borrow short term monies from other institutions and
local authorities at short notice. In _a ‘stressed’ case scenario whereby income is
constrained further in the event of unexpected economic shocks and income recovering
only very slowly, The PCC has sufficient levels of reserves and investments that it would
not run out of cash during 2023/24.

4.5 Going Concern — Conclusion

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis, with planned outturn and
targets up to 2022/23 within the level of general useable reserves and a balanced budget
in place for 2023/24.
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4—Expenditure and Funding Analysis

2019/20 Group 2020/21
N Net change ) Net change
Adjustments for the Other Total Adjustments for the Other Total
for Capital " § . te for Capital " y .
Pensions| Differences  Adjustments Di j
Purposes| . .. Purposes|
Adjustments. Adjustments
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2,800 1,016 306 4,122 Police and Crime Commissioner (1,413) 458 662 (293) |
- (11,301) - (11,301)! Chief Constable - (15,189) - (15,189)/
- - - - Joint Services - - - -/
2,800 (10,285) 306 (7,179) Cost of Services (1,413) (14,731) 662 (15,482)
2172 - - 2,172 | 8 |Other Operating Expenditure 608 - - 608
Financing and Investment income and
- 36,990 - 36,990 | 9 |Expenditure - 32,279 - 32,279
(499) - (109) (608)| 10 | Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (1,133) - 454 (679)
Difference between General Fund
(Surplus) or Deficit and CIES
5 4,473 26,705 197 31,375 (Surplus) or Deficit (1,938) 17,548 1,116 16,726
2019/20 Group 2020/21
. Net change I Net change
Adjustments for the Other Total Adjustments for the Other Total
for Capital " ) . Note for Capital - § '
Purposes Dif i Purposes Pensions | Differences |Adjustments
P Adjustments P Adjustments
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2,800 1,016 306 4,122 Police and Crime Commissioner (1,144) 458 662 (24) ’r'
- (11,301) - (11,301) Chief Constable - (15,189)! - (15,189)
- - - - Joint Services - - - - J’
2,800 (10,285) 306 (7.179) Cost of Services (1,144) (14,731) 662 (15,213) |/
2172 - - 2,172 | 9 |Other Operating Expenditure 608 - - 608
Financing and Investment Income and
- 36,990 - 36,990 | 10 |Expenditure - 32279 - 32,279
(499) - (109) (608)| 11 |Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (1,133) - 454 (679)
Difference between General Fund
(Surplus) or Deficit and CIES
4,473 26,705 197 31,375 (Surplus) or Deficit (1,669) 17,548 1,116 16,995
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2019/20 PCC 2020/21

Net ch Net ch
Adjustments change Adjustments change
for Capital for the Other|  + tal Adjustments| Note for Capital for the Other Total
o P Pensions| Differences J o P Pensions | Differences |Adjustments
UrPOses | djustments urposes| adjustments
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2,800 1,016 306 4122 Police and Crime Commissioner (1,144) 458 662 (24)
- - - - Joint Services - - - -
2,800 1,016 306 4122 Cost of Services (1,144) 458 662 (24)
2172 - - 272 | 9 |Other Operating Expenditure 608 - - 608
Financing and Investment Income and
515 - 515 10 |Expendiure - 299 - 299
(499) - (109) (608)] 11 | Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (1,133) - 454 (679)
Difference between General Fund
(Surplus) or Deficit and CIES (Surplus)
4473 1,531 197 6,201 or Deficit (1,669) 757 1,116 204
2019120 PCC 202021
. Net change Ny Net change
Ad’,"“c'"e'_‘:sl for the Other| @ adiustments| Not Ad""s‘::"e'_':sl for the Other Total
:n:r z’;':s Pensions| Differences| | °t@ Adiustments  Rote :‘:r :';':s Pensions | Differences |Adjustments
P Adjustments P Adjustments
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2,800 1,016 306 4122 Police and Crime Commissioner (1413) 458 662 (293)
- - - - Joint Services - - - -
2,800 1,016 306 4122 Cost of Services (1,413) 458 662 (203)
2472 - - 2172 | 8 |Other Operating Expenditure 608 - - 608
Financing and Investment Income and
515 - 515 9 |Expenditure - 299 - 299
(499) - (109) (608), 10 | Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (1133) - 454 (679)
Difference between General Fund
(Surplus) or Deficit and CIES (Surplus)
4473 1,531 197 6,201 or Deficit (1,938) 757 1,116 (65)

4451, Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Adjustments for Capital Purposes - this column adds in depreciation and impairment and
revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:

o Other Operating Expenditure - adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income
on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets;

e Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure - the statutory charges for capital
financing, i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision, and other revenue contributions are
deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under
generally accepted accounting practices;

e Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure - capital grants are adjusted
for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue
grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without
conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation
and Non Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants
receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the
year.

4.2.5.2. Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee
Benefits pension related expenditure and income:
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e For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made
by the PCC Group as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs
and past service costs;

e For Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure this is the net interest on the
defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

4.3.5.3. Other Differences

Other differences between amounts debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and amounts payable or receivable to be recognised under statute:

e For Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure the other differences
recognizes adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums
and discounts;

o The charge under Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure
represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for
council tax that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income
recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing
difference as any difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on
the Collection Fund.

/[ Formatted: Font:
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5.6 Expenditure Analysed by Nature

2019/20 Group Expenditure and Income
£000
Expenditure
52,232 |Police Pay and Allow ances
23,157 |Police Staff Pay and Allow ances
1,732 | Other Employee Expenses
1,840 | Police Pensions
22,365 |Pension costs inc IAS19
3,032 |Premises
1,467 |Transport
10,048 |Supplies and Services
23,545 | Third Party Payments
3,727 |Capital Financing
4,175 | Depreciation and amortisation
2,233 |Losses on the disposal of assets
776 |Precepts and levies
755 | Seconded Officers
38,880 | Interest and investment expenditure

189,964 | Total expenditure

Income
(10,820)  Fees, charges and other service income
(4,777) | Other Grant Income

(731)|Seconded Officers
(62) | Proceeds from the disposal of assets
(164)|Interest and investment income
(55,999) | Income from council tax
(90,522)  Government grants and contributions

(163,075) | Total income

26,889 |(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services

2020/21
£000

54,730
22,479
1,327
1,538
21,679
3,140
1,302
13,680
23,045
1,019
4,826
1,469
867
622
34,149
185,873

(9,483)
(7,409)
(612)
(321)
(38)
(58,699)
(96,779)
(173,341)

12,531
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2019/20 Group Expenditure and Income 2020/21

£000 £000
Expenditure
52,232 |Police Pay and Allow ances 54,730
23,157 | Police Staff Pay and Allow ances 22,479
1,732 | Other Employee Expenses 1,327
1,840 |Police Pensions 1,538
22,365 |Pension costs inc IAS19 21,679
032 DProm 3,140
1,467 |Transport 1,302
10,048 | Supplies and Services 13,680
23,545 | Third Party Payments 23,342
3,727 | Capital Financing 1,019
4,175 | Depreciation and amortisation 4,826
2,233 |Losses on the disposal of assets 931
776 |Precepts and levies 867
755 | Seconded Officers 622
38,880 | Interest and investment expenditure 34,122
189,964 | Total expenditure 185,603
Income
(10,820) Fees, charges and other service income (11,212)
(3,602) | Other Grant Income (5,680)
(731)|Seconded Officers (612)
(62)|Proceeds fromthe disposal of assets (321)
(164)|Interest and investment income (38)
(55,999) | Income from council tax (58,699)
(90,522) | Government grants and contributions (96,779)
(161,900) Total income (173,341)
a 28,064 | (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 12,262
2019/20 i frare-and-ncom 2020121
£000 £000
Expenditure
52 232 |Police Pay and Allowances 54,730
23157 |Police Staff Pay and Allowances 22 479
1,732 |Other Employee Expenses 1,327
1,840 |Police Pensions 1,538
22 365 Pension costs inclAS19 21679
3,032 |Premises 3,140
41,467 |Transport 1,302
10,048 |Supplies and Services 13,680
23 545 |Third Party Payments 23342
3,727 |Capital Financing 1,019
4,175 |Depreciation and amorisation 4 826
2,233 |Losses onthe disposal of assets 931
776 |Precepts and levies 867
755 |Seconded Officers 622
38,880 |Interest and investment expenditure 34,122
189,964 | Total expenditure 185,603
Income
(10,820} Fees, charges and other semvice income (10,042}
(4, 777)| Other Grant Income (6,850}
(731)|Seconded Officers (612)
(62) Proceeds from the disposal of assets (321)
(164)|Interest and investment income (38)
(55,999} Income from council tax (58,699)
(90,522} Government grants and contributions (96,779)
(163,075) | Total income (173,341)
26,889 (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 12,262
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2019720 PCC Expenditure and Income 2020021

£000 £000
Expenditure

3,767 |Police Staff Pay and Allow ances 3,197
39 |Other Employee Expenses 72

14 |Premises 23

28  Transport 183

607 |Supplies and Services 1,240
23,127 | Third Party Payments 22,411
3,727 | Capital Financing 1,019
4,175 | Depreciation and amortisation 4,826
2,233 |Losses on the disposal of assets 931
2,405 |Interest and investment expenditure 2,142
117,857 |Intra Group financing 123,413
157,979 | Total expenditure 159,455

Income
(5,229) Fees, charges and other service income (3,693)
(3,112) | Other Grant Income (4,455)
(62) Proceeds fromthe disposal of assets (321)
(164) | Interest and investment income (38)
(55,999) | Income from council tax (58,699)
(90,522) | Government grants and contributions (96,779)
(155,088) | Total income (163,985)
2,891 |(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (4,530)
201920 e Ea " 2020121
E00T £000
Expenditure
- |Police Pay and Allowances -

3,767 |Police Staff Pay and Allowances 3,197

39 |Other Employee Expenses 72

14 |Premises 23

28 |Transport 183

607 |Supplies and Senvices 1,240
23,127 |Third Party Payments 22411
3,727 |Capital Financing 1,019
4175 |Depreciation and amortisation 4826
2,233 |Losses on the disposal of assets 931
2,405 |Interest and investment expenditure 2,142
117,857 |Intra Group financing 123413
157,979 | Total expenditure 159,455

Income

(5,229) Fees, charges and other service income (2,522)
(4,287)| Other Grant Income (5,625)
(62} Proceeds from the disposal of assets (321)
(164)|Interest and investment income (38)
(55,999} Income from council tax (58,699)
(90,522) Government grants and contributions (96,779)
(156,263) Total income {163,984)
1,716 |(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (4,520)
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Group Expenditure and Income

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Expenditure
52,232 |Police Pay and Allowances 54,730
23,157 |Police Staff Pay and Allowances 22,479
1,732 | Other Employee Expenses 1,327
1,840 Police Pensions 1,538
22,365 Pension costs inc IAS19 21,679
3,032 | Premises 3,140
1,467 Transport 1,302
10,048 |Supplies and Services 13,680
23,545 | Third Party Payments 23,342
3,727 Capital Financing 1,019
4,175 Depreciation and amortisation 4,826
2,233 |Losses on the disposal of assets 931
776 Precepts and levies 867
755 |Seconded Officers 622
38,880 |Interest and investment expenditure 34,122
189,964 | Total expenditure 185,603
Income
(10,820) Fees, charges and other service income (9,483)
(4,777) | Other Grant Income (7,409)
(731) Seconded Officers (612)
(62) | Proceeds from the disposal of assets (321)
(164) Interest and investment income (38)
(55,999) Income from council tax (58,699)
(90,522) Government grants and contributions (96,779)
(163,075) Total income (173,341)
26,889 |(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 12,262
Zm:é:g PCC Expenditure and Income 202:5;
Expenditure
- |Police Pay and Allow ances -
3,767 |Police Staff Pay and Allow ances 3,197
39 | Other Employee Expenses 72
14 |Premises 23
28 |Transport 183
607 |Supplies and Services 1,240
23,127 | Third Party Payments 22,114
3,727 | Capital Financing 1,019
4,175 | Depreciation and amortisation 4,826
2,233 |Losses on the disposal of assets 1,469
2,405 |Interest and investment expenditure 2,169
117,857 |Intra Group financing 123,418
157,979 | Total expenditure 159,729
Income
(5,229) | Fees, charges and other service income (1,963)
(4,287) | Other Grant Income (6,184)
(62) | Proceeds fromthe disposal of assets (321)
(164) |Interest and investment income (38)
(55,999) | Income from council tax (58,699)
(90,522)  Government grants and contributions (96,779)
(156,263) | Total income (163,985)
1,716 |(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (4,260)
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2019720 PCC Expenditure and Income 2020021

£000 £000
Expenditure
- |Police Pay and Allowances -
3,767 | Police Staff Pay and Allowances 3,197
39 |Other Employee Expenses 72
14 Premises 23
22 Tranep 183
607 | Supplies and Services 1,240
23,127 | Third Party Payments 22,411
3,727 |Capital Financing 1,019
4,175 | Depreciation and amortisation 4,826
2,233 |Losses on the disposal of assets 931
2,405 | Interest and investment expenditure 2,142
117,857 |Intra Group financing 123,413
157,979 | Total expenditure 159,455
Income
(5,229) Fees, charges and other service income (1,963)
(4,287) Other Grant Income (6,184)
(62)| Proceeds from the disposal of assets (321)
(164)|Interest and investment income (38)
(55,999) Income from council tax (58,699)
(90,522) Government grants and contributions (96,779)
(156,263) Total income (163,984)
1,716 |(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (4,529)

7. Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations

Adjustments are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by both
the PCC Group and the PCC in the year in accordance with accounting practice.

The following set out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against.
7.1. General Fund Balance

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts are required to be paid
and out of which all liabilities are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules might
provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and
payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, which is not necessarily in
accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund Balance therefore
summarises the resources that the PCC is statutorily empowered to spend on its services
or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the PCC is required to recover) at
the end of the financial year.

7.2. Capital Receipts Reserve
The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets,
which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure

or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve
shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year end.

7.3. Capital Grants Unapplied

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions
received towards capital projects, for which the PCC has met the conditions that would
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otherwise require repayment of the monies, but which have yet to be applied to meet
expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against
which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take place.
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2019/20 Adjustment between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis

Usable Reserves

2019/20 Group General Fund

Balance
£000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Compr ive
Income and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) 26,705
Council tax (transferred to or from Collection Fund) (109)
Unused Leave (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 306
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation to 9,351
capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account): i
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 36,253
Adjusti ts bet R and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds fromrevenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve (56)
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) (4,897)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment (205)
Account)
Total Adjusti ts bets and Capital Resources (5,158)
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure -
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 280
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 280
Total Adjustments 31,375

Usable Reserves

General Fund

2019/20 PCC

Balance

£000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) 1,631
Council tax (transferred to or from Collection Fund) (109)
Unused Leave (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 306
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation to 0,351
capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account): i
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 11,079
Adjust ts between R and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve (56)
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) (4,897)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment (205)
Account)
Total Adjusti ts bet: Re and Capital Resources (5,158)
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure -
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 280
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 280
Total Adjustments 6,201

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

56

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

56

56

(56)

(56)

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000

(280)
(280)
(280)

Capital
Grants
Unapplied
£000

(280)
(280)
(280)
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Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

(26,705)
109
(306)

(9,351)

(36,253)

4,897
205

5,102

56

56
(31,095)

Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

(1,531)
109
(306)

(9,351)

(11,079)

4,897
205
5,102
56

56
(5,921)
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2020/21 Adjustment between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis

Usable Reserves

2020/21 Group General Fund

Balance
£000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) 17,548
Council tax (transferred to or from Collection Fund) 454
Unused Leave (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 662
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation to 5623
capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account): i
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 24,287
Adjusti ts bet R and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds fromrevenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve (315)
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) (5,589)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment (1,400)
Account) ’
Total Adjusti ts bets and Capital Resources (7,304)
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure -
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 12
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 12
Total Adjustments 16,995

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

315

315

(315)

(315)

Capital Movement in

Grants
Unapplied
£000

(12)
(12)
(12)

Usable
Reserves
£000

(17,548)
(454)
(662)

(5,623)

(24,287)

5,589
1,400
6,989

315
315
(16,983)

Usable Reserves

2020/21 Group General Fund

Balance
£000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) 17,548
Council tax (transferred to or from Collection Fund) 454
Unused Leave (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 662
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation to 5623
capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account): i
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 24,287
Adjust ts between R and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve (315)
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) (5,858)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment (1,400)
Account) '
Total Adjusti ts bet: R and Capital Resources (7,573)
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure -
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 12
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 12
Total Adjustments 16,726

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

315

315

(315)

(315)

Capital Movement in

Grants
Unapplied
£000

(12)
(12)
(12)

Usable
Reserves
£000

(17,548)
(454)
(662)

(5,623)

(24,287)

5,858

1,400

7,258

315

315
(16,714)
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Usable Reserves

2020/21 PCC General Fund

Balance
£000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) 757
Council tax (transferred to or from Collection Fund) 454
Unused Leave (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 662
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation to 5623
capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account): i
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 7,496
Adjusti ts bet R and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds fromrevenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve (315)
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) (5,589)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment (1,400)
Account) ’
Total Adjusti ts bet R and Capital Resources (7,304)
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure -
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 12
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 12
Total Adjustments 204

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

315

315

(315)

(315)

Capital Movement in

Grants
Unapplied
£000

(12)
(12)
(12)

Usable
Reserves
£000

(757)
(454)
(662)

(5,623)

(7,496)

5,589
1,400
6,989
315
315
(192)

Usable Reserves

2020/21 PCC General Fund

Balance
£000

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year
calculated in accordance with statutory requirements:
Pensions costs (transferred to (or from) the Pensions Reserve) 757
Council tax (transferred to or from Collection Fund) 454
Unused Leave (transferred to the Accumulated Absences Reserve) 662
Reversal of entries included in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in relation to 5623
capital expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital Adjustment Account): i
Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources 7,496
Adjust ts bet Re and Capital Resources
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve (315)
Statutory provision for the repayment of debt (transfer from the Capital Adjustment Account) (5,858)
Capital expenditure financed from revenue balances (transfer to the Capital Adjustment (1,400)
Account) ’
Total Adjusti ts bet) R ue and Capital Resources (7,573)
Adjustments to Capital Resources
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital expenditure -
Application of capital grants to finance capital expenditure 12
Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 12
Total Adjustments (65)

Capital
Receipts
Reserve
£000

315

315

(315)

(315)

Capital Movement in

Grants
Unapplied
£000

£12)
(12)
(12)

Usable
Reserves
£000

(757)
(454)
(662)

(5,623)

(7,496)

5,858

1,400

7,258

315

315
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8. Transfers Between Earmarked Reserves

Balance at| Transfers| Transfers

31 March

Group /PCC 2019
£000

Major Incidents 1,850
Insurance 1,000
Proceeds of Crime 186
Employee Welfare 52
Development and Partnership Working 1,144
Victims Major Incidents -
Partner Agency Funding 106
Performance and Productivity 944
CATS / Niche Back Office 100
Body Worn Cameras 76
Strategic Partnership 75
Regional NICHE Innovation Funds 35
Capital Financing Reserve 1,000
Il Health Pension Resever 375
Staffing (Risk Mitigation) 100
PCC Regional Staffing -
ARV Grant Notts 257
Specific Grant for Specialist Ongoing Operations 874
Domestic Abuse PIF Grant 74
Police Officer Bank Holiday Overtime 95
Family Day 10
Sandi Starfish 3
EMOPSS Disaggregation Risk 151
EMSOU Collaboration Risk 60
West Division Football 15
Specials ANPR Equipment 12
Operations Taser Equipment 38
Forensic Services 100
Mini Police Income -
Regional Underspend -
Home Office ICT Recharges -
Operation Forge
South Park Bandw idth
Crime Review Building Works
Income Pressures -
Violence & Vulnerabilty Fund -
Blue Light Collaboration -
Excellence in Police Finance 60
Earmarked non-recurrent funding for use in 2021/22
Funding of fixed term staff posts 21/22
Airw ave Boosters
Complaints Handling
Recurrent & Non Recurrent Funding for expenditure in
2021/22
ICT WIFl Installations
Central Operations Tasers
Chief Constable Carry Forw ard to 21/22
PCC & Joint Services Carry Forw ard to 21/22
Non Recurrent Fixed Term Posts >21/22
Victim Services DA Funding
Subtotal 8,792
Regional Reserve 436
Total 9,228
Net transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (1,752)

Out
2019/20

£000

(48)

(99)

(55)

(480)
(31)

(10)
@

(48)

(12)
(38)

(872)

(872)

In
2019/20

£000

257

304

294

4,003
91
4,184

3312

Transfer
Between
Reserves
2019/20
£000

(250)
250

(100)

(100)

(100)

(100)

Balance | 1 -nsfers| Transfers
# M;;;:; zozls;: 202011'7’11
£000 £000 £000
1,850
1,000
397 @) 8
52
823 71
269
106 an
924 (345) 384
76
20
339 (30) 97
1,000
375 112
100
26 2
257 (68)
394 (122) 993
50 (50) 43
389 (95)
151
12
25 15
100
46
279
122 (122)
60
32
100 (12)
400
2,106 (1,237) 1,455
3
30 (30)
- 167
. 492
. 40
. 20
. 1,171
. 50
. 53
. 9%
. 304
. 481
. 28
11,913 (2199) 6,196
527 (7
12,440 (2216) 6,19
3,212 3,980

Transfer
Between
Reserves
2020/21
£000

(52)

151

(1,265)

(151)
(12)

(100)

(279)

(60)!
(32)

(400)

3)
40

(2,163)

(2,163)

(2,163)
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Balance
at

31 March
2021
£000

1,850
1,000
334
894
269
89
1,114

76
20
406
1,000
487
100
49
189

43
294

88

2,324

1,171
50

53

%
394
481
28
13,747
510
14,256

1,817
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Descriptions of the Earmarked Reserves

Earmarked Reserves - Group / PCC
Balance at 31 March 2021 £000 Description of Reserve
The requirements of operational policing vary significantly from year to year. The
Major Incidents 1,850 |reserve ensures that the PCC Group has funds available to respond to the requirements
of major incidents.
To support the costs of on-going claims and for future unforeseen claims w hich have not

nsurance 1,000 yet arisen and for w hich revenue provision is insufficient.

Proceeds of Crime 334 The police share l?f ass§l§ recovered from the proce.eds of crime is reserved for funding
local crime reduction initiatives to benefit the community.

Development and Partnership Working 894 |Reserve to be used for development and initiatives held by the OPCC.

Victims Major Incidents 269 | Fund set aside tow ards funding victim support for those affected by Major Incidents.

Partner Agency Funding 89 |Reserve for Funding received from NHS (custody transformation) and LCJB.

Performance and Productivity 1,114 |Reserve to fund business change and efficiency projects.

Body Worn Cameras 76 |Round 2 Innovation final costs.

Strategic Partnership 20 | Carry forward of penalty income.

" " Balance of funding required to fund final part of Innovation R2 (£35k) plus amount to

innovation Funding (NICHE) 406 distribute back to gthe(: Forces. i ‘ *

Capital Financing Reserve 1,000 |Reserve allocation set aside to fund future capital programme items.

Il Health 487 |Reserve to ensure Force can meet the cost of potential l Health retirements.

Staffing 100 | To provide for potential base budget shortfalls in the event the vacancy factor is not met.

PCC Regional Collaboration Staffing 49 |Surplus from past financial years to be used in 2021/22.

ARV Notts 189 |Home Office grant held for distribution in 2021/22.

Domestic Abuse PIF Grant 43 |Balance of funding to cover contribution to project in future accounting periods

Police Officer Bank Holiday Overtime 294 | To smooth out the effect of certain years having more bank holidays than others.

West Division Football 40 Income generated through vprvo.secu(inQ gffenders arrested at LCFC matches. Income will
be used to offset potential initiatives during 2021/2022.

Mini Police Income 46 |Ring fence of underspend from 2019/20.

Crime Review Building w orks 88 | With a change to the Crime department it is likely building alterations will be required.

Violence & Vulnerabilty Fund 2,324 | Fund for innovation and service development, bids to be made.

Excellence in Police Finance 40 Tf) develop and irrprf)ve ffn?ncial management w ithin the organisation through the CIPFA
Finance Excellence in Policing programme.

Earmarked non-recurrent funding for use in 2021/22 167 |Ringfence of non-recurrent funding for use in future years.

Funding of fixed term staff posts 21/22 492 |Ringfence of non-recurrent funding for use in future years on staff posts.

Airw ave Boosters 40 | Expenditure did not occur in 2020/21 but is planned for 2021/22.

Complaints Handling 20 | Risk mitigation for PCC w hen handling complaints.

Recurrent & Non Recurrent Funding for expenditure in 2021/22 1,171 |Ringfence of non-recurrent funding for use in future years.

ICT WIFI Installations 50 | Expenditure did not occur in 2020/21 but is planned for 2021/22.

Central Operations Tasers 53 | Expenditure did not occur in 2020/21 but is planned for 2021/22.

Chief Constable Carry Forw ard to 21/22 99 | Various small items of carry forw ard due to expenditure being delayed in to 2021/22.

PCC & Joint Services Carry Forw ard to 21/22 394 |Various small items of carry forw ard due to expenditure being delayed in to 2021/22.

Non Recurrent Fixed Term Posts >21/22 481 |Ringfence of non-recurrent funding for use in future years on staff posts.

Victim Services DA Funding 28 |Further Domestic Abuse services to run in partnership w ith Lincolnshire County Council.

Sub-Total 13,747

Regional Reserve 510 |Reserves fromsurplus of funding relating to regional expenditure.

Total 14,256
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9. Other Operating Expenditure

2019/20 Group 2020/21 /{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1 cm, No bullets
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net/| | or numbering
Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income | Expendif ¢
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 joo
(Gains) or Losses on the Disposal of
2,233 (62) 2171 Property, Flant and Equipmont 1,469 (321) 148
776 - 776 |Levies 867 867
755 (731) 24 | Seconded Officers 622 (612) 10
Frim 25754 02y 2824 2,958 (933) 2,025
2019/20 Group 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income| Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(Gains) or Losses on the Disposal of
2,233 (62) 2171 Property, Plant and Equipmont 931 (321) 610
776 - 776 |Levies 867 - 867
755 (731) 24 |Seconded Officers 622 (612) 10
3,764 (793) 2,971 2,420 (933) 1,487
2019/20 PCC 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income| Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(Gains) or Losses on the Disposal of
2,233 (62) 2171 Property, Plant and Equipmont 1,469 (321) 1,148
2,233 (62) 2,171 1,469 (321) 1,148
2019/20 PCC 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income | Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2233 ©®2) 2471 (Gains) or Losses on thle Disposal of 931 @21 610
Property, Plant and Equipment
2,233 (62) 2171 931 (321) 610
Levies are the Chief Constable’s contributions towards national police computing systems

provided by the Home Office.
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44:10. Finance and Investment Income and Expenditure

{ Formatted: No bullets or numbering

2019/20 Group 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross y{
Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income| Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 000
956 - 956 | Interest Payable on Debt 873 - 873
934 R 934 Interest Element of Finance Lease 998 R < 908
(Lessee)
36,990 R 36,990 Pensions Intere§t Cost and Expected 32,279 B 32,279
Return on Pensions Assets
- (164) (164)|Investment Interest Income - (38) (38)
38.880 (164) 38.716 34,150 (38) 34,112
+&
2019/20 Group 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income| Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
956 - 956 | Interest Payable on Debt 873 - 873
934 B 934 Interest Element of Finance Lease 971 R o71
(Lessee)
36,990 R 36,990 Pensions Intere.st Cost and Expected 32,279 R 32,279
Return on Pensions Assets
- (164) (164)|Investment Interest Income - (38) (38)
38,880 (164) 38,716 34,123 (38) 34,085
2019/20 PCC 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income| Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
956 - 956 | Interest Payable on Debt 873 - 873
934 B 934 Interest Element of Finance Lease 998 B 998
(Lessee)
515 R 515 Pensions Intere.st Cost and Expected 299 R 209
Return on Pensions Assets
- (164) (164)|Investment Interest Income (38) (38)
2,405 (164) 2,241 2,170 (38) 2,132
2019/20 PCC 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income| Expenditure Expenditure Income| Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
956 - 956 | Interest Payable on Debt 873 - 873
934 R 934 Interest Element of Finance Lease o71 R 971
(Lessee)
515 R 515 Pensions Intere.st Cost and Expected 299 R 209
Return on Pensions Assets
- (164) (164)|Investment Interest Income - (38) (38)
2,405 (164) 2,241 2,143 (38) 2,105
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43.11. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

2019/20 Group / PCC 2020/21
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure I Expenditure Expenditure I Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- (55,999) (55,999) | Council Tax Income - (58,699) (58,699)
- (59,362) (59,362)| General Government Grants* - (63,547) (63,547)
- (5,775) (5,775) | Council Tax Support Grant - (5,775) (5,775)
- (1,059) (1,059)| Council Tax Freeze Grant - (1,059) (1,059)
Home Office Grant Payable tow ards the Cost
- (23,826) (23826)| et - (25,264) (25,264)
- (500) (500) | Recognised Capital Grants and Contributions - (1,079) (1,079)
- - Regional Capital Grant - (56) (56)
- (146,521) (146,521) - (155,479) (155,479)
*See note 11 2019/20
11.1. Council Tax Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style:
1,2, 3, ...+ Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.5 cm
The Lincolnshire district and borough councils are required to collect the amount of council + Indent at: 1.6 cm

tax determined by the PCC for policing the county. In 2020/21 the precept, including the
estimated 2019/20 collection fund surplus, was paid to the PCC during the year and
amounted to £58.7m distributed as shown below. The Code requires that Council Tax
income included in the CIES for the year should be prepared on an acergalsaccrual’s basis.
The cash received from the billing authorities is therefore adjusted for the PCC’s share of
the outturn opening and closing balances on the Collection Fund. These adjustments are
however then taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account (see note 31) and included
as a reconciling item in the MIRS to ensure that only the statutory amount is credited to the
General Fund.

The figures credited to the CIES are broken down as follows:

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0 cm
Outturn Outturn
Received from Billing plus/(deficit) on | surplus/(deficit) on
Total 2015120 Group/PCC Authority Collection Fund at | Collection Fund at 31 Total 2020121
31 March 2020 March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(5,917)|Lincoln City Council (6,258) (52) 69 (6,137)

(4,629) Boston Borough Council (4,850) (11) (37) (4,876) ¢
(10,801) East Lindsey District Council (11,420) (116) (43) (11,347)
(7,313)|West Lindsey District Council (7,722) (184) (146) (7,684)
(9,003) | North Kesteven District Council (9477) - (20) (9,497)
(11,527) | South Kesteven District Council (12,197) (152) 63 (11,982)
(6,808) | South Holland District Council (7,228) (66) (14) (7,176)
(55,998) (59,152) (581) (128) (58,699)
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e e /[ Formatted: Highlight

14.12. Grant Income

The PCC Group credited the following grants to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:

Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Central Government:

Police Grant* (59,363) (63,547)
Home Office Pension Grant (23,826) (25,264)
Capital Grants and Contributions (500) (1,079)
Council Tax Support Grant (5,775) (5,775)
Council Tax Freeze Grant (1,059) (1,059)
Regional Capital Grant - (56)
Total (90,523) (96,780)

*See below re Home Office PUP Grant 2019/20

Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Credited to Services

Other Grant Income

Special Grant (1,600) (993)
Ers Contribution Pension Shortfall Grant (1,175) (1,175)
Armed Response Vehicle (ARV) Grant (490) (490)
Police Transformation Fund - Domestic Abuse Grant (590) -

Home Office PUP Grant* - (1,397)
Apprenticeship Levy Grant (55) (38)
COVID Support Grant - (732)
Op TALLA (COVID-19 Response) - (160)
Safer Streets Grant - (728)
Victim Services Grant (868) (1,122)
Regional External Grant (477) (575)
Total (5,255) (7,409)

* Replenishment of officer numbers under National Officer Uplift Project, £240k in 2019/20 within Police Grant
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Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000
Credited to Services
Other Grant Income
Special Grant (1,600) (1,475)
Ers Contribution Pension Shortfall Grant (1,175) (1,175)
Armed Response Vehicle (ARV) Grant (490) (490)
Police Transformation Fund - Domestic Abuse Grant (590) -
Other Home Office Grants (868) (970)
Home Office PUP Grant* - (1,398)
Apprenticeship Levy Grant (55) (38)
COVID Support Grant - (250)
Op TALLA (COVID-19 Response) - (160)
Safer Streets Grant - (169)
Victim Services Grant - (152)
Regional External Grant (477) (575)
Total (5,255) (6,852)

* Replenishment of officer numbers under National Officer Uplift Project, £240k in 2019/20 within Police Grant

201;:)/:3 PCC Expenditure and Income 202£(:JI§;
Expenditure
- |Police Pay and Allowances -
3,767 |Police Staff Pay and Allowances 3,197
39 | Other Employee Expenses 72
14 |Premises 23
28 | Transport 183
607 | Supplies and Services 1,240
23,127 | Third Party Payments 22,411
3,727 | Capital Financing 1,019
4,175 | Depreciation and amortisation 4,826
2,233 |Losses on the disposal of assets 931
2,405 |Interest and investment expenditure 2,142
117,857 |Intra Group financing 123,413
157,979 | Total expenditure 159,455
Income
(5,229) | Fees, charges and other service income (1,963)
(4,287) | Other Grant Income (6,184)
(62) Proceeds from the disposal of assets (321)
(164)  Interest and investment income (38)
(55,999) | Income from council tax (58,699)
(90,522)| Government grants and contributions (96,779)
(156,263) Total income (163,984)
1,716 |(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (4,529)
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PCC 2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000
Credited to Services
Other Grant Income
SeecialCront (1,600) (1,475)
Ers Contribution Pension Shortfall Grant (1,175) (1,175)
Police Transformation Fund - Domestic Abuse Grant (590) -
Other Home Office Grants (868) (970)
Home Office PUP Grant* - (1,398)
Apprenticeship Levy Grant (55) (38)
COVID Support Grant - (250)
Safer Streets Grant - (169)
Victim Services Grant - (152)
Total (4,288) (5,627)

* Replenishment of officer numbers under National Officer Uplift Project, £240k in 2019/20 within Police Grant

PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

Credited to Services

Other Grant Income

Special Grant (1,600) (993)
Ers Contribution Pension Shortfall Grant (1,175) (1,175)
Police Transformation Fund - Domestic Abuse Grant (590) -

Home Office PUP Grant* - (1,397)
Apprenticeship Levy Grant (55) (38)
COVID Support Grant - (732)
Safer Streets Grant - (728)
Victim Services Grant (868) (1,122)
Total (4,288) (6,184)

Where the Group has received grants with conditions attached that it has not met at year end,
these have yet to be recognised as income.

Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance <1 year

Home Office Special Grant (196) (201)

Total (196) (201)

45:13. Intra-Group Financing

An annual intra-group transfer of funds is made by the PCC to the Chief Constable. This intra-
group transfer will equal the income requirement for the Chief Constable.
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16-14. Property Plant and Equipment

M. ts and closing in 2019/20 Group / PCC

Cost or Valuation

Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forw ard

Additions

Asset Additions Leased

Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
including Leased Assets

Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

Derecognition - Disposals

Derecognition - Leased assets

Assets reclassified to/from Surplus Assets

Assets reclassified to/from Assets Held for Sale

Assets reclassified to/from Assets Under Construction including Leased Asse

At 31 March 2020

Depreciation and Impairment

Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forw ard

Depreciation w ritten out through the revaluation reserve
Derecognition - Disposals

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in CIES
Depreciation charge in year

At 31 March 2020
Net Book Value:

At 31 March 2020
At 31 March 2019

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — YraAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

Land and
Buildings
£000

24,648
1,024
2,759

7,318

(3,530)
(15)
(2,525)
(288)
7,208

36,599

1
899
(880)

18

36,617
24,647

Vehicles,
Plant,
Furniture &
£000

31,614
2,741
1,707

(884)
(1,707)

310
33,781

(25,716)

857

(2,296)
(27,155)

6,626
5,898

Surplus
Assets
£000

(572)

(197)

2,525

1,756

182

(182)

1,756

Assets
Under
Construction
£000

9,014

774
310

(310)

(7.518)
2,270

2,270
9,014

Total
Property,
Plant and

£000

65,276
4,539
4,776

6,746

(3,727)
(899)
(2,017)

(288)

74,406

(25,717)
1,081
857

(3,358)
(27,137)

47,269
39,559
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Vehicles, Assets Total
Land and Plant, Surplus Under Property,
M ts and closing in 2020/21 Group / PCC Buildings| Furniture & Assets| Construction Plant and
£000 £000’ £000 £000 £000
Cost or Valuation
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forw ard 36,599 33,781 1,756 2,270 74,406
Additions 2,654 2,220 - 1,820 6,694
Asset Additions Leased 7 138 785 994
Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
including Leased Assets (637) - - - (837)
Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services (1,000) - - - (1,000)
Derecognition - Disposals - (13,406) - - (13,406)
Derecognition - Leased assets - (138) - (785) (923)
Assets reclassified to/from Surplus Assets 250 - (250) - -
Assets reclassified to/from Assets Under Construction including Leased Ass¢ 18 171 - (189) -
At 31 March 2021 37,955 22,766 1,506 3,901 66,128
Depreciation and Impairment
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forw ard 18 (27,155) - - (27,137)
Depreciation w ritten out through the revaluation reserve 1,493 - 84 - 1,577
Derecognition - Disposals - 13,404 - - 13,404
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in CIES - - - -
Depreciation charge in year (1,513) (2,447) (84) - (4,044)
At 31 March 2021 (2) (16,198) - - (16,200)
Net Book Value:
At 31 March 2021 37,953 6,568 1,506 3,901 49,928
At 31 March 2020 36,617 6,626 1,756 2,270 47,269
Plant, Total Property,
Land and Furniture & Assets Under Plant and
Movements and closing balances in 2020/21 Group / PCC Buildings| Equipment, Surplus Assets Construction Equipment
£000 00 £000 0 000
Cost or Valuation
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward 36,599 33,781 1,756 2,270 74,406
Additions 2,654 2,220 - 1,281 6,155
Asset Additions Leased 7 138 392 601
1 ) in the Revaluation Reserve including
Leased Assets (637) - - - (637)
ion ) i in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Senices (1,000) - - - (1,000)
Derecognition - Disposals - (13,406) - - (13,406)
Derecognition - Leased assets - (138) - (392) (530)
Assets reclassified to/from Surplus Assets 250 - (250) - -
Assets reclassified to/from Assets Under Construction including Leased Assets 18 171 - (189) -
At 31 March 2021 37,955 22,766 1,506 3,362 65,589
Depreciation and Impairment
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forward 18 (27,155), - - (27,137)
Depreciation written out through the revaluation reserve 1,493 - 84 - 1,577
Derecognition - Disposals - 13,404 - - 13,404
ion il i in CIES - - - -
Depreciation charge in year (1,513) (2,447) (84). - (4,044)
At 31 March 2021 ) (16,198) - - (16,200)
Net Book Value:
At 31 March 2021 37,953 6,568 1,506 3,362 49,389
At 31 March 2020 36,617 6,626 1,756 2,270 47,269
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Vehicles,
Land and Plant,
M ts and closing in 2020/21 Group / PCC Buildings| Furniture &
£000 £000
Cost or Valuation
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forw ard 36,599 33,781
Additions 2,654 2,220
Asset Additions Leased 7 138
Revaluati L ) din the Revaluation Reserve
including Leased Assets (516) -
Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services (1,000) -
Derecognition - Disposals - (13,406)
Derecognition - Leased assets - (138)
Assets reclassified to/from Surplus Assets 250 -
Assets reclassified to/from Assets Under Construction including Leased Ass¢ 18 171
At 31 March 2021 38,076 22,766
Depreciation and Impairment
Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forw ard 18 (27,155)
Depreciation written out through the revaluation reserve 1,493 -
Derecognition - Disposals - 13,404
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in CIES - -
Depreciation charge in year (1,513) (2,447)
At 31 March 2021 (2) (16,198)
Net Book Value:
At 31 March 2021 38,074 6,568
At 31 March 2020 36,617 6,626

Assets
Surplus Under
Assets| Construction
£000 £000
1,756 2,270
- 1,281
392
- (392)
(250) -
- (189)
1,506 3,362
84 -
(84) -
1,506 3,362
- 2,270

Total
Property,
Plant and

£000

74,406
6,155
601

(516)

(1,000)
(13,406)
(530)

65,710

(27,137)
1,577
13,404

(4,044)
(16,200)

49,510
47,269

A combination of Level 1 and 2 inputs have been adopted in arriving at the opinions of the Fair
Fair Values are explained in the

Values of the PCC's Surplus Assets by the Valuers.

Accounting Policies in section 1.35.
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46-1-14.1. Major Non-Current Assets

Analysis of the numbers of major non-current assets:

Bluelight South Park Campus 1
East Coast Training Centre -

2019/20 2020/21

Group /PCC (Numbers)| (Numbers)
Force Headquarters 1 1
Police Stations 38 36
Former Lincoln Police Station (now Surplus Asset) - 1
Sexual Assault Referral Centre 1 1
Major Aerial sites 3 3
Vehicles 446 501
Police Dog Training Establishment 1 1
1

1

4715. Valuation of Non-Current Assets

Land and buildings have been revalued, on the basis described in Note 1, and in accordance
with the principles of the Accounting Code of Practice, as at the 1 April 2020 by Chartered
Surveyors Align Property Partners who are RICS Registered Valuers and independent of the
PCC. It should be noted that a separate valuation was commissioned for the Blue Light
Campus by Kier Specialist Services for leasing purposes.

A material change review was completed by Align Property Partners as at 31 March 2021 and
the report stated:

The outbreak of the COVID-19, declared by the World Health Organisation as a “Global
Pandemic” on 11 March 2020, has impacted global financial markets. Travel restrictions have
been implemented by many countries.

The current response to COVID-19 means that we are faced with an unprecedented set of
circumstances on which to base a judgement.

Our valuation is therefore on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty as per VPS 3 and
VGA of the RICS Red Book Global. Consequently, less certainty — and a higher degree of
caution — should be attached to our valuation than would normally be the case. Given the
unknown future impact that COVID-19 might have on the real estate market, we recommend
that you keep the valuation of these properties under frequent review.

As at a valuation date of 31st March 2021, we are unable to comment with full accuracy as to
the recent changes in the market and their impact on values at the current time and in such
exceptional circumstances because this is an entirely unknown quantity and the local economy
and property market are effectively on lockdown at this time. We are able to comment
generally that the current market situation is highly likely to have a negative impact on both
values and marketability of properties across the portfolio and the full impact will become more
apparent in the fullness of time once transactions return to the market.

The next desktop review will take place at the end of January 2022 as at 1 April 2021.
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418:16. Intangible Assets

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Balance at start of year:
Gross carrying amounts 5,954 6,170
Accumulated amortisation (3,285) (4,050)
Net carrying amount at start of year 2,669 2,120
Amortisation for the period (765) (781)
Additions:
Purchases 216 197
Additions leased 168 198
Reclassified to Finance Leases:
Disposals (168) (198)
Net carrying amount at end of year 2,120 1,536
Comprising:
Gross carrying amounts 6,170 6,367
Accumulated amortisation (4,050) (4,831)
2,120 1,536

The PCC has no internally generated assets. All other assets have finite useful lives of 8
years and are amortised on a straight line basis. The amortisation of £781k charged to
revenue in the year was charged to the capital financing cost centre and then absorbed as an
overhead by the PCC in the Cost of Services.

19:17._Capital Commitments

Within the approved capital programme of £5.654m for 2021/22, the following commitments
exist from the 2020/21 programme:

e The front entrance and reception at Shared Headquarters to become compliant with
disability access legislation. This commenced early in the 2021 calendar year with an
anticipated completion date of May/June 2021;

e Completion of the Command and Control project for £1,700k;

o A Business Intelligence Tool for £1,200k;

e The Emergency Services Network (ESN) programme to continue with a budget of
approximately £500k for 2021/22 although the significant levels of expenditure on this
project are not expected until the 2022/23 year;

e The Nexus Core Switch for £381k and Body Worn Camera for £900k — an instruction to
deliver these two projects had been given to G4S by 31st March 2021, with completion
expected in the early part of the 2021/22 financial year;

e The ISO Accreditation for the Forensic Collision Network for £150k.

20.18. Capital Expenditure and Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below,

together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure is
financed in future years by charges to revenue, the expenditure results in an increase in
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Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred
historically by the PCC that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part

of this note.
2019/20 2020/21
G /PCC
roup £000 £000
Opening Capital Financing requirement 39,820 43,582
Capital Investment
Land and Buildings 3,783 2,725
Plant and Equipment 2,741 2,220
Assets Under Construction 774 1,820
Intangible Assets 216 197
G4S Leased Assets 2,185 1,121
Sources of Finance
Capital Receipts (56) (313)
Government Grants and other Contributions (779) (1,145)
Direct Revenue Financing (205) (1,400)
Minimum Revenue Provision (1,870) (2,467)
Revenue Provision (3,027) (3,122)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 43,582 43,218
Explanation of Movements in Year
Assets acquired under finance leases 2,185 1,121
Increase / (decrease) in underlying need to borrow 1,577 (1,485)
Increasel/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 3,762 (364)
2019/20 2020/21
P
Group /PCC £000 £000
Opening Capital Financing requirement 39,820 43,582
Capital Investment
Land and Buildings 3,783 2,725
Plant and Equipment 2,741 2,220
Assets Under Construction 774 1,281
Intangible Assets 216 197
G4S Leased Assets 2,185 728
Sources of Finance
Capital Receipts (56) (313)
Government Grants and other Contributions (779) (1,145)
Direct Revenue Financing (205) (1,400)
Minimum Revenue Provision (1,870) (2,467)
Revenue Provision (3,027) (3,391)
Closing Capital Financing Requirement 43,582 42,017
Explanation of Movements in Year
Assets acquired under finance leases 2,185 728
Increase / (decrease) in underlying need to borrow 1,577 (2,293)
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 3,762 (1,565)
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21.19. Finance Leases

2414.19.1. PCC as Lessee - Finance Leases

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5 cm, Hanging: 0.76 cm, No

. 2019/20 2020/21
Net Carrying Amount - Group / PCC £000 £00(//{ bullets or numbering
Land and Buildings 14,107 13,94?
\.ehiclesPlant-Furniture-and-Equip 7,107 6,543
21,214 20,455
24:2.
. 2019/20 2020/21
Net Carrying Amount - Group / PCC £000 £000
Land and Buildings 14,107 13,912
Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment 7,107 6,004
21,214 19,916
- 2019/20 2020/21
Minimum Lease Payments - Group / PCC £000 £000
Not later than one year 3,026 3,660
Later than one year and not later than five years 3,026 -
Later than five years - -
6,052 3,660
- 2019/20 2020/21
Minimum Lease Payments - Group / PCC £000 £000
Not later than one year 3,026 3,391
Later than one year and not later than five years 3,026 -
Later than five years - -
6,052 3,391

The PCC Group has a Police dog training establishment with kennels and a radio mast
under a 99-year finance lease. The asset acquired under this lease is carried as Property,
Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet, and as Land and Buildings in the table below.
There is no corresponding liability to recognise as the PCC paid the full costs of
constructing the premises at the inception of the lease. If demanded the annual rent is one
peppercorn per annum, so there are no minimum lease payments to disclose.

As part of the strategic partnership with G4S, ICT and furniture assets were transferred to
G4S in 2012/13. Additional assets have since been added and are now valued at £3.74m.
Under IFRIC 4 there is a finance lease for these assets. The associated minimum lease
payments are shown above. There are no contingent rents or sublease payments.

In November 2019, the PCC Group moved into the Blue Light Campus, Lincoln’s new joint
fire, police and ambulance station on South Park, occupied through a 70-year finance lease
with Lincolnshire County Council. This asset is classed as Property, Plant and Equipment
in the Balance Sheet as a finance lease at a value of £13.7m. There is no corresponding
lease liability to recognise as the PCC Group paid a contribution prior to the inception of
the lease. Any revaluation amount has been credited to the revaluation reserve. If
demanded the annual rent is one peppercorn per annum.

The assets are carried in the PCC Group asset register and are subject to depreciation.
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24.3.19.2. PCC as Lessee - Operating Leases

The PCC has acquired a number of assets by entering into operating leases, typically on a
short-term basis. The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases
in future years are:

Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000
Not later than one year 21 38
Later than one year and not later than five years - 97

Later than five years - -
21 135

The expenditure charged against the cost of services section of the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to leases was:

Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Minimum lease payments 55 55
55 55

The PCC Group has additional licenses to occupy premises on a peppercorn rent basis,
which are cancellable by either party at between 1 and 3 months’ notice. These premises
are typically utilised by Neighbourhood Police Teams. No payments are made for these
licenses and as such no value is recorded in the tables above in relation to them.

21.4.19.3. PCC as Lessor - Operating Leases

The PCC leases out office accommodation and space on radio masts under operating
leases for the following purposes:

« Office accommodation for the provision of probation services;
¢ Office accommodation for the provision of UK immigration services;
e Space on radio masts for telecommunication services.

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future
years are:
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Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000
Not later than one year 120 98
Later than one year and not later than five years 259 128
Later than five years 27 34
406 260
Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Not later than one year 120 98
Later than one year and not later than five years 259 283
Later than five years 27 34
406 415

Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue occupied 8.32% of the shared Headquarters site. The annual
rental cost is on a peppercorn basis.

A service charge of £90k was levied to facilitate Lincolnshire Police recovering expenditure
incurred on items such as rates and utilities. In accordance with guidance, this service
charge is not included in the above table as service charges are excluded from minimum
lease payments.

22.20. Assets Held for Sale

Group / PCC 2019/20
£000

Cost or Valuation

Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forw ard -
Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve (38)
Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the

Provision of Services -
Assets reclassified to Assets Held for Sale from PPE 288
At 31 March 2020 250

Depreciation and Impairment

Balance at 31 March 2019 carried forw ard -
Depreciation w ritten out through the revaluation reserve (prior to reclassification) 13
Depreciation charge in year (13)

At 31 March 2020 -
Net Book Value:

At 31 March 2020 250
At 31 March 2019 -
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Group / PCC

Cost or Valuation

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forw ard

Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Increases/ (decreases) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the
Provision of Services

Derecognition - Disposals

Assets reclassified to Assets Held for Sale from PPE

At 31 March 2021

Depreciation and Impairment

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried forw ard

Depreciation w ritten out through the revaluation reserve (prior to reclassification)
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in CIES

Derecognition - Disposals

Depreciation charge in year

At 31 March 2021
Net Book Value:

At 31 March 2021
At 31 March 2020
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£000

250
(39)

(19)
(192)

250
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23.21. Inventories

Uniform and

Equipment

2019/20| 2020/21

Group / PCC

£000
Balance at Start of Year 304
Purchases 163
Recognised as an Expense in
the year (207)
Balance at End of Year 260

£000
260
119

(136)
243

Diesel

2019/20| 2020/21

£000
11
676

(647)
140

£000
140
433

(468)
105

Fleet

Maintenance

2019/20| 2020/21

£000
51
118

(116)
53

£000
53
104

(117)
40

Other

Total

2019/20| 2020/21| 2019/20| 2020/21

£000
3

(2)
1

£000

£000
469
957

(972)
454

£000
454
661

(726)
389

It should be noted that no uniform stocktake took place as at 31 March 2021 due the
cancellation of the physical stock count owing to the Covid-19 outbreak. The last stocktake

was undertaken in April 2019 and an adjustment made for £0.7k.

As part of Operation TALLA, set up to deal with the Covid-19 pandemic, the national police
distribution hub has been supplying Personal Protective Equipment free of charge to all Police
Forces. The value of this PPE held by the PCC for Lincolnshire as at 31 March 2021 was
£14,871 based on the current average market rate at the time. This is not held on the balance
sheet by way of a donated inventories account due to the low level of materiality. There is no
physical cost transfer to the PCC; both the income and expenditure is accounted for by the
Department of Health and Social Care on behalf of all Police Forces who have received the
funding for public sector PPE directly from HM Treasury.
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24.22. Debtors

2019/20 Group

2020/2

1

Local/Central

Local/Central

Other Entities

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Hanging: 0.25 cm

Other Entities
Government| | dividuals Total Government| . | | dividuals Total
Bodies Bodies
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year:
1,374 69 1,444 | Trade Receivables 1,083 68 1,151
1,904 314 2,217 | Accrued Income 1,888 227 2,115
2,313 - 2,313 | Local Taxation Receivable 2,917 - 2,917
1,691 - 1,691 | VAT Claim Receivable 816 - 816
5,749 - 5,749 | Home Office Retirement Benefits Grant Receivable 6,428 - 6,428
4 451 455 | Prepayments and Other Receivable Amounts 18 1,176 1,194
13,035 835 43,870 | Total Dahtars falling dua withi 13,151 1,471 14,622
2019/20 Group / PCC 2020/21
Local/Central| Other Entities Other Entities
Local/Central
Government and Total 6o ¢ Bodi and Total
Bodies|  Individuals vernment Sodies|  ndividuals
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year:
1,374 69 1,444 | Trade Receivables 1,083 68 1,151
1,904 314 2,217 | Accrued Income 1,888 227 2,115
2,313 - 2,313 | Local Taxation Receivable 2,917 - 2,917
1,691 - 1,691 | VAT Claim Receivable 816 - 816
5,749 - 5,749 | Home Office Retirement Benefits Grant Receivable 6,428 - 6,428
4 451 455 | Prepayments and Other Receivable Amounts 18 1,176 1,194
13,035 835 13,870 |Total Debtors falling due within one year 13,151 1,471 14,622
2019/20 PCC 2020/21
Local/Central Other Entities Local/Central Other Entities
Government d Total Government o
" and Individuals °"" and Individuals
Bodies, Bodies,
£000 £000 £000 £000. £000
Amounts falling due within one year:
1,374 69 1,444 | Trade Receivables 1,083 68
1,904 314 2,217 | Accrued Income 1,888 227 * 2115
2,313 - 2,313 | Local Taxation Receivable 2,917 - 2,917
1,691 - 1,691 | VAT Claim Receivable 816 - 816
5,749 - 5,749 | Home Office Retirement Benefits Grant Receivable 6,428 - 6,428
4 451 455 | Prepayments and Other Receivable Amounts 18 1,176 1,194
(2,414) (2,414)| PCC guarantee for accumulated absences liability (3,076) (3,076)
25, 13,035 (1,580) 11,456 |Total Debtors falling due within one year 13,151 (1,605) 11,546
2019/20|Group / PCC 2020/21
Local/Central
Government Bodies
£000 £000
Amounts falling due after one year:
- Long Term Debtors 25
- Total Debtors falling due after one year 25
26.23. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Group / PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Cash Held by the PCC 28 23
Bank Current Accounts (407) 188
Insurance Imprest Account 48 27
Confiscated Account (117) (202)
Short-term Deposits 6,600 8,870
6,152 8,906

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Any cash confiscated as part of police operations is paid into and held in the bank current
account until a later date when it is decided by the court whether it should be paid back to the
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individual from whom it was eenfiseated;—orconfiscated or paid over to the Home Office as a

result of criminal activity.

27.24. Creditors

Other entities and individuals include supplies and services, pay accruals, receipts in advance,
other creditors and employee benefits. Employee benefits are the theoretical value of annual
leave or time owed to staff at the Balance Sheet date.

2019/20 Group 202021
LocaliCentrall o entities and LocaliCentral| o entities and
Government Total Government Individuals Total
Bodies Bodies
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(1,147) (964) (2,111)| Trade Payables (43) (659) (702)
(2,085) (2,297) (4,382)| Accruals and Receipts in Advance (1,258) (4,495) (5,753)
064} (2,628 (4,692 Dolica and Polica Staff Pay Cradi (2,229) (3.417) (5,646)
(1,343) - (1,343)| Local Taxation Payable (2,790) - (2,790)
- (96) (96)| Other Amounts Payable - (130) (130)
(6,639) (5,985) (12,624)| Total Short-Term Creditors (6,320) (8,701) (15,021)
2019/20 Group / PCC 2020/21
LocallCentral| o, - Entities and LocallCentral| o nities and
Government Total Government, Individuals Total
Bodies Bodies
£000 £000! £000! £000 £000 £000
(1,147) (964) (2,111)| Trade Payables (43) (658) (701)
(2,085) (2,297) (4,382)| Accruals and Receipts in Advance (1,258) (3,956) (5,214)
(2,064) (2,628) (4,692)| Police and Police Staff Pay Creditors (2,229) (3417) (5,646)
(1,343) - (1,343)| Local Taxation Payable (2,790) - (2,790)
- (96) (96)| Other Amounts Payable - (130) (130)
(6,639) (5,985) (12,624) | Total Short-Term Creditors (6,320) (8,161) (14,481)
202021
Local/Central|  Other Entities and Local/Central  Other Entities and
Bodies, ivi Total Government Bodies Individuals| Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(1,147) (964) (2,111)| Trade Payables (43) (659) (702)
(2,085) (2,297) (4,382)| Accruals and Receipts in Advance (1,258) (4,495) (5,753)
(2,064) (214) (2,278)| Police and Police Staff Pay Creditors (2.229) (341) (2,570)
(1,343) - (1,343)| Local Taxation Payable (2.790) - (2,790)
- (96) (96), Other Amounts Payable - (130) (130)
(6,639) (3,571) (10,210) Total Short-Term Creditors (6,320) (5,625) (11,945)
2019/20 PCC 2020/21
LocallCentrall o - qgities and LocaliCentral| oo ntities and
Government Individuals Total Government Individuals Total
Bodies Bodies
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(1,147) (964) (2,111)| Trade Payables (43) (658) (701)
(2,085) (2,297) (4,382)| Accruals and Receipts in Advance (1,258) (3,956) (5,214)
(2,064) (214) (2,278)| Police and Police Staff Pay Creditors (2,229) (341) (2,570)
(1,343) - (1,343)| Local Taxation Payable (2,790) - (2,790)
- (96) (96)| Other Amounts Payable - (130) (130)
- (2,414) (2,414) Inter Group - (3,076) (3,076)
(6,639) (5,985) (12,624) | Total Short-Term Creditors (6,320) (8,161) (14,481)
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28.25. Revenue provisions

The PCC Group has made provisions to meet the costs of the liabilities described below. They
are classified as provisions because there is a present obligation to transfer economic benefit
as a result of a past event, payment is probable and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Additional

Short Term Provisions - Group Balance 31| provisions made Amounts used Unused amounts Balance 31
March 2020 in 2020/21 in 2020/21| reversed in 2020/21 March 2021
Legal Services (512) (318) - - (830)
Termination Benefits of Employment 17) - - 2 (15)
Demand Analysis (30) - - - (30)
SPOC Overtime (Source Handlers) (284) - - 194 (90)

Il Health Reserve (112) - - 112 -
Source Handlers Legal Costs (80) - - - (80)
Stores Provision (26) - - 10 (16)
Fleet Liabilty w ith G4S (50) - - - (50)
GMP Pension Reconciliation (11) - - - (11)
Fixed Term Contract Liabilities (191) - - - (191)
Total (1,313) (318) - 318 (1,313)

Additional

Short Term Provisions - PCC Balance 31| provisions made | Amounts used Unused amounts Balance 31
March 2020 in 2020/21 in 2020/21| reversed in 2020/21 March 2021
Legal Services (512) (318) - - (830)
Demand Analysis (30) - - - (30)
SPOC Overtime (Source Handlers) (284) - - 194 (90)

Il Health Reserve (112) - - 112 -
Source Handlers Legal Costs (80) - - - (80)
Stores Provision (26) - - 10 (16)
Fleet Liabilty w ith G4S (50) - - - (50)
GMP Pension Reconciliation 11) - - - (11)
Fixed Term Contract Liabilities (191) - - - (191)
Total (1,296) (318) - 316 (1,298)

All provisions are held by the PCC except for the termination benefits of employment relating
to the pension payments which are held by the Chief Constable along with the IAS19 Pension
Liability.

Additional
Long Term Provisions - Group Balance 31| provisions made| Amounts used Unused amounts Balance 31
March 2020 in 2020/21 in 2020/21| reversed in 2020/21 March 2021
Termination Benefits of Employment (108) - - 32 (76)
Total (108) - - 32 (76)
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29.26. Usable Reserves

Movements in the PCC’s Usable Reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves
Statements. The PCC keeps a number of reserves in the Balance Sheet. Some are required
to be held for statutory reasons, some are needed to comply with proper accounting practice,
and others have been set up voluntarily to earmark resources for future spending plans.

Capital| Earmarked Earmarked Earmarked General Fund General Total
Grants Reserves Reserves Reserves| General Fund Balance Reserve Usable
Usable Reserves - Group Unapplied (Pcc) (Region)’ Total: Balance (Region) Total Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance as at 31 March 2020 12 11,912 527 12,439 3,297 34 3,331 15,782
Movements during the year
Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of senices - (12,514) (17)’ (12,531) (12,531)
Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations (12) - 16,995 16,995 16,983
Income and Expenditure contribution 6,196 - 6,196 (6,196). - (6,196). -
Used in the year (2,199) (7) (2,216) 2,199 17 2,216 -
Adjustments to usable reserves (2,163) (2,163) 2,163 2,163 -
Total reserve movements 2020/21 (12) 1,834 (7 1,817 2,647 - 2,647 4,452
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 13,746 510 14,256 5,944 34 5,978 20,234
Capital General | General Fund General Total
Grants | Reserves Reserves Reserves Fund Balance Reserve Usable
Usable Reserves - Group Unapplied (PcC) (Region) Total Balance (Region) Total | Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance as at 31 March 2020 12 11,912 527 12,439 3,297 34 3,332 15,782
Movements during the year
Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of services - (12,245) (17)|  (12,262)| (12,262)
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations (12) - 16,726 16,726 16,714
Income and Expenditure contribution 6,196 - 6,196 (6,196) - (6,196) -
Used in the year (2,199) 17) (2,216) 2,199 17 2,216 -
Adjustments to usable reserves (2,163) (2,163) 2,163 2,163 -
Total reserve movements 2020/21 (12) 1,834 “7) 1,817 2,647 - 2,647 4,452
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 13,746 510 14,256 5,944 34 5979 | 20,234
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Capital| Earmarked| Earmarked| Earmarked General Fund General Total
Grants Reserves Reserves Reserves| General Fund Balance Reserve’ Usable
Usable Reserves - PCC Unapplied (PCC) (Region) Total Balance (Region) Total Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance as at 31 March 2020 12 11,912 527 12,439 3,297 34 3,331 15,782
Movements during the year
Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of senices 4,277 (17)’ 4,260 4,260
Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations (12); - 204 204 192
Income and Expenditure contribution 6,196 - 6,196 (6,196) - (6,196). -
Used in the year (2,199) (7) (2,216) 2,199 17 2,216 -
Adjustments to usable reserves (2,163). (2,163). 2,163 2,163 -
Total reserve movements 2020/21 (12) 1,834 17) 1,817 2,647 - 2,647 4,452
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 13,746 510 14,256 5,944 34 5,978 20,234
Capital General | General Fund General Total
Grants | Reserves Reserves Reserves Fund Balance Reserve Usable
Usable Reserves - PCC Unapplied (PCC) (Region) Total Balance (Region) Total | Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance as at 31 March 2020 12 11,912 527 12,439 3,297 34 3,332 15,782
Movements during the year
Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of services 4,546 17) 4,529 4,529
Adjustments betw een accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations (12) - (65) (65) (77)
Income and Expenditure contribution 6,196 - 6,196 (6,196) - (6,196) -
Used in the year (2,199) (17) (2,216) 2,199 17 2,216 -
Adjustments to usable reserves (2,163) (2,163) 2,163 2,163 -
Total reserve movements 2020/21 (12) 1,834 (17) 1,817 2,647 - 2,647 4,452
Balance as at 31 March 2021 - 13,746 510 14,256 5,944 34 5,979 20,234
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30.27. Unusable Reserves

Unusable Reserves - Group 2019/20 2020/21 { Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1 cm, No bullets
£000 £000 /Lor numbering
Revaluation Reserve 12,522 12,866 Va
Capital Adjustment Account (6,467) (4,230) /
Pensions Resene (1,416,103) (1,741,362) h
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 582 128
Accumulated Absences Account (2,414) (3,076)
Total Unusable Reserves (1,411,880) (1,735,673)
Unusable Reserves - Group 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Revaluation Reserve 12,522 12,987
Capital Adjustment Account (6,467) (3,961)
Pensions Reserve (1,416,103) (1,744,430)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 582 128
Accumulated Absences Account (2,414) (3,076)
Total Unusable Reserves (1,411,880) (1,738,352)
Unusable Reserves - PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Revaluation Reserve 12,522 12,866
Sapiariajsstrmensh & (6,467) (4,230)
Pensions Reserve (13,629) (21,707)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 582 128
Accumulated Absences Account (2,414) (3,076)
Total Unusable Reserves (9,406) (16,019)
Unusable Reserves - PCC 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Revaluation Reserve 12,522 12,987
Capital Adjustment Account (6,467) (3,961)
Pensions Reserve (13,629) (22,643)
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 582 128
Accumulated Absences Account (2,414) (3,076)

Total Unusable Reserves (9,406) (16,565)

32.28. Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve records the accumulated gains on the long-term assets held by the
PCC arising from increases in value. The Reserve is also debited with amounts equal to the
part of depreciation charges on assets that have been incurred only because the asset has
been re-valued. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

¢ Re-valued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;
e Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or
¢ Disposed of and the gains are realised.
The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the

Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the
balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.
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2019/20 2020/21
Gi /PCC
£000 roup £000
5,017 |Balance at 1 April 12,522
11,031 |Upw ard revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,699
Dow nw ard revaluation of Property Plant and Equipment, and impairment losses not
(3,165) | charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (758)
Dow nw ard revaluation of Assets Held for Sale and impairment losses not charged
(25) | to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (39)
Surplus / (Deficit) on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the
7,841 |Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 902
Difference betw een fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation and
(336) | adjustment on revaluation reserve (558)
(336) Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (558)
12,522 |Balance at 31 March 12,866
2019720 2020/21
Gi /PCC
£000 roup £000
5,017 |Balance at 1 April 12,522
11,031 |Upw ard revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,727
Dow nw ard revaluation of Property Plant and Equipment, and impairment losses not
(3,165) | charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (665)
Dow nw ard revaluation of Assets Held for Sale and impairment losses not charged
(25) | to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (39)
Surplus / (Deficit) on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the
7,841 |Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 1,023
Difference betw een fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation and
(336) | adjustment on revaluation reserve (558)
(336) Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account (558)
12,522 |Balance at 31 March 12,987
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33:29. Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The
Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation;
impairment losses and amortisation are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair
value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside
by the PCC Group as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.
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2019/20 Group / PCC
£000
(2,609) Balance at 1 April
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:
(3,410) | Charges for depreciation and impairment on non-current assets
(3,727) | Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
(765) | Amortisation of intangible assets
Amounts of non-current assets w ritten off on disposal or sale as
(2,228) | part of the gain/(loss) on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
(10,130)
335 |Amounts w ritten out of the Revaluation Reserve
Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets

9,795 .
( ) consumed in the year

Capital financing applied in the year:
56 |Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

Capital grants and contributions credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing:

205 | Capital expenditure charged against the general fund

Application of capital grants and contributions to capital financing

transferred to the CAA

779

1,040
Items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:

4,897 |Revenue provision for the repayment of debt

4,897

(6,467) Balance at 31 March

2020/21
£000
(6,467)

(4,045)
(1,019)
(781)

(923)

(6,768)
558

(6,210)

313

1,400
1,145
2,858

5,589
5,589
(4,230)
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2019/20 Group / PCC 2020/21
£000 £000
(2,609) Balance at 1 April (6,467)
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement:
(3,410) | Charges for depreciation and impairment on non-current assets (4,045)
(3,727) | Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment (1,019)
(765) | Amortisation of intangible assets (781)
Amounts of non-current assets w ritten off on disposal or sale as
(2,228) part of the gain/(loss) on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and (923)
Expenditure Statement
(10,130) (6,768)
335 |Amounts w ritten out of the Revaluation Reserve 558
(9,795) Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets (6,210)

consumed in the year
Capital financing applied in the year:
56 |Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 313

Capital grants and contributions credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that
have been applied to capital financing:

205 | Capital expenditure charged against the general fund 1,400

779 Application of capital grants and contributions to capital financing 1145
transferred to the CAA ’

1,040 2,858

Items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:

4,897 |Revenue provision for the repayment of debt 5,858
4,897 5,858
(6,467) Balance at 31 March (3,961)

The Account contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
before 1 April 2007, the date the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. Note
6-7 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from
those involving the Revaluation Reserve.
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34.30. Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with
statutory provisions. The PCC Group, accounts for post-employment benefits in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However,
statutory arrangements require a benefit earned to be financed, as the PCC Group makes
employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is
directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve shows a substantial shortfall
in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Group has set
aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will have been set aside by the time the
benefits come to be paid.

2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
PCC Group PCC Group
£000 £000 £000 £000

(20,912) | (1,545,497)|Balance at 1 April (13,629)  (1,416,103)

8,814 156,099 |Actuarial gains or losses on pensions assets and liabilities (7,323) (307,711)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or

(2,815) (67,029)| peficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (2,037) (59,578)

Statement
1,276 34,659 |Employers contributions payable to scheme 1,280 35,569
8 27_| Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits - -

5,623 |Employers contributions payable to schemes - Cash Top-up 6,428

15 Other unfunded termination benefits 33

(13,629) | (1,416,103)|Balance at 31 March (21,707)|  (1,741,362)

2019/20 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21
PCC Group PCC Group
£000 £000 £000 £000

(20,912) | (1,545,497)|Balance at 1 April (13,629)  (1,416,103)

8,814 156,099 |Actuarial gains or losses on pensions assets and liabilities (8,259) (310,779)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or

(2,815) (67,029)| peficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (2,037) (59,578)

Statement
1,276 34,659 |Employers contributions payable to scheme 1,280 35,569
8 27 | Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits - -

5,623 |Employers contributions payable to schemes - Cash Top-up 6,428

15 Other unfunded termination benefits 33

(13,629) | (1,416,103)|Balance at 31 March (22,643)|  (1,744,430)

35.31. Collection Fund

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition
of council tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due
from council tax payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts
to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.

The Code also requires the PCC to account for its share of net council tax arrears and
prepayments within the Balance Sheet. This is offset withing the Balance Sheet by an
associated balance that reflects the difference between the net attributable share of cash
received by the billing authorities from the council tax debtors/creditors and the amounts paid
to the PCC. The amounts owed to/from billing authorities in respect of council tax at the year-
end were as follows:
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2019/20

2020/21

izgi:’l‘(i:;;:g‘; Net Arrears | Prepayments Balar;:l::rz; Group/PCC iz::/:i:i:;:g‘; Net Arrears | Prepayments Balarxl::r:;
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(52) 610 (258) 300 |Lincoln City Council 69 894 (194) 769
(1), 254 (184). 59 |Boston Borough Council (37)’ 335 (160): 138
(116) 366 (227) 23 |East Lindsey District Council 43) 383 (242) 98
(184) 533 (199) 150 |West Lindsey District Council (146) 614 (234) 234
- 188 (200): (12)|North Kesteven District Council (20); 208 (204). (16)
(152) 258 (153) (47) South Kesteven District Council 63 202 (155) 200
(66) 104 (122) (84) South Holland District Council (14) 192 (121) 57
(581) 2,313 (1,343) 389 (128) 2,918 (1,310) 1,480
2019/20 A | DOA 2020/21
£000 i £000
472 |Balance at 1 April 582
Amount by w hich council tax income credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax income calculated for
109 |the year in accordance w ith statutory requirements (454)
582 Balance at 31 March 128
Represented by:
3,624 | Council tax arrears 4,484
(1,310) | Impairment for doubtful debts (1,566)
(1,343) | Council tax overpayments and prepayments (1,309)
(389) | Creditors, biling authorities (1,481)
582 | Collection fund surplus / (deficit) 128
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36.32. Accumulated Absences

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on
the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in
the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements

require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by transfers to or from
the Account.

2019/20 2020/21
£000 Group [ PCC £000
(2,108) Balance at 1 April (2,414)
2,108 | Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year 2,414
(2,414) | Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (3,076)

Amount by w hich officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income

and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration
(306) chargeable in the year in accordance w ith statutory requirements (662)
(2,414) Balance at 31 March (3,076)
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37-33. Cash Flow — Adjustments on Provision of Services for Non-Cash Movements

2019/20 2020/21
£000 Cash Flow - Non Cash Movements £000
PCC Group PCC
(3,371) (3,371)|Depreciation of Non-Current Assets (4,044)
(3,765) (3,765)|Impairment and Downward Valuations of Non-Current Assets (1,019)
(765) (765)| Amortisation of Intangible Assets (781)
- - |Amortisation of Government Grant and Other Contributions -
(202) (202)| (Increase)/Decrease in Impairment Provisions for Bad Debts (10)
1,106 1,412 |(Increase)/Decrease in Creditors (1,735) (2,397)
(379) (685)|Increase/(Decrease) in Debtors 125 787
(15) (15)|Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories (65) (65)
(1,531) (26,720)|Pension Liability (757) (17,581)
(2,227) (2,227)|Carrying Amount of Non-Current Assets Sold and Assets Held for Sale (1,315) (1,315)
220 238 | Contributions to Provisions - 31
as. (10,929) (36,100) Non Cash Movements (9,601) (26,394)
2019/20 2020/21
£000 Cash Flow - Non Cash Movements £000
PCC Group PCC Group
(3,371) (3,371) | Depreciation of Non-Current Assets (4,044) (4,044)
(3,765) (3,765) | Impairment and Dow nw ard Valuations of Non-Current Assets (1,019) (1,019)
(765) (765) | Amortisation of Intangible Assets (781) (781)
(202) (202)|(Increase)/Decrease in Impairment Provisions for Bad Debts (10) (10)
1,412 1,412 |(Increase)/Decrease in Creditors (1,858) (1,858)
(685) (685) | Increase/(Decrease) in Debtors 787 787
(15) (15) | Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories (65) (65)
(1,531) (26,720) | Pension Liability (757) (17,581)
Carrying Amount of Non-Current Assets Sold and Assets Held for
(2,227) (2,227) Sale (922) (922)
220 238 | Contributions to Provisions - 31
(10,929) (36,100) Non Cash Movements (8,669) (25,462)

39.34. Cash Flow — Adjustments on Provision of Services for Investing and Financing

Activities
2019/20 Group / PCC
£000
Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
62 |Assets
62

2020/21

£000

321
321
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40.35. Cash Flow Statement — Operating Activities

2019/20 Group / PCC 2020/21 Formatted: No bullets or numbering
£000 £000
(164)|Interest received (38)
7,890 |Interest paid 1,870
41
2019/20 Group / PCC 2020/21
£000 £000
(164) | Interest received (38)
1,890 | Interest paid 1,843
42.36. Cash Flow Statement — Investing Activities
2019/20 Group | PCC 2020121 /{ Formatted: No bullets or numbering
£000 £000
6,702 |Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 6,962 4/
Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
(62)| Assets (321)
43. 6,640 |Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 6,641
2019/20 Group / PCC 2020/21
£000 £000
6,702 |Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 6,423
Proceeds from the Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
(62) | Assets (321)
6,640 |Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 6,102
44.37. Cash Flow Statement — Financing Activities
7079720 Group TPCC 2020/21 /{ Formatted: No bullets or numbering
£000 £000 /
(2,249) | Cash Receipts of Short and Long-Term Borrow ing (245) /
1,600 |Revenue Grant Receipts in Advance (5) /
Cash Payments for the Reduction of the Outstanding Liability Relating to a <
3,026 |Finance Lease 3,514
937 |Repayments of Short and Long-Term Borrow ing 882
45. 3,314 |Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 4,146
2019/20 Group / PCC 2020/21
£000 £000
(2,249) | Cash Receipts of Short and Long-Term Borrow ing (245)
1,600 |Revenue Grant Receipts in Advance (5)
Cash Payments for the Reduction of the Outstanding Liability Relating to a
3,026 |Finance Lease 3,390
937 |Repayments of Short and Long-Term Borrow ing 882
3,314 |Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 4,022

46.38. Joint Operations
46.4.38.1. Sexual Assault Referral Centre

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — YraAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

Page 148



The SARC is a one stop location where victims of sexual assault can receive medical care
and counselling whilst at the same time having the opportunity to assist the police
investigation into alleged offences. It is a joint operation between Lincolnshire Police and
Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, with Lincolnshire Police acting as the lead
body. The financial statements include the PCC Group’s share of non-current assets,
primarily the purchase and refurbishment costs associated with Spring Lodge (the PCC for
Lincolnshire’s share is 65%). The financial statements also include the PCC’s share of
income £10k and revenue expenditure £98k compared to income of £10k and revenue
expenditure of £92k in 2019/20 (the PCC for Lincolnshire’s share is 50%).

46.2.38.2. Regional Collaboration
The East Midland Regional Collaboration consists of:

o East Midlands Special Operations Unit (EMSOU) including Regional Asset Recovery
Team, Regional Review Unit, Collaboration Team, Protected Persons Unit and
Technical Support Unit. The lead body is Leicestershire;

o EMSOU Major Crime. Lead body Leicestershire;

e Forensics. Lead body Derbyshire;

e Occupational Health Unit (OHU). Lead body Leicestershire;

e Emergency Services Network (ESN). Lead body Leicestershire;

e Specialist Operations Training (SOT). Lead body Leicestershire;

e East Midlands Criminal Justice. Lead body Leicestershire, Finance Lincolnshire;

e East Midlands Legal Services. Lead body Derbyshire.

As all assets, liabilities and reserves are held by the PCC; only the operational policing
costs have been shown in the Chief Constable’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The PCC’s share of assets and liabilities is included in the PCC Group
accounts. The transactions relating to Lincolnshire’s share of a five Force collaboration is
set at 13.2%, in the case of 3 Force collaborations such as SOT, Lincolnshire’s share is
25.9% of revenue expenditure. These allocations from regional forces have been included

in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Lincolnshire’s Share of Regional Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021:
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2019/20
£000

1,325
30
1,355
4
468
394
866

(306)

(77
(383)
1,838
34
527
561
1,354
(77)
1,277
1,838

Group / PCC

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

Long Term Assets
Payments In Advance

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-Term Debtors

Current Assets

Short-Term Creditors
Receipts In Advance
Employee Benefits

Current Liabilities

Net Assets

General Fund Balance
Earmarked Reserves

Usable Reserves

Capital Adjustment Account
Accumulated Absences Account
Unusable Reserves

Total Reserves

2020/21
£000

1,395
8
1,403
15
779
256
1,050
(503)
)
(92)
(600)
1,853
34
510
544
1,401
(92)
1,309
1,853
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Lincolnshire’s Share of Regional Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
773| Police Pay and Allow ances 1,594
2,542| Police Staff Pay and Allow ances 2,794
51| Other Employee Expenses 71
101| Premises 76
104| Transport 70
452| Supplies and Services 552
608| Agency and Contracted Services 563
155| Depreciation 167
21| Amortisation 22
4,807| Gross Operating Expenditure 5,909
(231)| Other Income (233)
4 | (Gains) or Losses on Disposal of Non Current Assets -
4,580 Amount to be met from Partners 5,676
Financed by:
(4,122)| Contributions from Partners (5,060)
(477)| External Grants (575)
- Capital Grants and Contributions (56)
(19) | (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (15)
(19)| Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (15)

47.39. Funded Partnerships Outside Scope of Collaborative Arrangements

Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership (LRSP) was formed in order to reduce the number of
people killed or injured on Lincolnshire’s roads. LRSP is a unique multi-agency partnership
that brings together road safety professionals from the Police, Lincolnshire County Council,
Fire and Rescue, the NHS, the Highways Agency and the Probation Service. Roads Policing
Officers provide their time as an integral part of the Partnership.

Income received in the year was £2,361k which far exceed the previous year figure of £1,340k
due to increase in traffic cameras caused by the roadworks on the A1. The expenditure in
year was £2,021k compared with £1,041k in 2019/20, the vast majority of expenditure was
increasing the reserve held by Lincolnshire County Council.

48.40. Audit Committee Allowances and Expenses

The amount paid to members of the Joint Independent Audit Committee equated to £8,000 for
the year compared to £8,685 in 2019/20. £2,083 of the amount paid to members is charged

to the PCC based on the percentage split used for allocating finance joint services costs
(26%).
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49.41. Senior Officers

Remuneration includes all sums paid to or receivable by an employee. Pension contributions payable by the employee are excluded.

The Accounting Code of Practice requires detailed disclosure for specific senior officers. These are disclosed in the tables below.

2019/20 Senior Officers’ Remuneration

Police and Crime Commissioner

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Chief Executive

Chief Finance Officer

Police Officers

Chief Constable Bill Skelly

Deputy Chief Constable

Deputy Chief Constable

Assistant Chief Constable

Police Staff of the Chief Constable
Chief Finance Officer
Assistant Chief Officer (Resources)

Finished Jun 19
Started Jul 19

Salaries, fees or

Notes allow ances
£

66,300

103,549
76,282

160,555
37,790
97,090

109,885

79,437
115,131

Relocation

Car benefits

role
£

1,239
1,239

1,431
4,929
5,605

5,605

Other benefits
benefits | receivable in the | receivable in the
received in role
£

role
£

15
75

Total remuneration
excluding pension
contributions
2019/20
£

66,300

104,788
77,521

160,570

39,296
110,410
125,690

79,437
120,736
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Employer's
pension
contribution
£

10,807

16,878
12,434

48,232

8,141
28,569
33,170

12,948
18,766

Total remuneration
including pension
contributions
2019/20

£

77,107

121,666
89,955

208,802

47,437
138,979
158,860

92,385
139,502
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2020121 Senlor Officers’ Remuneration Relocation Car benefits Other benefits Total remuneration Employer's Total remuneration
Salaries, fees or| benefits received i in the’ i in the| ing pension pension including pension
Notes allowances in role role role, ibuti 2020/21 ibution|  contributions 2020/21
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Police and Crime Commissioner 66,300 - - - 66,300 10,807 77,107
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Chief Executive 106,139 - 1,239 - 107,378 17,301 124,679
Chief Finance Officer 78,191 - 1,239 - 79,430 12,745 92,175
Police Officers
Bill Skelly (Chief Constable) Finished Dec 20 122,744 - - - 122,744 - 122,744
Chris Haward (Chief Constable) Started Dec 20 46,871 2,027 - 48,898 14,232 63,130
Deputy Chief Constable 123,785 - 6,360 - 130,145 37,628 167,773
Assistant Chief Constable 118,481 - 5,605 - 124,086 35,984 160,070
Police Staff of the Chief Constable
Chief Finance Officer 85,709 - - - 85,709 13,970 99,679
Assistant Chief Officer (Resources) 118,043 7,133 5,605 - 130,781 19,235 150,016
Total remuneration Total remuneration
2020024 Sonier O 2 Retocatior Carberrefit therperefits p i Employer's including pension
Salaries, fees or benefits | receivable in the | receivable in the contributions pension contributions
Notes allow ances| received in role role role 2020/21 contribution 2020/21
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
Police and Crime Commissioner 66,300 - - - 66,300 10,807 77,107
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
Chief Executive 106,139 - 1,239 - 107,378 17,301 124,679
Chief Finance Officer 78,191 - 1,239 - 79,430 9,749 89,179
Police Officers
Bill Skelly (Chief Constable) Finished Dec 20 122,744 - - - 122,744 - 122,744
Chris Haw ard (Chief Constable) Started Dec 20 46,871 2,027 - 48,898 14,232 63,130
Deputy Chief Constable 123,785 - 6,360 - 130,145 37,628 167,773
Assistant Chief Constable 118,481 - 5,605 - 124,086 35,984 160,070
Police Staff of the Chief Constable
Chief Finance Officer 85,709 - - - 85,709 13,970 99,679
118,043 7,133 5,605 - 130,781 19,235 150,016

Assistant Chief Officer (Resources)
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49.4-41.1. Remuneration Banding — Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, First line: 0 cm, Tab stops:
Notat 0.5cm + 1.5cm

The table below highlights the number of employees within defined remuneration ranges. ThiS‘*f{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm ]
excludes the senior employees who are shown in more detail in the tables above.

Remuneration Range 2019/20 2020/21
Number of Number of
employees employees

£50,000 to £54,999 1 1
£55,000 to £59,999 2 -

£60,000 to £64,999 - 3
£65,000 to £69,999 - 1
£70,000 to £74,999 3 1
£75,000 to £79,999 1 -

£80,000 to £84,999 1 1
£85,000 to £89,999 - 3
£90,000 to £94,999 3 2
£95,000 to £99,999 1 -

£100,000 to £104,999 - -
£105,000 to £109,999 - -

Remuneration Range 2019/20 2020/21
Number of Number of
employees employees

£50,000 to £54,999 1 1
£55,000 to £59,999 2 1
£60,000 to £64,999 1 2
£65,000 to £69,999 1 1
£70,000 to £74,999 2 1
£75,000 to £79,999 1 1
£80,000 to £84,999 1 -
£85,000 to £89,999 4 3
£90,000 to £94,999 - 2
£95,000 to £99,999 - -
£100,000 to £104,999 - -
£105,000 to £109,999 - -

50.42. Termination Benefits

Group Cost band (including Number of compulsory Number of other Total number by cost

special payments) redundancies departures agreed band Total cost in each band

2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019720 202021

£000 £000

£0,000 to £20,000 5 - 1 - 6 - 30 B
£20,001 to £40,000 - - - - - - - .
£40,001 to £60,000 2 - - - 2 - 95 -
£60,001 to £80,000 2 - - - 2 - 130 .
£80,001 to £100,000 - - - - . - . .
£100,000 to £150,000 1 - - - 1 - 101 -
Total 10 . 1 . 1" . 356 .
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In 2020/21 there were no compulsory redundancies or employment contract terminations.

51.43. Audit Fees

2019/20 2020/21
Group £000 £000

Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed

auditor for the year 35 34

Total 35 34

2019/20 2020/21
PCC £000 £000

Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed
auditor for the year

Total 23 23

23 23

52.44. Related Party Transactions

The entity is required to disclose details of any material transactions with related parties -
bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the PCC Group or, to be
controlled or influenced by the PCC Group. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers
to assess the extent to which the entity might have been constrained in its ability to operate
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely

with it.

52.4.44.1. UK Central Government

The UK central government has effective control over the general operations of the PCC.
It is responsible for establishing the statutory framework within which the PCC operates. It
provides a large proportion of the PCC’s funding in the form of grants and prescribes the
terms of many of the transactions that the PCC has with other parties.

Further details of the grants received by the PCC Group are set out in Note 181 Taxation
and Non-Specific Income and Note 142 Grant Income.

52.2.44.2. Chief Constable for Lincolnshire

Within the Group, the Chief Constable is accountable to the Police and Crime
Commissioner for Lincolnshire. The PCC provides all funding to the Chief Constable for
the discharge of his duties. The total funding is shown in the PCC’s Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

52.3.44.3. Officers

The total remuneration to senior staff in 2020/21 is shown in Note 416. All senior officers
employed by the PCC Group at the 31 March 2021 have completed a Related Party
Transaction Declaration for the financial year in respect to themselves and close family
members to identify any business dealings with the Group that fall into this category. No
further disclosures are required.

52.4.44.4. Other Public Bodies

Joint Operations and Funded Partnerships are disclosed in Notes 378 and 389.
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53.45. Retirement Benefits

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the
PCC Group offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable
until employees retire, the PCC Group has a commitment to disclose the cost of future pension
liabilities at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.

The Group participates in two pensions schemes:

e The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for police staff is administered by West
Yorkshire Pension Fund on behalf of Lincolnshire County Council. This is a funded
defined benefit scheme, meaning that the PCC Group and employees pay contributions
into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment
assets.

Due to changes under the Public Pension Services Act 2013, from the 1 April 2014
scheme members now accrue pension entitlements based on their career-average rather
than their final salary.

G4S joined Lincolnshire Police pension fund as a new Transferee Admission Body on 1
April 2012 on a “pass through” arrangement for a contract term of 10 years. The IAS 19
results as at 31 March 2021 reflect the combined G4S and Lincolnshire Police pension
fund assets and liabilities.

e The Police Pension Scheme for police officers is an unfunded defined benefit scheme.
This means that there are no investment assets built up to meet the pensions’ liabilities
and cash has to be generated to meet actual pensions’ payments as they eventually fall
due. From the 1 April 2015 The Police Pension Scheme 2015 (CARE) scheme was
introduced (under the Public Pension Services Act 2013), and members who are not
covered by protection or the transitional arrangements in the previous schemes now
accrue pension entitlements based on their career-average rather than their final salary.
Three schemes were in operation during 2020/21 as well as injury awards:

e The 1987 scheme (Final Salary) which is based on a maximum pensionable service
of 30 years (closed to new entrants on 31 March 2006);

e The 2006 scheme (Final Salary) which is based on a maximum pensionable service
of 35 years (closed to new entrants on the 31 March 2015);

e The 2015 (CARE) scheme which was available to new entrants from the 1 April
2015 and is a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) scheme there is no
maximum period of service.

Under the Police Pension Fund Regulations 2007, if the amounts receivable by the pensions
fund for the year are less than amounts payable, the PCC must transfer an amount required
to meet the deficit to the pension fund. Subject to parliamentary scrutiny and approval, this
cost is met by a central government Police Pensions Payments grant.

The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory
changes to the scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from
the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity investments
held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to
charge to the General Fund the amounts required by statute as described in the accounting
policies note.
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53.-1.45.1. Discretionary Post-Retirement Benefits

Discretionary post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit
arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. There are no
scheme assets built up to meet these pension liabilities.

53.2.45.2. Transactions Relating to Retirement Benefits

In order to comply with IAS 19, employer’s pension contributions have been replaced with
current service costs as estimated by the independent actuaries. The PCC Group
recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Cost of Services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the
charge the PCC Group is required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable
in the year, so the real cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. The reversal of the IAS 19 transactions ensures that there is no effect
on the amounts to be met from government grant and the local taxpayers.
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53-3:45.3. Transactions Relating to Retirement Benefits

Local Government Pension Scheme

Police Pension Scheme (Group

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account

Only)
2019/20 2020721 2019/20 2020721 2019/20 2020721
PCcC Group PCcC Group Group Group! PCcC Group! PCcC Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
[of ive Income and
Cost of Services:
Current service cost (2,273) (7,451) (1,706) (5,595) (27,600) (21,500) (2,273) (35,051) (1,706) (27,095)
Past service costs 27) (88) - - 5,100 (100) (27) 5,012 - (100)
Effect of settlements - - - - - - - - - -
(2,299) (7,539) (1,706) (5,595) (22,500) (21,600) (2,299) (30,039) (1,706) (27,195)
Other Operating Expenditure:
Home Office Grant (23,826) (25,264) - (23,826) - (25,264)
Financing and Income and -
Netinterest exoense (515) (1.690) (299 (979) (35,300) (31.300) (515) (36,990) (299) (32,279)
Administrative Expenses - - (32) (104) - - - - (32) (104)
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services (2,815) (9,229) (2,037) (6,678) (81,626) (78,164) (2,815) (90,855) (2,037) (84,842)
Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Return on scheme assets (excluding the amount included in the net
interest expense) (5,127) (16,811) 8,337 27,336 - - (5,127), (16,811) 8337 27,336
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic
assumptions 2,141 7,019 594 1,949 10,800 (16,800)’ 2,141 17,819 594 (14,851)
Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial
assumptions 7,075 23,197 (17,218) (56,454) 130,700 (344,200) 7,075 153,897 (17,218) (400,654)
Other experience 4,726 15,494 570 1,868 (14,300) 77,300 4,726 1,194 570 79,168
Subtotal Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the
Compi ive Income and it 8,814 28,899 (7,7117) (25,301)’ 127,200 (283,700) 8,814 156,099 (7,717) (309,001)
Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement 5,999 19,670 (9,754) (31,979) 45,574 (361,864) 5,999 65,244 (9,754) (393,843)
Movement in Reserves Statement -
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the
Provision of Services for post employment benefits in accordance with
the Code 2815 9,229 2,037 6,678 57,800 52,900 2815 67,029 2,037 59,578
Actual Amount charged against the General Fund Balance for
pensions in the year: - - - - - - - - - -
Employers contributions payable to scheme (1,276) (4,182) (1,280) (4,197) (30,477) (31,372) (1,276) (34,659) (1,280) (35,569)
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits (8) (@7) - - - - (8) (27) - -
Employers contributions payable to schemes - Cash Top-up - - - - (5,623) (6,428) - (5,623) - (6,428)
Retirement benefits payable to pensioners - - - - - - - - - -
from C. ive Income and
to the General Fund 1,531 5,020 757 2,481 21,700 15,100 1,531 26,720 757 17,581
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Compr ive Income and iture
Cost of Services:

Current service cost

Past service costs

Effect of settlements

Other Operating Expenditure:
Home Office Grant

and Income and

Net interest expense
Adnministrative Expenses

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus
or Deficit on the Provision of Services

Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the

Compr ive Income and iture

Return on scheme assets (excluding the amount included in the
net interest expense)

Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic
assumptions

Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial
assumptions

Other experience

Subtotal Other Post Employment Benefit Charged to the
ive Income and e

Compr

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the
Compr ive Income and i

Movement in Reserves Statement

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the
Provision of Services for post employment benefits in
accordance with the Code

Actual Amount charged against the General Fund
Balance for pensions in the year:

Employers contributions payable to scheme
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits
Employers contributions payable to schemes - Cash Top-up

Retirement benefits payable to pensioners

Movement from Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the General Fund

Local Government Pension Scheme

2019/20

PCC
£000

(2,273)
27)

(2,299)

(515)

(2,815)

(5.127)
2,141

7,075

4,726

8,814

5,999

2,815

(1,276)
(8)

1,531

Group
£000

(7.451)
(88)

(7,539)

(1,690)

(9,229)

(16,811)
7,019

23,197

15,494

28,899

19,670
9,229

(4,182)
27)

5,020

2020/21

PCcC
£000

(1.706)

(1,706)

(299)
(32)

(2,037)

8,731

594

(17.218)

570

(7,323)

(9,360)

2,037

(1,280)

Group
£000

(5.595)

(5,595)

(979)
(104)

(6,678)

28,626

1,949

(56,454)

1,868

(24,011)

(30,689)

6,678

(4,197)

2,481

Police Pension Scheme
(Group Only)

2019/20

Group
£000

(27,600)
5,100

(22,500)

(23,826)

(35,300)

(81,626)

10,800

130,700

(14,300)

127,200

45,574

57,800

(41,723)

5,623

21,700

2020/21

Group
£000

(21,500)
(100)

(21,600)

(25,264)

(31,300)

(78,164)

(16,800)

(344,200)

77,300

(283,700)

(361,864)

52,900

(44,228)

6,428

15,100

2020/21

Compr Income and
2019/20
PCC Group PCC
£000 £000. £000.
(2,273) (35,051) (1,706)
(27) 5,012 -
(2,299) (30,039) (1,706)
- (23,826) -
(515) (36,990) (299)
- - (32)
(2,815) (90,855) (2,037)
(5.127) (16,811) 8731
2,141 17,819 594
7,075 153,897 (17,218)
4,726 1,194 570
8,814 156,099 (7,323)
5,999 65,244 (9,360)
2,815 67,029 2,037
(1,276) (45,905) (1,280)
(©) (27) -
- 5,623 -
1,531 26,720 757

e Account

Group
£000

(27,095)
(100)
(27,195)

(25,264)

(32,279)
(104)

(84,842)

28,626
(14,851)

(400,654)

79,168

(307,711)

(392,553)

59,578

(48,425)

6,428

17,581
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53.4.45.4. Pensions Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Retirement Benefits

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the PCC Group’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefit schemes is as follows:

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — YraAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

2019/20 2020/21
LGPS PCC Group PCC Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of the defined benefit
obligation 51,909 170,192 69,883 229,123
Fair value of scheme assets (38,367) (125,793) (48,262), (158,237)
Sub-total 13,542 44,399 21,620 70,886
Other movements in the liability (asset) 85 280 87 285
Net liability arising from the defined
=~ benerit opiigation 73,627 34679 21,707 71,171
2019/20 2020/21
LGPS PCC Group PCC Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of the defined benefit
obligation 51,909 170,192 69,883 229,123
Fair value of scheme assets (38,367) (125,793) (47,327), (155,169)
Sub-total 13,542 44,399 22,556 73,954
Other movements in the liability (asset) 85 280 87 285
Net liability arising from the defined
benefit obligation 13,627 44,679 22,643 74,239
Discretionary Benefits 2019/20 2020/21
Police Pension Scheme Group Group
£000 £000
D, ool f tbhao dofi d.bon. ﬁt
obligation 1,314,300 1,602,300
Fair value of scheme assets - -
Sub-total 1,314,300 1,602,300
Other movements in the liability (asset) 57,000 67,800
Net liability arising from the defined
benefit obligation 1,371,300 1,670,100
Discretionary Benefits 2019/20 2020/21
Police Pension Scheme Group Group
£000 £000
Present value of the defined benefit
obligation 1,314,300 1,602,300
Fair value of scheme assets - -
Sub-total 1,314,300 1,602,300
Other movements in the liability (asset) 57,000 67,800
Net liability arising from the defined
benefit obligation 1,371,300 1,670,100
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45.5. Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of the Scheme Assets

LGPS 2019/20 2020/21
PCC Group PCC Group |
£000 £000 £000 £ooo,f"
Opening fair value of scheme assets 42,039 137,833 38,367 125,793/
Interest income 1,016 3,332 886 2,905’]‘f
Adminitrative Expenses - - (32) (1(121)
Remeasurement gain / (loss): - j’
The return on scheme assets, excluding the “j‘ﬁ
amount included in the net interest expense (5,127) (16,811) 8,731 28,626
Other - -
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - -
Contributions from employer 1,284 4,209 1,280 4,197
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits - - - -
Contributions from employees in the scheme 328 1,076 337 1,106
Benefits paid (1,173) (3,846) (1,307) (4,286)
Other - -
31 March 38,367 125,793 48,262 158,237
Lot
LGPS 2019/20 2020/21
PCC Group PCC Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 42,039 137,833 38,367 125,793
Interest income 1,016 3,332 886 2,905
Adminitrative Expenses - - (32) (104)
Remeasurement gain / (loss):
The return on scheme assets, excluding the
amount included in the net interest expense (5,127) (16,811) 7,795 25,558
Other - - - -
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - - - -
Contributions from employer 1,284 4,209 1,280 4,197
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits - - - -
Contributions from employees in the scheme 328 1,076 337 1,106
Benefits paid (1,173) (3,846) (1,307) (4,286)
Other - - - -
31 March 38,367 125,793 47,327 155,169

45.6. Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit

Obligation
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LGPS Liabilities 2019/20 2020/21 [ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5 cm, No bullets or numbering ]

PCC Group PCC

£000 £000 £000
Opening balance at 1 April 62,949 206,391 51,994
Current service cost 2,273 7,451 1,706
Interest cost 1,532 5,022 1,185
Contributions from scheme participants 328 1,076 337
Re-measurement (gain) / loss: -
Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in
demographic assumptions (2,141) (7,019) (594) ‘ (1,949)
Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in
financial assumptions (7,075) (23,197) 17,218 56,454
Other (4,726) (15,494) (570) (1,868)
Past service cost 27 88 - -
Losses / (gains) on curtailment - -
Liabilities assumed on entity combinations - -
Benefits paid (1,173) (3,846) (1,307) (4,286)
Liabilities extinguished on settlements (w here
relevant) - -

53.6 31 March 51,994 170,472 69,969 229,408

R liati fthe M inthe Fair Val £ the Sc A

LGPS 2019/20 2020/21
PCC Group PCC Group
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 42,039 137,833 38,367 125,793
Interest income 1,016 3,332 886 2,905
Adminitrative Expenses - - (32) (104)

Remeasurement gain / (loss):
The return on scheme assets, excluding the

amount included in the net interest expense (5,127) (16,811) 7,795 25,558
Other - - - -
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - - - -
Contributions from employer 1,284 4,209 1,280 4,197
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits - - - -
Contributions from employees in the scheme 328 1,076 337 1,106
Benefits paid (1,173) (3,846) (1,307) (4,286)
Other - - - -
a7 31 March 38,367 125,793 47,327 155,169

oo -

it Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: 0.5 cm, No bullets or
numbering, Tab stops: Not at 1.25cm + 1.75cm
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{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5 cm, No bullets or numbering ]

LGPS Liabilities 2019/20 2020/21 /

PCC Group PCC |

£000 £000 £000
Opening balance at 1 April 62,949 206,391 51,994 5170,472
Current service cost 2,273 7,451 1,706 | 5595
Interest cost 1532 5022 1,185 3,884
Contributions from scheme participants 328 1,076 337 1,106
Re-measurement (gain) / loss: - -
Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in
demographic assumptions (2,141) (7,019) (594)| ./ (1,949)
Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in
financial assumptions (7,075) (23,197) 17,218 56,454
Other (4,726) (15,494) (570) (1,868)
Past service cost 27 88 - -
Losses / (gains) on curtailment - - - -
Liabilities assumed on entity combinations - - - -
Benefits paid (1,173) (3,846) (1,307) (4,286)
Liabilities extinguished on settlements (w here
relevant) - - - -
31 March 51,994 170,472 69,969 229,408
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Unfunded liabilities 2019/20 2020/21

Police Pension Scheme Group Group
£000 £000

Opening balance at 1 April 1,476,800 1,371,300

Current service cost 27,600 21,500

Interest cost 35,300 31,300

Contributions from scheme participants 5,600 5,600

Re-measurement (gain) / loss:

Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in

demographic assumptions (10,800) 16,800

Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in

financial assumptions (130,700) 344,200

Other 14,300 (77,300)

Past service cost (5,100) 100

Losses / (gains) on curtailment

Liabilities assumed on entity combinations

Benefits paid (41,700) (43,400)

Liabilities extinguished on settliements (w here

relevant)

31 March 1,371,300 1,670,100

—_Unfunded liabilities 2019/20 2020/21

Police Pension Scheme Group Group
£000 £000

Opening balance at 1 April 1,476,800 1,371,300

Current service cost 27,600 21,500

Interest cost 35,300 31,300

Contributions from scheme participants 5,600 5,600

Re-measurement (gain) / loss:

Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in

demographic assumptions (10,800) 16,800

Actuarial gains / losses arising from changes in

financial assumptions (130,700) 344,200

Other 14,300 (77,300)

Past service cost (5,100) 100

Losses / (gains) on curtaiment - -

Liabilities assumed on entity combinations - -

Benefits paid (41,700) (43,400)

Liabilities extinguished on settlements (w here

relevant) - -

31 March 1,371,300 1,670,100
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53.10.45.7. Pension Scheme Assets
The Police Pension Schemes are unfunded in nature and hence have no scheme assets.

The PCC Group’s Local Government Pension Scheme assets consist of the following
categories:
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Fixed Interest Government Securities

UK
Overseas
Index Linked Government Securities
UK
Overseas
Corporate Bonds
UK
Overseas
Equities
UK
Overseas
Property
All
Others
Hedge fund
Private Equity
Infrastructure
Commodities
Bonds
Private Debt
Other Diversified Alteratives
Forward Currency Contracts
Cash/Temporary Investments
Net Current Assets
Debtors
Creditors

Net Assets

2019/20

Bid Value| Bid Value
% %

Not

Quoted in| quoted in
active active
market|  market

13 -
2.0 -
11.5 -
15.8 -
384 -
8.5 0.1
- 35

- 6.4
0.1 3.0
0.3 0.2
39 -
- 1.2
14 0.5
- 0.4
13 -
0.2 -
84.7 15.3

2020/21
Bid Value| Bid Value
% %
Not
Quoted in| quoted in
active active
market|  market
1.1 -
1.7 -
9.8 -
16.0 -
40.5 -
7.0 0.2
- 29
0.3 6.6
0.5 2.7
0.5 -
32 -
- 1.2
1.6 0.3
- 0.1)
4.4 -
0.1 -
- (0.4)
86.6 13.4
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2019/20

Bid Value| Bid Value
% %
Not
Quoted in| quoted in
active active
market|  market
Fixed Interest Government Securities
UK 13 -
Overseas - -
Index Linked Government Securities
UK 2.0 -
Overseas - -
Corporate Bonds
UK 11.5 -
Overseas - -
Equities
UK 15.8 -
Overseas 384 -
Property
All 8.5 0.1
Others
Hedge fund - 35
Private Equity - 6.4
Infrastructure 0.1 3.0
Commodities 03 0.2
Bonds 39 -
Private Debt - 1.2
Other Diversified Alteratives 14 0.5
Forward Currency Contracts - 04
Cash/Temporary Investments 13 -
Net Current Assets
Debtors 0.2 -
Creditors - -
Net Assets 84.7 15.3

2020/21

Bid Value
%

Quoted in
active

market

1.1

9.9

16.2

41.1

7.0

0.1

87.8

Bid Value
%

Not
quoted in
active
market

0.3

3.0
5.6
2.6

1.0
0.3
0.1)

(0.4)

12.2

53.-11.45.8. Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

The Police Pension Scheme has been assessed by Hymans Robertson (an independent
firm of actuaries). The Local Government Pension Scheme has been assessed by Barnett
Waddingham (an independent firm of actuaries). The value of the liabilities is an estimate
of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about

uncertain variables.

For the Local Government Pension Scheme, liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial
basis using the projected unit method. Estimates are based on the latest full valuation of
the scheme as at April 2019.

For the Police Pension Scheme liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using
the projected unit method. The last formal valuation of the schemes was carried out as at

31 March 2021.
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Mortality assumptions

Longevity for current pensioners:
Men
Women

Longevity for future pensioners:
Men
Women

Financial assumptions

Market derived RPI

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase in pensions

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

Local Government
Pension Scheme
2019/20 2020/21

Longevity at 65

Years Years
214 211
23.7 23.6
224 22.0
25.2 25.0

% %
2.8 35
21 3.2
1.8 29
23 2.0

Police Pension

Scheme
2019/20 2020/21
Longevity at 60
Years Years
27.2 27.4
29.2 29.7
28.3 28.7
30.4 31.0
% %
2.8 35
2.8 33
1.9 29
23 2.0

Local Government

Police Pension

Pension Scheme Scheme
2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21
Mortality assumptions Longevity at 65 Longevity at 60
Years Years Years Years
Longevity for current pensioners:
Men 214 211 272 274
Women 237 236 29.2 297
Longevity for future pensioners:
Men 224 220 28.3 287
Women 252 25.0 304 31.0
Financial assumptions % % % %
Market derived RPI 28 33 28 33
Rate of increase in salaries 21 32 28 33
Rate of increase in pensions 1.8 29 1.9 29
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 23 20 23 20

The Local Government Pension Scheme longevity assumptions are as per the latest full
valuation as at 31 March 2021, the Police Pension Scheme longevity assumptions are
remodelled annually in the actuarial review.

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions
set out in the table above.

45.9. Present Value of Liabilities

2015/16! 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 /| Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0 cm, Tab stops: Not at
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 // 1.25cm + 1.75cm

Present value of liabilities //

Local government pension scheme (145,804) (173,150) (178,307) (206,391) (170,472) ,r" (229,408)

Police pension scheme (1,100,800) (1,280,300) (1,331,600) (1,476,800) (1,371,300) (1,670,100)

Fair value of assets in the local 102,976 121,312 125,670 137,833 125,792 158,237

government pension scheme <

Surplus / (deficit) in the scheme (1,143,628) (1,332,138) (1,384,237) (1,545,358) (1,415,980) (1,741,271)

Local government pension scheme (42,828) (51,838) (52,637) (68,558) (44,680) (71,171)

Police pension scheme (1,100,800) (1,280,300) (1,331,600) (1,476,800) (1,371,300) (1,670,100)

Total surplus / (deficit) in the scheme (1,143,628) (1,332,138) (1,384,237) (1,545,358) (1,415,980) (1,741,271)
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2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of liabilities
Local government pension scheme (145,804) (173,150) (178,307) (206,391) (170,472) (229,408)
Police pension scheme (1,100,800) (1,280,300) (1,331,600) (1,476,800) (1,371,300) (1,670,100)
Fair value of assets in the local 102,976 121,312 125,670 137,833 125,792 155,169
government pension scheme
Surplus / (deficit) in the scheme (1,143,628) (1,332,138) (1,384,237) (1,545,358) (1,415,980) (1,744,339)
Local government pension scheme (42,828) (51,838) (52,637) (68,558) (44,680) (74,239)
Police pension scheme (1,100,800) (1,280,300) (1,331,600) (1,476,800) (1,371,300) (1,670,100)
Total surplus / (deficit) in the scheme (1,143,628) (1,332,138) (1,384,237) (1,545,358) (1,415,980) (1,744,339)
53:43.45.10. Impact on the PCC Group’s Cash Flows

The liabilities show the underlying commitments for retirement benefits that the PCC Group
has to pay in the long run. The total liability has a substantial impact on the net worth of
the PCC Group as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a negative overall balance.
However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of
the PCC Group remains healthy.

The objectives of the local government scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as
constant a rate as possible. The PCC Group has agreed a strategy with the scheme’s
actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 20 years. At the last triennial
valuation it was agreed that in order to mitigate for the effect of fluctuations in membership
numbers that a lump sum contribution towards meeting the deficit would also be paid
alongside the percentage of pay contribution.

The minimum employer contributions payable over the next year for the PCC Group is
16.3% plus a £1,657k lump sum payment. Estimated employer’s contribution for 2021/22
amount to £4.33m on the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Funding levels are monitored through the triennial valuation process and the last triennial
valuation was as at 31 March 2019.

For police pensions, the rate (%) at which employer contributions are made to the police
pension fund is set by the Home Office. An actuarial valuation during 2044/452019/20
resulted in an_increase—reduetion in the employers’ contribution rate from 24-2%te
24+21.3% to 31%3% from 1 April 20159. Thedifference—between—the—old—employer
e o4 0, =

Estimated employer contributions for 2021/22 at 22.931% of pensionable pay amount to
£42.216.5m.

The Local Government Pension Scheme and the Police Pension Scheme take account of
the national changes required under the Public Pensions Services Act 2013. Under the
Act, the main public service pension schemes may not provide benefits on a final salary
basis in relation to service after 31 March 2015. The Act provides for scheme regulations
to be made within a common framework, to establish new, career average, revalued
earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits to certain public servants. For the
Local Government Pension Scheme these changes came into operation on 1 April 2014
and for the Police scheme from 1 April 2015.

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation:
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LGPS Police Pension Scheme

Weighted Weighted

Liability Liability] Average Liability Liability] Average
Split as at| Split as at|Duration at| Split as at| Split as at|Duration at
31 March| 31 March| Previous| 31March 31 March| Previous

2021 2021 Formal 2021 2021 Formal
Valuation Valuation
£000 % £000 %
Active Members 101,606 49.3% 25.0 538,200 40.9% 26
Deferred Members 53,260 25.8% 26.9 48,200 3.7% 27
Pensioner Members 51,205 24.8% 12.2 727,900 55.4% 12
Total | 206071 100.0% 206 [ 1,314,300 |  100.0%| 18.1
Contingent Injuries 26,500 46.5% 26
Injury pension liabilities 30,500 53.5% 16
Total | - - -] 57,000 100.0%| 20.6
e
EGPS Police Pension Scheme
Weighted Weighted
Liability Liability Average Liability Liability Average
Splitas at| Split as at Duration at| Splitas at, Split as at| Duration at
31 March| 31 March Previous 31 March| 31 March Previous
2021 2021 Formal 2021 2021 Formal
Valuation Valuation
£000 % £000 %
Active Members 101,606 49.3% 25.0 538,200 40.9% 26
Deferred Members 53,260 25.8% 26.9 48,200 3.7% 27
Pensioner Members 51,205 24.8% 12.2 727,900 55.4% 12
Total | 206071  1000% 206 1314300 |  100.0% 18.1
Contingent Injuries - - - 26,500 46.5% 26
Injury pension liabilities - - - 30,500 53.5% 16
Total | - ] | s7000]  100.0% 20.6

54.46. Contingent Liabilities

A number of legal claims are being pursued against the Group. They are all being
rigorously defended but provisions have been made for those claims where it is likely that
the outcome will be in favour of the claimant.

e The claims are motor, public liability, employer’s liability and employment tribunal
cases brought against the Group;

e Itis not expected that any material awards will be made against the Group other than
those already included in the Provisions;

¢ As with any legal claim, the final outcome and timing of each case will depend upon
many factors, some of which had not been determined at the Balance Sheet date;

e The Group will be reimbursed for any costs which exceed the insurer’s excess for an
individual case.
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There are three other specific matters which currently have the potential to impact the
Force:

¢ A national inquiry into Undercover Policing commenced in 2015 to ascertain the truth
about Undercover Policing operations across England and Wales since 1968 and
provide recommendations for the future. The review is wide ranging and could lead to
individual legal claims submitted from officers for additional payments whilst working
on undercover operations. The inquiry continues and at present is undertaking
evidence hearings on undercover work. The timescales for concluding the work and
any potential monetary values to be paid to officers are at present still unknown.

e The McCloud judgement relating to the Court of Appeal’s ruling that Government’s
2015 public sector pension reforms unlawfully treated existing public sectors differently
based upon the members age on 1st April 2012. Currently 93 officers have sought
redress against Lincolnshire Police for the unlawful treatment through a national
coordinated legal claim. The Government has accepted the validity of the claims and
a number of test cases have been selected for Employment Tribunal in December. A
further larger claim from the Staff Associations is currently progressing through the
Employment Tribunal system. To date, the Force have no data to identify how many
officers from Lincolnshire have joined the action, but it is estimate that potentially two-
thirds of scheme members impacted by the discriminatory arrangement are now
seeking compensation. At present both the timescales and value of settlements
remain unclear.

e The PCC took the decision in October 2020 not to take up the option to extend the
G4S Strategic contract for a further five years. The contract, which was worth in the
region of £23m per year was to provide a wide range of operational and support
functions to the Chief Constable. Upon making the decision the Force set up the
Future Service Programme to examine and implement the options for the future
provision of the services once the contract concludes at the end of financial year
2021/22. Despite the work undertaken to make the transition as smooth as possible
there is potential risk for unknown costs to be incurred as services move back under
Force control.

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire — UnraAudited Financial Statements, 2020/21

Page 171



55.47. Financial Instruments

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet within Net
Assets (which also include elements that do not constitute a financial instrument; the definition
of which being, a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
of another):

Non-Current Current
Investments Debtors Investments Debtors Total
Group / PCC 2019720  2020/21)  2019/20 2020121 2019/20 2020/21) 201920 2020121 201920 2020121
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial Assets
Amortised Cost - - - - 5725 8,279 3,440 3,050 9,165 11,329
Total Financial Assets - - - - 5,725 8,279 3,440 3,050 9,165 11,320
“Note that financial assets classified as loans and receivables in 2017/18 under IAS39
Non-Current Current
Borrowings Creditors Borrowings Creditors Total
L UTIT20 Z0TZT UTITZ0° 20721 U920 OZ0TZT 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000 £000. £000. £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cost (28,869)| (28,201)) - - (1,073)| (1,104)) (8,141)) (9,226)| (38,083)| (38,531)
Total Financial Liabilities (28,869) (28,201) - - (1,073) (1,104) (8,141), (9,226) (38,083) (38,531)
Non-Current Current
Borrowings Creditors Borrowings Creditors Total
Group / PCC 2019120 2020121 2019/20 2020121 2019/20 2020121) 201920 2020121 2019120 2020121
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000) £000 £000
Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cost (28,869)]  (28,201) - - (1,073) (1.104)  (8,141) (8:692)  (38,083) (37.997)
Total Financial Liabilities (28,869)]  (28,201) - - (1,073) (1,104)|  (8,141) (8,692)  (38,083) (37,997)

The Police and Crime Commissioner is exposed to minimum risk. Any short-term deposits
are included in the cash and cash equivalents Note 223.

Financial Liabilities consists of borrowing with the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) and two
SALIX interest free loans. The total PWLB amount outstanding at 31 March 2021 is £28.9m.
The total SALIX amount outstanding at 31 March 2021 is £419k.

No additional borrowing from PWLB took place in 2020/21. Repayments of the principal were
made totalling £822k and there was a decrease in loan interest accrual of £10k. Additional
borrowing of £245k from SALIX took place and repayments of £50k resulting in a decrease in
the PCC’s borrowing from £29.9m to £29.3m in the year.

The debtors and creditors figures have been adjusted for non-contractual obligations. For
debtors these are VAT debtors, Statutory Maternity, Paternity and Adoption Pay debtors,
payments in advance, grant income and collection fund adjustments. For creditors these are
receipts in advance, tax and NI and collection fund adjustments. There are no concerns over
the recoverability of debtors that are past due and not impaired.

. As at March 31 As at March 31
Range of interest

2020 2021

o
Group /PCC rates payable % £000 £000
PWLB 2.14-8.25 (29,718) (28,886)
Salix Interest Free Loan Interest Free (224) (419)
(29,942) (29,305)

Note that the above amount is the total of long-term and short-term borrowing shown
separately on the balance sheet.
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A full analysis of loans by maturity is shown in Note 478 under ‘liquidity risk exposure.
55.4.47.1. _Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2021
Other Other
Income, Expense, Gains and Losses Compreshensive|  Surplus or Deficit on| Compreshensive
Group / PCC Surplus or Deficit on the Income and the Provision of Income and
Provision of Services Expenditure Services Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 164 38
Total interest revenue 164 - 38
Interest expense (956) - (873)

55.2.47.2. Fair Values of Financial Assets
None of the PCC’s financial assets are measured at fair value.

55.3.47.3. The Fair Values of Financial Liabilities that are not Measured at Fair Value
(but for which Fair Value Disclosures are Required)

Financial liabilities for which fair value disclosures are required held by the PCC are shown
in the table below and are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. The fair values
calculated are as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2021
Fair Value Hierarcy Carrying " Carrying "
F | F: I
Financial liabilities - Group / PCC Measurement amount air value amount air value
£000 £000 £000 £000
PWLB Level 2 29,718 49,003 28,886 40,617
Salix Interest Free Loan Level 2 224 224 419 419

The fair value of PWLB loans is higher than the carrying amount because the PCC’s
portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is
higher than the prevailing rates at the Balance Sheet date. This shows a notional future
loss (based on economic conditions at 31 March 2021) arising from a commitment to pay
interest to lenders above current market rates.

However, the PCC has a continuing ability to borrow at concessionary rates from the PWLB
rather than from the markets. A supplementary measure of the movement in interest that
the PCC will pay as a result of its PWLB commitments for fixed rate loans is to compare
the terms of these loans with the new borrowing rates available from the PWLB. The PCC
review the carrying amounts and potential penalty charge for early redemption regularly to
ensure that opportunities to make savings through re-financing are maximised. Currently
the penalty charges are much higher than the savings that would be made through current
interest rates.

Short-term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their
value.

The table above excludes other financial liabilities such as cash overdrawn. The carrying
amount as shown in the Balance Sheet is assumed to approximate to fair value, as the
instrument will mature in the next 12 months.

The fair value hierarchy is as follows:
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e Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets at the
Balance Sheet Date;

e Level 2 - comparators other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for that asset, either directly or indirectly;

e Level 3 — unobservable comparators for the asset.

The financial liabilities held by the PCC are Level 2 in the fair value Hierarchy Level of
Measurement and there has been no change to this level during the year.

The fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that take
place over the remaining life of the investments using the following assumptions:

e For loans from the PWLB, equivalent borrowing rates available from the PWLB at 31
March 2021 have been applied to provide the fair value under the PWLB debt
redemption procedures;

o No early repayment or impairment is recognizsed;

e The SALIX loans have been accounted for on the basis of outstanding principal
amounts as defined by statutory arrangements and will be repaid by 31 March 2026.

56-48. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
56.-1.48.1. Credit Risk Exposure

This is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to meet their contractual
obligations, causing a loss for the other party. Exposure to this risk is managed through
the PCC’s detailed Treasury Management Strategy, which is available at the following web
address: www.lincolnshire-pcc.gov.uk/finance.

The PCC only invests in approved institutions with secure credit ratings, there are also
limits in place on how much can be invested with counterparties. These counterparties are
reviewed weekly, and the loan limits are detailed in the table below:

Max % of total

investments/£ Max. maturity
limit per period
Specified Investments institution
DMADF - UK Government Unlimited 6 months
Money market funds £4m Liquid
Local Authorities £4m/ 20%* 1Year
Term deposits with banks and building societies £4m/ 20%* 3months - 1 year

The PCC does not allow extended credit for customers. Due to the nature of the debtors
being principally relating to Government funding, there are no concerns about their credit
worthiness. The amounts not impaired are analysed by age as follows:
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Sales Ledger - Aged Debt Analysis 2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000
Current 1,294 867
Up to one month 115 185
Up to six months 19 83
Up to one year 16 8
More than one year - 8
Total: 1,444 1,151
Other debtors 1,996 1,899
Total: 3,440 3,050

Note that this table shows the aged debt analysis from the trade debtors account, with all
other debtors included at the ‘Other Debtor’ line.

56.2.48.2. Liquidity Risk Exposure

This is the risk that a party will be unable to raise funds to meet its commitments associated
with financial instruments. As the PCC currently has ready access to borrowings from the
Public Works Loan Board, there is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance
to meet its commitments under financial instruments. Instead, the risk is that the PCC will
be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its borrowings at a time of unfavourable
interest rates. The financial liabilities however all mature at different times. The maturity
analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

2019/20 Borrowing PWLB Deferred Liabilities Total
£000 £000 £000
Less than 1 year 1,023 50 1,073
Between one and two years 814 50 864
Between two and five years 2,366 125 2,490
More than five years 25,515 - 25,515
Total 29,718 224 29,942
2020/21 Borrowing PWLB Deferred Liabilities Total
£000 £000 £000
Less than 1 year 1,005 99 1,104
Between one and two years 804 99 903
Between two and five years 2,305 222 2,527
More than five years 24,771 - 24,771
Total 28,886 419 29,305

This excludes trade and other payables (creditors and other liabilities) which are due to be
paid in less than one year.

The PCC does not have any amounts arising from expected credit losses.
56-3-48.3. Market Risk Exposure

Market risk is the risk that the value of an instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
interest rates, market prices and foreign currency exchange rates. The PCC has limited
risk. PWLB interest rates are fixed, and no short-term investments were held at the end of
2020/21. The PCC does not invest in equity shares and has no financial assets or liabilities
in foreign currencies.

The following sensitivity analysis shows the financial effect on the fair value of a one percent
point movement in average interest rates as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021:
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Fair Value| Fair Value Fair Value

2019/20 Sensitivity Analysis 2019/20 at 1% Higher| at 1% Lower
£000 £000 £000
PWLB Long Term Fixed Borrow ing 49,003 48,993 49,013

Fair Value| Fair Value Fair Value

2020/21 Sensitivity Analysis 2020/21|at 1% Higher| at 1% Lower
£000 £000 £000
PWLB Long Term Fixed Borrow ing 40,617 40,608 40,626

57.49. Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

The following Accounting Standards may be relevant for additional disclosures that will
required in the financial statements in respect of accounting changes in the Code:

o Definition of a business: Amendments to IFRS Business Combinations;
¢ |Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7;

e Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16.

If these had been adopted for the financial year 2020/21 there would be no known material
changes. If further information becomes available that requires changes to 2020/21 these will
be restated in the 2021/22 financial statements.

The new leasing standard, IFRS 16 Leases, had been due to be implemented from 2020/21.
However, due to the widespread impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic, the
CIPFA/LASAAC Local Authority Accounting Code Board agreed to defer the implementation
of this standard in line with the government’s Financial Reporting Advisory Board’s proposals
for central government departments. This will mean the effective date for implementation is
now 1 April 2022.

50. Non-adjustment event after reporting period

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the data when the Statement of Accounts
is authorised for issue.

There is one event which is indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period whereH—[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm

the Statements of Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect. Disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events
and their estimated financial effect or a statement that a reasonable estimate of the effect
cannot be made:-

e The Strategic Partnership contract (with G4S Policing Services) is formally held by+«—

the PCC for the provision of a wide range of operational and support functions to
the Chief Constable. This has been accounted for in full in the PCC’s accounts as
that is where the contractual, budgetary and management control resides. The PCC
has made the decision not to extend the contract for a further five years. The current
contract expires on 31st March 2022. Most the services will transfer back to the
Force on 1st April except for cleaning and custody services which will be contracted
externally. An estimate of the financial effect of this change cannot be made at
present due to size and complexity of the arrangements.
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Police Officer Pensions — Home Office Memorandum Account
2020/21

This statement shows the transactions relating to retirement benefits paid to Police Officers
and for how those costs are paid.

2019/20 Fund account 2020/21
£000 £000
Contributions Receivable

From Employer:

12,212 |Normal 12,621
831 |Early Retirements 499
From Members:
5282 | Contributions 5,420
466 | Individual Transfers in from Other Schemes 201
18,790 18,741
Benefits Payable
33,900 |Pensions 35,129
8,267 |Commutations 8,219
- Lump Sum Death Benefits 287
Payments To and On Account of Leavers
12 |Refunds of Contributions 9
60 |Individual Transfers Out -
195 | Scheme Pays 235
184 | Lifetime Allow ance (25%) 126
- Equivalent Premium -
42,617 44,005
23,827 S.ub-total f.or the year before transfer frt.)r.n the PCC Group for 25,264
Lincolnshire of amount equal to the deficit
(23,827) Additional funding payable by the PCC Group for Lincolnshire to meet (25,264)

deficit for the year

Net Amount payable/(receivable) by the PCC Group for Lincolnshire

Disclosure Notes

1.

The operation of the Pension Fund for Police and Crime Commissioners in England and
Wales is controlled by the Police Pension Fund Regulations 2007 (SI 2007 No 1932). It
covers both old, new and Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) Police Officer
occupational pension schemes but has no impact on the benefit structure of either
scheme. The CARE scheme was introduced from 1 April 2015. This is the only scheme
open to new officers. Existing officers will be brought into the scheme on 1 April 2015
unless they have full transitional protection or tapered protection. Injury and ill health
awards continue to be paid from the PCC’s operating account. The employer contribution
rate is 24-231% of pensionable pay. Employees’ contributions in the 1987 old scheme are
either 14.25% or 15.05% of pensionable pay. In the 2006 new scheme employees
contribute either 11%, 12.05% or 12.75% of pensionable pay. In the 2015 CARE scheme
employees contribute either 12.44%, 13.44% or 13.78% of pensionable pay.

The fund is administered by XPS on behalf of Lincolnshire Police. Salary deductions are
made from members of the scheme, and payments are made to retiring officers and
pensioners in accordance with Police Pension Fund Regulations 2007. Returns are made
to the Home Office for the projected and actual costs in each year, and funds are
transferred accordingly.
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. There are no investment assets; the fund is balanced to nil each year by receipt of a Police

Pensions Payments grant from the Home Office (via PCC for Lincolnshire). Payments are
made monthly to pensioners, with the pension fund entries being kept separate, outside
of the PCC’s general ledger accounts. Details of the PCC’s long-term pension obligations
can be found in the main statements at Note 454.

. The accounting policies followed are in accordance with Note 1.

. The Police Officer Pensions — Home Office Memorandum Account does not take account

of liabilities to pay pensions and benefits after the period end.

. The net amount receivable of £6,428,058 is shown in PCC for Lincolnshire accounts as

due from the Home Office.

McCloud Judgement Legal Cases — The Chief Constable of Lincolnshire along with other
Chief Constables and the Home Office currently has a number of claims in respect of
unlawful discrimination arising from transitional provisions in the Police Pension
Regulations 2015. The claims against the Police pension scheme (the Aarons case) had
previously been stayed behind the McCloud/Sargeant judgement, but a case management
was held in Oct 2019, with the resulting Order including an interim declaration that the
claimants are entitled to be treated as if they had been given full transitional protection and
had remained in their existing scheme after 1 April 2015. Whilst the interim declaration
applied only to claimants, the Government made clear through a Written Ministerial
Statement on 25 March 2020 that non-claimants would be treated in the same way.

On 16 July 2020, HM Treasury issued a consultation regarding transitional arrangements
for public sector pensions to eliminate discrimination as identified through the
McCloud/Sargeant cases. This consultation introduced a requirement for members to
have been members of the scheme on or before 31 March 2012 and on or after 1 April to
be eligible for remedy.

On 4 February 2021, HM Treasury issued their response to the consultation which
confirmed the remedy arrangements set out in the consultation, and states that members
would be given a choice as to whether to retain benefits from their legacy pension scheme,
or their new scheme, during the remedy period (2015-2022). This choice will be deferred
for members until retirement. As the findings of the original Employment Tribunal did not
identify that the introduction of the new public sector pension schemes were discriminatory
(rather it was the transitional provisions), the legacy schemes will be removed from April
2022 to be replaced by the new pension schemes originally introduced in 2015.
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8. McCloud Judgement Impact on Pension Liability — Allowing for all eligible members to
accrue benefits from their legacy scheme during the remedy period would lead to an
increase in the Police Pension Scheme liabilities. Allowing for all eligible members to
accrue benefits from their legacy scheme during the remedy period would lead to an
increase in the Police Pension Scheme liabilities. For the Police and Crime Commissioner
for Lincolnshire, this effects around 1,000 members. The actuary originally estimated the
increase in scheme liabilities for the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire to
be 4.0% or £56m of pension scheme liabilities. This was recognised in the 2018-19
accounts. In 2019/20, the estimated increase was a further £8m reflecting an additional
years benefits from the remedy and a reduction resulting from the eligibility criteria for
members set out in HM Treasury’s consultation. In 2020/21, a further, more detailed,
estimate of 1.3% of pensions scheme liabilities or £21m was calculated using actual
membership data and reflected in the accounts (again reflecting an additional years
benefits from the remedy).

The impact of an increase in scheme liabilities arising from McCloud/Sargeant judgement
will be measured through the pension valuation process, which determines employer and
employee contribution rates. The next Police Pension valuation is due to be reported in
2023/24, although this timetable is subject to change.

The impact of an increase in annual pension payments arising from McCloud/Sargeant is
determined through the Police Pension Fund Regulations 2007. These require a police
authority to maintain a pension fund into which officer and employer contributions are paid
and out of which pension payments to retired officers are made. If the police pension fund
does not have sufficient funds to meet the cost of pensions in year the amount required to
meet the deficit is then paid by the Secretary of State to the police authority in the form of
a central government top-up grant.
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Glossary of Terms

Term Definition

Accrual An adjustment to ensure that expenditure and income are reflected in the
appropriate accounting period.

Actuary/Actuarial A person professionally qualified to advise on pension matters and
undertakes calculations on pension costs, allowing for risk and
demographic factors.

Amortisation The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the
useful economic life of Intangible Assets.

Balances The total revenue Reserves required to provide a working balance during

Blue Light Project

Capital Adjustment

Account

Capital Expenditure

Capital Grants

Capital Receipts

CIPFA

Collection Fund

Creditors

Debtors

the financial year, for example in periods when expenditure exceeds

income.

with statutory requirements.

which have value beyond one financial year).

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. This is the

Expenditure on assets, which have a long term value.
purchase of land, purchase or construction of new buildings and vehicles.

Lincolnshire’s joint fire, police and ambulance collaboration project which
includes the building of the South Park Emergency campus.

A reserve primarily designed to represent timing differences between the
amount of the historical cost of Property Plant and Equipment that has
been consumed and the amount that has been financed in accordance

Includes the

Grants received towards capital outlay on a particular service or project.

Proceeds received from the sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (assets

main professional body for accountants working in the public service.

proportion to the council tax set.

Amounts owed by the PCC for work done, goods received or services

A fund administered by each billing authority. Council tax monies are paid
into the fund. These are distributed to precepting and billing authorities in

rendered but for which payment has not been made at 31 March.

Sums of money due to the PCC but unpaid at 31 March.
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Depreciation

Direct Revenue
Financing

Earmarked Reserves

EMOpSS

EMSOU

EMCJS

Finance lease

Financial instruments

Flexi Time

FRS

Government Grants

IFRS

Impairment

ISG

JIAC

Long Term Debtors

The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the
useful economic life of Property, Plant and Equipment.

This refers to financing of capital expenditure directly from revenue rather
than loans or other sources.

The elements of total PCC Reserves retained for specific purposes.

East Midlands Operational Support Service

East Midland Special Operations Unit

East Midland Criminal Justice Service

Where the conditions of the lease amount to recognising all the costs of
an asset but legal title is with a third party.

Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial liability of another. For local authorities, this will
normally mean contracts which involve the right to transfer cash or other
financial assets

Police Staff may utilise the flexi time scheme to accrue additional hours
worked that are held pending their utilisation at a future date.

Financial Reporting Standards, as agreed by the UK accountancy
profession and the Accounting Standards Board.

Payments by Central Government towards the PCC’s expenditure. They
are receivable in respect of both revenue and capital expenditure.

International Financial Reporting Standards: the accounting standards
which determine the production and disclosure of financial statements.

An adjustment to the value of long-term assets.

Integrated Scheme of Governance

Joint Independent Audit Committee

Sums of money due to the PCC originally repayable within a period in
excess of twelve months and where payment is not due until future years.
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Materiality

Minimum Revenue

Provision (MRP)

Net Book Value

NICHE

Non Domestic Rates

Non Operational
Assets

OJEU

Operating lease

PCC Group

PEEL

Precept

PUP

PWLB

Revaluation Reserve

An item that is not material will not be relevant, cannot influence a user’s
decision and need not be reported in the financial statements.

The statutory requirement to set aside a minimum revenue provision for
the repayment of external loans.

Long-term assets are depreciated in accordance with their asset life. The
net book value is the value remaining after cumulative depreciation has
been taken away.

A Police Records Management System that manages information in
relation to the core Policing entities.

Rates levied on business properties, collected by District Councils, which
are then distributed amongst local authorities as income.

Property, Plant and Equipment held by the PCC Group but not directly
occupied, used or consumed in the delivery of services. These will include
buildings under construction and surplus assets.

Official Journal of the European Union

A lease where the asset is only used for part of its useful life, and lease
payments amount to rental of the asset.

The Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable are
separate legal entities. They are part of the same PCC Group whose
combined accounts are presented collectively.

Police Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy board.

The amount levied by one authority which is collected by another, e.g. the
PCC Group is the precepting authority and the District Councils are the
collecting authorities.

Police Uplift Programme — nationwide recruitment programme of an
additional 20,000 officers

Public Works Loan Board, a body providing debt funding to local
authorities.

A reserve designed to represent the amount by which the current value of
long-term assets carried in the Balance Sheet is greater, because they
are carried at revalued amounts rather than depreciated historical cost.
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Revenue
Contributions

Revenue Expenditure

SALIX

Section 22 Agreement

Straight Line
Depreciation

Strategic Partner

TOIL

UEL

Virement

WYPF

XPS

The financing of capital expenditure directly from revenue rather than from
loans or other sources.

The day to day expenditure of the PCC group on such items as employees
and supplies and services.

Salix Finance Ltd. provides interest-free Government funding to the public
sector to improve energy efficiency, reduce carbon emissions and lower
energy bills.

Section 22 of the Police Act 1996 provides for joint working between police
forces and/or Police & Crime Commissioners where, in the opinion of the
Chief Constable or the Commissioner, collaboration would deliver greater
efficiency or effectiveness.

The writing down of Property, Plant and Equipment values by an equal
amount for each year of that asset’s life.

G4S are the Strategic Partner with the Force until 31 March 2022. G4S
Policing Support Services deliver a range of administrative and
operational services formerly delivered by a combination of civilian
employees and police officers — including Finance, HR, Fleet
Management, Custody, Support Services and Control Room.

Time Off In Lieu may be accrued by both Police Officers and Staff when
working additional hours for which payment is not made.

Useful Economic Life

Transfers between budget headings, in accordance with Financial
Regulations, reflecting changes in the PCC’s expenditure plans.

West Yorkshire Pension Fund.

XPS Pensions Group, the pension administrators of the Lincolnshire
Police Pension Fund.
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